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Date: June 03, 2024

To, To,

BSE Limited, National Stock Exchange of India Limited,
Phiroze Jeejeebhoy Towers, Dalal Street, Exchange Plaza, C-1, Block G, Bandra Kurla
Mumbai- 400001 Complex, Bandra (E),

Mumbai - 400 051
Scrip Code: 544044

NSE Symbol: INDIASHLTR

Dear Sir/ Madam,
Subject: Corrigendum to the Annual Report for the Financial Year 2023-2024
Dear Sir / Madam,

The Corrigendum is being issued with reference to our letter dated May 28, 2024, with respect to the
Annual Report for the Financial Year 2023-2024.

With reference to the captioned subject, we have noticed typographical errors as follows:

e DIN: 09691435 should be read as DIN: 02895343 on page no. 79;
e DIN: 02132315 should be read as DIN:00036085 and Rachna Dixit as Rachna Dikshit on page no. 178,
179, 180, 182, 247,256, 257,258,260 and 313.

It may be noted that the error is not a material error, but a typographical error and it does not impact
the financial statements in any manner. As soon as the typographical errors were noticed, necessary
rectifications were promptly executed.

For India Shelter Finance Corporation Limited
Digitally signed by
MUKTI MUKTI CHAPLOT
Date: 2024.06.03
CHAPLOT 18:20:43 +05'30'
Mukti Chaplot

Company Secretary & Chief Compliance Officer
M. No.: 38326

India Shelter Finance Corporation Limited

Registered office — 6th Floor, Plot No 15, Institutional Area, Sector 44, Gurgaon, Haryana-122002
CIN: L65922HR1998PLC042782, Phone No +91-124-4131800
E-mail: customer.care@indiashelter.in, Website: www.indiashelter.in
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Investor Information

Market Capitalisation* . 6,678Crs

CIN . L65922HR1998PLC042782
BSE Code . 544044

NSE Symbol : INDIASHLTR

AGM Date . 19" June, 2024

AGM Mode . Virtual

* As on 28th March 2024, National Stock Exchange (NSE)

Disclaimer

This document contains statements about expected future events and the financials of India Shelter Finance
Corporation Limited (the Company) which are forward-looking. By their nature, forward-looking statements require
the Company to make assumptions and are subject to inherent risks and uncertainties. There is a significant risk
that the assumptions, predictions, and other forward-looking statements may not prove to be accurate. Readers are
cautioned not to place undue reliance on forward-looking statements, as several factors could cause assumptions,
actual future results and events to differ materially from those expressed in the forward-looking statements.
Accordingly, this document is subject to the disclaimer and qualified in its entirety by the assumptions, qualifications
and risk factors referred to in the Management Discussion and Analysis section of this Annual Report.

Every brick of affordable housing lays
the foundation for a more inclusive
tomorrow. Inspired by the same
philosophy, India Shelter Finance
Corporation Limited is driven by a
Purpose, a commitment to serve
communities underserved by traditional
financial institutions, particularly in Tier
2 and Tier 3 cities. With a firm belief that
affordable housing is not just a policy
but a commitment to the community,
we focus on making homeownership
dreams a reality for low and middle-
income segments.

We take cognizance that each of our
customer’s financial aspirations are
unique, and so our expert artisans
carefully craft personal and perfectly
tailored loan options, ensuring a smooth
journey for our customers— a true
reflection of our integrity.

With transparency in each of our
operations and integrity towards
customer service, we leverage on the
strength of technology. Our digital
platforms enable easy and secure access
to our services, eliminating the need for
extensive paperwork.

Our purpose drives
us to serve the
community, integrity
defines our actions,
and technology
propels us forward.

®
TECHNOLOGY

Homeownership is the
legacy we create and
the shelter we provide.

At India Shelter Finance Corporation
Limited, homeownership dreams

take centre stage, supported by a
commitment to understanding the
unique needs and the principles of
integrity that pave the way for pioneering
growth.

ITY

-


https://www.indiashelter.in/investor-relations

- °
-==IndiaShelter
cOrporate Overview > Initial Public Offering and Listing: A Milestone Achieved = = = = = = = = = = = = = = o = o o o o e o o e o e e o o o S S S SSSSSSSs oS sssssssssssmses Home Loans ﬂ

INITIAL PUBLIC OFFERING AND
LISTING: A MILESTONE ACHIEVED

The financial year 2023-24 marked a significant milestone for India Shelter Finance

Corporation Limited as we successfully listed the shares on the National Stock Exchange

(NSE) and the Bombay Stock Exchange (BSE) on December 20, 2023. The Initial Public

Offering (IPO) was a resounding success, garnering overwhelming interest from investors

across various categories. Our successful IPO listing is a testament to our commitment to providing

affordable housing solutions and our focus on sustainable growth. Our strong
distribution network, diversified product portfolio, and customer-centric
approach have been the driving forces behind our success. We will continue to
leverage these strengths while exploring new opportunities in the affordable
housing segment. We are humbled by the trust placed in us by our investors,
and this milestone will further motivate us to execute our strategies and create
value for all our stakeholders.

- MD & CEO

<silndiaShelter

Home Loans

This marks the beginning of a new chapter for India Shelter Finance Corporation Limited. With a strengthened
financial position and enhanced visibility, we are well-positioned to capitalise on the growing demand for
affordable housing in India while maintaining our commitment to quality and customer satisfaction.
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HIGHLIGHTS
OF THE YEAR

OPERATIONAL & FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS SUSTAINABILITY HIGHLIGHTS
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A RETAIL-FOCUSSED AFFORDABLE
HOUSING FINANCE COMPANY

India Shelter Finance Corporation Limited (‘India Shelter, ‘our Company’ or ‘We’) is equipped
with an extensive distribution network and a scalable technology infrastructure that spans
across our business operations and the entire loan life cycle. Our Company specialises in
providing housing loans and loans against property, offering our customers comprehensive
financial solutions to meet their diverse needs.

Established in 2010, India Shelter specialises in serving
self-employed individuals with a focus on first-time home
loan takers in low and middle-income segments across
Tier 2 and Tier 3 cities in India.

Our Company leverages technology and analytics

across our operations and throughout the customer life
cycle, which includes onboarding, underwriting, asset
quality monitoring, collections and customer service. We
have implemented a paperless approach to customer
acquisition and onboarding, with tailored mobile
solutions that cater to different stages of the lending
process.

With a deep commitment to governance, we stay
dedicated to serving the expansive yet under-penetrated
affordable housing finance industry, focussing on
underserved customers through a blend of customer
experience and technology.

70%

First Time Mortgage Borrowers

J

90%

Borrowers belong to
Tier 2 &Tier 3 Cities

~

J

76%

Low-Income Group and Middle-
Income Group Borrowers

~

J

98%

Women Applicant

~

72%

Self-Employed

____________________________________________________________________
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SETTING THE
FOUNDATION

India Shelter is a catalyst for social
impact, contributing to the building of
a more inclusive India. By addressing
the pressing issue of homeownership
for low- and middle-income individuals,
our Company fosters a sense of pride
and belonging within communities.

: . ) y
At India Shelter, we have emerged as a _ A" » ‘ VALU Es

leading player in the realm of affordable
housing finance, owing to the right blend
of innovative underwriting strategies

and a strong understanding of the

HONESTY

requirements of our target segment. " il 5 - We believe in
Our Company’s alternative income o ul . ' : maintaining a lasting
assessment methods and technology
driven processes strategically address the
challenges encountered by traditional

lenders in assessing self-employed

brand that requires
honesty and integrity.

borrowers. This proactive approach 4 7 vy 2 R y e . A — RESPECT
ensures equitable and inclusive access ' ‘ o . s :

) ) , ) We believe in treating all
to credit. India Shelter's commitment 9

_ ) of our stakeholders with
to innovation extends beyond

lending by leveraging technology
to streamline processes, enhance
efficiency, and reach more customers.

decency and respect.

India Shelter’s foundation story is one
of determination, resilience, and a firm HARDWORK

belief in the power of dreams. Our | — L At India Shelter, hard work
Company’'s commitment to excellence ! ' is the backbone that holds
has propelled it to achieve consistent ' the weight of our objectives
and impressive growth. This quality helps and primary responsibilities

. as we endeavour to improve
us establish ourselves as a force to be P

reckoned with in the housing finance housing finance availability

landscape. With our unique blend of ' : : b L - — .
experience, expertise, and passion for ' ' ‘

for everyone in the country.

innovation, we are well-positioned to
continue our successful journey and
redefine the boundaries of the industry.
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MD & CEO’S
MESSAGE

'/ |

Dear Shareholders,

It is my privilege to present our
Annual Report for the financial
year 2023-24 and share the
remarkable journey of India
Shelter Finance Corporation
Limited’s progress with you. This
year has been an incredible and
transformative one, marked by
strong financial performance
and rapid footprint expansion
for sustaining high growth.

/4

The IPO Listing Story

We are driven by a purpose, a commitment to serve communities
underserved by traditional financial institutions, particularly in Tier
2 and Tier 3 cities. Our operations are defined by transparency,
and our commitment to customer service is guided by integrity.
By harnessing our technological capabilities, we ensure that our
services are not only efficient but also widely accessible. This
dedication helps us empower underserved communities, making
a real difference where it matters the most.

This commitment to our purpose was evident in the successful
completion of our Initial Public Offering (IPO) and subsequent
listing on the NSE & BSE, which marked a significant milestone for
us. I would like to express my sincere gratitude to all our investors
for their support in making our IPO a resounding success with a
26% listing premium. The total size of the IPO was % 1,200 Crs, of
which the primary issue amounted to ¥ 800 Crs. The funds raised
through the IPO have augmented the capital base, a necessary
impetus to expand our operations, reach more customers, and
impact underserved communities. This momentous occasion was
the culmination of years of dedication, perseverance, and a belief
in our mission to serve affordable housing. It was a surreal and
humbling experience as we rang the ceremonial bell, ushering in
a new era of growth and opportunity for India Shelter.

Growing Affordable Housing Sector
Providing the Necessary Boost

Our focus on the affordable housing sector has been a critical
driver of our growth, and we are committed to further expanding
our footprint in this space. We believe that this segment

provides significant potential and are proud to contribute to
developing India's housing sector. Our focus on this segment has
enabled us to serve a large and growing population that needs
affordable housing solutions. According to data reports, there is a
requirement for many crores of houses in this segment, typically
categorised as the Low-Income Group (LIG) and Middle-Income
Group (MIG) sector, where the monthly income ranges from

¥ 25,000 to X 60,000.

4 )

.i > 70% of Loans

First-Time Mortgage Buyers

® J

While progress in meeting this demand has been limited, we
acknowledge the growing awareness and advancements in this
area, largely driven by developments in infrastructure. As demand
persistently rises and progress continues, the scope for affordable
housing solutions is increasing.

Our focus on the affordable housing sector
has been a critical driver of our growth, and
we are committed to further expanding

our footprint in this space. We believe that
this segment provides significant potential
and are proud to contribute to developing
India’s housing sector. Our focus on this
segment has enabled us to serve a large and
growing population that needs affordable
housing solutions.

Tackling this monumental challenge represents an opportunity
for India Shelter and the entire affordable housing sector. We are
committed to expanding our impact and sustaining the positive
momentum we have achieved in the 15 states where we operate.

Key Financial and Operational
Developments during the Year

During the year, we witnessed strong Asset Under Management
(AUM) growth of 40% year-on-year, led by a 35% year-on-

year increase in disbursements. Over the years, we have been
experiencing 30-40% consistent growth, and our strategy to
collaborate with people through technology is playing out well.
We are confident about our medium-term growth backed by a
strong distribution structure covering 15 states where 94% of the
mortgage industry lies. We will continue to focus on servicing
self-employed individuals in this segment, while maintaining a
balanced approach to growth, asset quality, and profitability.

Our liquidity pipeline remains strong, supported by effective
Asset-Liability Management. Our total income for the year
increased by 42% year-on-year, while our portfolio yield remained
steady at 14.9%. We have broadened our borrowing sources to
include more than 35 counter parties, and our cost of funds has
been maintained at 8.8%.

Our margins remained in line with our guidance for the medium
term at~6%. Operating expenses increased by 30% and Net Total
Income grew by 44%, resulting in operating leverage. Our Profit
After Tax (PAT) for the year was ¥ 248 Crs, up 59% year-on-year.
Our Return on Assets (ROA) for the year was at 4.9% and Return
on Equity (ROE) for the year was at 14.0%.

____________________________________________________________________
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Focussing on the Underserved
Customer Group

India Shelter remains committed to identifying and serving
underserved customer groups. We have focussed on specific
market segments—Affordable Housing and Loan Against
Property—that have been overlooked by larger players in the
sector. This has helped us fulfill our mission of providing financial
inclusion to those whom the mainstream financial sector has
traditionally underserved.

In line with our mission, we have strategically expanded our
footprint in lower-tier cities, prioritising underserved borrowers.
This initiative is underpinned by a comprehensive grasp of

local credit dynamics and property markets, reinforced by the
appointment of the Middle-Management from within each state.

The substantial number of branches opened in recent years is
expected to improve productivity across our existing network,
facilitating future growth. We are committed to annual expansion,
with plans to add 30 to 40 branches, reinforcing our distribution
network for enhanced performance. Recognising the fact that it
takes time for new branches to reach peak efficiency, our focus
extends to boosting productivity.

4 )

N
¢+ with a Strong Distribution
Network /

s > 15 States

4 > 30-35%

We are committed to annual expansion with
plans to add 30 to 40 branches, reinforcing
our distribution network for enhanced
performance. Recognising the fact that it
takes time for new branches to reach peak
efficiency, our focus extends to boosting
productivity.

Technological Integration to
Enhance Operating Efficiency

We are pioneers in embracing technology across various
functions, including origination, underwriting, collections, and
servicing, adopting a technology-first approach since 2013.

We were among the early adopters of Salesforce in the Indian
housing finance industry and have invested in technology since
our inception, focussing on ease of doing business and lower
turnaround times.

We have developed mobility apps for customers, sales, credit,
technical, and collections teams, enabling paperless operations
and APl integration with third-party service providers. Our entire
loan lifecycle processes are paperless.

We are pioneers in embracing technology
across various functions, including
origination, underwriting, collections,

and servicing, adopting a technology-first
approach since 2013. We were among the
early adopters of Salesforce in the Indian
housing finance industry and have invested
in technology since our inception, focussing
on ease of doing business and lower
turnaround times.

Moreover, we have developed machine learning algorithms to
predict the likelihood of customer default and increase customer
engagement for fraud checks. Our underwriting process involves
four to five field interactions before disbursal, with extensive field
checks, a 'maker-checker' mechanism, and tech augmentation to
ensure a strong credit appraisal. Our collections process is deeply
integrated with technology, using models to predict bounce rate,
forward flow, and plan collection routes for employees.

Our field teams are empowered to make subjective assessments
of borrowers' income and collateral, while leveraging technology
to independently assess our borrowers' repayment capability and
collateral valuation. This approach allows for the monitoring of
deviations from credit policy and underwriting norms, improving
the scalability of our business model.

Conclusion and Expression of
Gratitude

As we look ahead, we remain determined to pursue providing
affordable housing solutions and empowering the underserved
segments of our society. With our strong foundation, innovative
spirit, and commitment to excellence, we are confident in our
ability to create long-term value for all our stakeholders while
positively impacting the lives of countless individuals and
communities.

| would like to express my sincere gratitude to our esteemed
Board members, regulators, shareholders, valued customers

and dedicated employees for their relentless support and trust.

It is through our collective efforts that we have achieved these
notable milestones and laid the foundation for sustainable
growth. As we move ahead, we remain committed to our mission
of empowering communities through inclusivity, integrity, and
technological advancements. We look forward to sharing more
success stories with you in the years to come, continuing to
Create a positive impact together.

Rupinder Singh
Managing Director & Chief Executive Officer
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FINANCIAL
PRUDENCE Rin Crs) (%)

Net Worth Return on Assets
At India Shelter, our financial performance over the past fiscal years reflects
} ) ) ] 848 937 1,076 1,241 2,299 3.0 4.1 4.5 4.1 49
our ongoing commitment to financial strength and operational excellence. - -
Throughout this period, our Company has demonstrated resilience and — —
L3 (3 o o o o (3 o - -
adaptability in navigating the evolving economic landscape. With a focus — [ — —
on prudent risk management and sustainable growth strategies, we have — — — — — — —
maintained a steady trajectory, ensuring stability and value for our stakeholders. — — — — — — — —
b b b b b b b b b
b D b b b b b b b
[ b b b b b b b b b
b b b b b b b b b b
b b b b b b b b b b
__am - - - - __am - - - -
2019-20 202021 2021-22  2022-23 2019-20 202021  2021-22  2022-23
R inCrs) R in Crs) (%) (%)
Assets under Management’ Disbursement? Return on Equity Gross Stage-3 Assets
1,520 2,199 3,073 4,359 6,084 551 895 1,295 1,964 2,646 5.7 9.8 12.8 134 14.0 14 19 2.1 1.1 1.0
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2019-20 2020-21 202122  2022-23 2019-20 2020-21 202122  2022-23 2019-20  2020-21 2021-22  2022-23 2019-20  2020-21 2021-22  2022-23
R in Crs) R in Crs) (%) )
Total income PAT Net Stage-3 Assets Book Value per Share
230 323 460 606 861 47 87 128 155 248 1.0 14 16 0.8 0.7 101.1 1106 1245 142.7 2153
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'Excludes the partner’s share of loan assets originated and assigned under co-lending arrangements
2Includes partner’s share of loan assets originated and assigned under co-lending arrangement
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THE JOURNEY
OF GROWTH

India Shelter has embarked on a remarkable journey since 2011, evolving

into a rapidly expanding affordable housing finance company. Our Company’s
journey testifies to our firm commitment to making a difference in the lives of
our customers. Founded with a vision of providing accessible and affordable
housing solutions, we have embarked on a path of continuous growth and
expansion. Over the years, at India Shelter, we have strategically extended our
reach, establishing a strong footprint across a wider geographical area. This
expansion reflects India Shelter’s dedication to serving a broader audience and
catering to the diverse housing needs within the Indian market.
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2022-2024:

AUM (InZ Crs) 2022

b 20717-2021

b 2074-2016

2014
t AUM Crosses % 100 Crs
AUM (In% Crs) 117
2015
e AUM Crosses % 200 Crs
2011-2013
2011

t® Presencein 7 States

t# Commenced Operations from Rajasthan | 201 6
i Investment from Westbridge Capital

4 First Investment by Sequoia

4

399
2012

4 ICRA Credit Rating of BB+ (stable) ’
21

2013

i Expanded to 5 states |

i Investment from Nexus Venture Partners

58

(@ PAT Crossed %100 Crs
(# West Bridge Capital Acquires Majority Stake

2023
2017 @ Care Credit Rating upgraded to A+ (Positive)
(# AUM Crossed % 500 Crs ’ 4,359
548
2024
2018 (# AUM Crosses % 6,000 Crs
t ICRA Credit Rating upgraded to A- (Positive) i1 Listed on BSE and NSE
(% Opened the 1st Branch in the South “# India Rating and Research assign
801 6,084
2019

{# AUM Crosses % 1,000 Crs
4 ICRA Credit Rating upgraded to A (Stable)

1,178

2020

(# Presencein 12 States ’

1,520

2021

(# Presencein 15 States
(e Crossed 100 Branches

2,199
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A DECADE OF
PERFORMANCE EXCELLENCE

Reflecting on the past decade, our Company’s performance has been remarkable. We have
witnessed steady growth in operational and financial aspects. This provides an overview of
our journey, underscoring our commitment to excellence.

CAGR

FY14  FY15 FY16 FY17 FY18 FY19 FY20 FY21 FY22 FY23 FY24 (%)
o

11¥g | N9,
OPERATIONAL ﬂ ALl '
II' I ilil_ I
81 86 115 130 183 223
12 12 15 15 15 15
8,552 12,823 15,730 20,117 24354 27602 33607 43328 58552 80,791
254 420 523 740 1,126 1,219 1,576 2,200 2,709 3,323
Disbursements
146 225 236 404 566 551 895 1,295 1,964 2,646 42%
(In% Crs)
AUM
228 399 548 801 1,178 1,520 2,199 3,073 4359 6,084 48%

(In% Crs)
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(In ¥ Crs)

CAGR

(o @)

FY14

e FINANCIAL
14 19 45
Income
O ti
Expenses
Profit before
2 11
Tax
Profit after Tax ] 3 8
FY14 FY15 FY16

RATIOS

Cost to 38.6%
Income
GNPA 0.2%
1.3%
Leverage 1.7
2.3%
83.2%

FY15

84.6%

0.2%

1.7%

29

5.0%

44.0%

FY16

72.9%

0.3%

2.6%

2.0

5.2%

122.2%

FY17

37

32

21

351

FY17

52.4%

0.7%

4.0%

1.7

6.7%

109.0%

FY18

91

57

32

22

568

FY18

62.3%

1.3%

2.9%

1.7

4.9%

100.6%

FY19

77

41

30

800

FY20

80

12

64

47

848

FY20

FY21

85

20

113

87

937

FY21

63.5%

1.4%

2.7%

1.7

4.4%

91.2%

51.5%

1.3%

3.0%

1.9

5.7%

81.1%

39.1%

1.9%

4.1%

24

9.8%

71.5%

FY22

312

133

12

167

128

1,076

FY22

42.7%

2.1%

4.5%

2.8

12.8%

55.9%

FY23

398

182

14

202

155

1,241

FY23

45.7%

1.1%

4.1%

3.2

13.4%

52.7%

FY24

574

236

19

319

248

2299,

41.1%

1.0%

4.9%

29

14.0%

70.9%

(%)

68%

44%
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GEOGRAPHICAL STATE-WISE BRANCH PRESENCE
REACH

At India Shelter, we have bolstered the scale of our operations and amplified our branch
network by embracing a strategy centred on strengthening our footprint in regions with
high demand for affordable housing finance. While the feet-on-street approach is centered

around physical interaction with customers, the digital interface assists us in accessing a

wider customer base. 223 BRANCHES
Our Company’s longstanding presence in these states has We added 40 new branches during the year

offered us invaluable insights into the unique intricacies of to deepen our presence in existing locations, -

affordable housing finance within each locale. This experience

has empowered us with a better understanding of local aiming to improve branch prOdUCtWIty and

businesses and property regulations, facilitating more informed utilise operating Ieverage, with an increase in

underwriting decisions grounded in precise evaluations of cash branch vintage

flows and collateral.

4 )

= 223

CE— Total Branches

3>'|5

Presence across States

Disclaimer: This map is a generalised illustration only for the ease of the reader’s
understanding of the locations and is not intended to be used for reference
purposes. The representation of political boundaries and the names of geographical
features/States do not necessarily reflect the actual position. The Company or any
of its Directors, officers or employees cannot be held responsible for any misuse or
misinterpretation of any information or design thereof.

g 90%

Tier Il & Tier lll Cities




BUSINESS
PORTFOLIO

India Shelter is committed to driving financial inclusion and empowering the under
banked population in India. For over a decade, our Company’s range of affordable
financial products has been specifically designed to address homeownership and
property-related financial requirements. This comprehensive product range fosters
inclusivity by making homeownership a more attainable dream for many.

Home Loans

At India Shelter, we provide home loans for internal or

external repairs to existing homes, upgradation of existing

homes (including addition of rooms and floors), self-

construction, plot purchase and property purchase.

-

)

.3.538¢

J

/

il
&>

~
< 1 ,482 Crs

Disbursement

J

’\’-IO Lacs

Average Ticket Size

~

Loan Against Property

Our Company provides secured loans, disbursed
with an identified property mortgaged as
collateral. Our loans against property primarily

include self-occupied residential properties.

Our core focus remains
on providing financial
support to first-time
home loan applicants,
particularly self-
employed individuals in
Tier Il and Tier Ill cities
in India.

Through our business
reach, we offer loan
against property
and financial aid for
the purchase and
self-construction of
residential properties.

~ )
_/‘ 3 2 546 Crs
-l-l-l-l- > AUM ’
o J
s )
o > 4 1 ,1 64 Crs
N\ ) Disbursement
o J
- 9 h
AN 7 Lacs
El > Average Ticket Size
s J
s )

98%

SORP

-
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THE BROADER VISION

With a strong focus
on financial inclusion
and promotion
of affordable
housing, we aim to

empower women,
who play a pivotal
role in households.
By prioritising
their economic
empowerment, we
not only enhance
household stability
but also contribute
to broader societal
progress.

-==IndiaShelter
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As of 31 March,
2024, self-employed
customers
represented 72% of
our Assets Under
Management
(AUM). 98% of our
borrowers included
women applicant
and 70% of our
customers were
first-time mortgage
borrowers.




OUR
STRENGTHS

At India Shelter, an array of formidable strengths fuels our position in the housing finance
sector. Our Company takes immense pride in our journey of success and innovation within
the housing finance sector. Our achievements are anchored by a myriad of key strengths
and strategic initiatives. Furthermore, from our deep understanding of customer needs to
our robust tech-driven business model, diversified distribution strategies, and unyielding
focus on governance and creditworthiness, we have solidified our position as a leader in the

industry.

Deep Understanding

of Customer Needs

With a strong 14-year vintage, at India Shelter, we have
developed a deep understanding of the customer segment
and micro-markets we serve. Strengthened with strong
domain knowledge, our Company’s understands the specific
financial circumstances and challenges the low- and middle-
income customer segment faces. We have tailored our
underwriting process towards assessing their creditworthiness.

Tech-Driven Company
with Scalable

Business Model

As a technology-driven company, we leverage our cloud-
based IT infrastructure to enhance lead sourcing and
customer fulfilment processes. Our Company’s focus on
real-time updates and improved customer experiences
drives efficiency, productivity, and business growth. At
India Shelter, our in-house tools such as the Business Rule
Engine (BRE) and Radial tool, enhance policy compliance,
streamline operations, and optimise costs as we scale.

Diversified ‘Phygital’

Distribution

Our Company has built an extensive and diversified
distribution network. We are present in 15 states,
covering 94% of the affordable housing finance market.
By implementing a penetrative expansion strategy,

at India Shelter, we have targeted regions with high
economic growth and demand for affordable housing
finance, particularly in Tier Il and Tier lll cities. The
‘Phygital’ strategy optimises customer acquisition costs,
enhances sales and productivity, and strengthens
customer relationships, reflecting our extensive,
diversified, and pan-India distribution network.

Corporate Overview > OUr Strengths == = = = = = o o e e e e e T ST SSSSSsSssssmssssmse- —_—

Curated In-House

Processes Enable
Robust Asset Quality

At India Shelter, with our robust in-house infrastructure,

we ensure seamless operations and independence across

key functions. Our Company prioritises localised hiring for
branches to strengthen customer connections. The in-house
origination model enables us to conduct all lending operations
internally, reducing turnaround time and transaction costs.
Our dedicated customer service solution, iServe, ensures
prompt resolution of customer concerns. This approach

has provided pricing power for loans, allowing us to offer
competitive terms while maintaining healthy margins. As

of 2023-24, 98% of disbursed loans originated in-house,
demonstrating the effectiveness of our Company’s operations.

Professional Management

Led by Industry
Veterans on Board

India Shelter’s Board comprises industry veterans
and Senior Management Personnel from diverse
backgrounds, including credit evaluation, risk
management, recovery, treasury, technology, and
marketing. They bring varied experience in financial
services, contributing to our Company’s business
growth and expansion into new geographies. Our
employee retention and recognition are bolstered by
our Employee Stock Options Plans (ESOPs), aligning
our team’s interests with our long-term success.

Strong Focus on

Governance

At India Shelter, we are highly focussed on
governance, which is evident from our comprehensive
approach to transparency, accountability, and ethical
conduct. Governance practices are deeply ingrained in
our Company’s culture, guiding our decision-making
processes, mitigating risks, and ensuring the protection
of stakeholders'interests. By prioritising governance,
we not only enhance our reputation but also build
trust with stakeholders, laying a solid foundation

for sustainable growth and long-term success.

*IND RA (AA- Stable), CARE Rating (A+ Positive), ICRA (A+ Positive)

-==IndiaShelter
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Enhancement of

(s @)

Creditworthiness

At India Shelter, we are focussed on diversifying our
borrowing, optimising costs, and maintaining a positive
ALM position. Our Company's current credit rating stands
at AA- (Stable)*. Our borrowing costs were contained at
8.8% as of 31 March, 2024. Our Company is committed
to enhancing our credit rating for better funding access
and exploring co-lending for inclusive growth.

___________________
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ROBUST UNDERWRITING
PROCESS

At India Shelter, our comprehensive underwriting, collections, and risk management
systems serve as the cornerstone of our expansion in the affordable housing finance sector,
safeguarding asset quality at every turn. By prioritising the empowerment of women
customers and promoting financial inclusion, our Company’s dedicated teams carefully
conduct in-depth credit evaluations, technical assessments, and legal verifications.
Leveraging technology like mobile-first applications and verification APls, we streamline
loan approvals and conduct preventive checks. Our underwriting process, focussing on the
‘4 Cs’ - Customer Profile, Cash Flow Assessment, Collateral Evaluation, and Controls—enables

-==IndiaShelter
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LEGAL EVALUATION

t# Ensured all mortgages are t# Encumbrance: Performing title

executable under the SARFESI Act searches to verify encumbrances

t# Title Check: Conducting legal
opinions for title verification

(% Document Authenticity:
Vetting legal documents
for authenticity

CREDIT CONTROL

i In-house Business Rule Engine is i Centralised Credit and Hindsight

us to assess creditworthiness effectively, ensuring sustainable growth.

utilised for conducting checks on
customers digital presence, fraud
history, negative database cross-

Control Unit is responsible for
evaluating each proposal after
approval by the field credit team

CUSTOMER PROFILING

t# We prioritise assessing business t# We utilise references from borrowers t# We consider lifestyle indicators

vintage, sustainability, and within the same industry or and living standards when

customer repayment behaviour geographic region as the applicant selecting customer profiles for

across different business cycles a holistic credit assessment

% We utilise credit bureau reports
to evaluate and establish the
repayment credentials of customers

CASH FLOW ASSESSMENT

4 We disburse funds based on a
comprehensive understanding
of the intended utilisation of the
loan proceeds by the customer

t# We excel at assessing customer % We leverage technology for our
credit processes, with real-time
KYC validation and API-based bank

statement analysis, including Account

cash flows and investing significant
time at customers’ business
premises through discussions on
business and household income Aggregator framework, supported

L by our BRE to minimise errors
t# We conduct household visits to Y

triangulate the income, expenses,
and savings of the applicant

COLLATERAL EVALUATION

% Geo-tagging/Radial Variances: t# Local By-laws: Checking
compliance with local regulations

4 |dentification and Occupancy:

Ensuring proper identification and Utilising geo-tagging and the

occupancy status of the collateral radial tool for accurate valuation '

Marketability: Assessing the

marketability of the collateral

and before any disbursal takes place,
verifying cash flow assessments
conducted by the field credit team

references, pending legal or litigation
issues, and other adverse findings

t# Centralised Risk Containment
Unit verifies the authenticity of
documents provided by customers

(4 Maker Checker at critical
processes is implemented
to ensure accuracy
and authenticity in
critical processes

t# Requirement for all
applicants to visit the branch

51%

LTV

46%

FOIR

98%

SORP

=1 %

?.IO Lacs

Average Ticket Size?

"-On AUM | ?-On Disbursement
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OPERATING
ENVIRONMENT

In the current operating landscape, India’s economy is resilient, with a focus on robust
domestic demand and growth in key sectors. HFCs and NBFCs are vital for financing
underserved populations, especially in areas like affordable housing. There is also a broader
trend towards financial inclusion and digital transformation in the financial services sector.

RISING POPULARITY

OF EFFICIENT NBFCs —
EMPOWERING
UNDERSERVED
SEGMENTS

NBFCs have emerged as a crucial source of finance for

THE GROWING
AFFORDABLE —
HOUSING FINANCE

AND LAP SEGMENT

The growing Affordable Housing Finance and Loan
Against Property (LAP) segment signifies a strategic shift
among Affordable Housing Finance Companies (AHFCs) to

a large segment of the population, including SMEs and
economically unserved and underserved people. They have
managed to cater to the diverse needs of the borrowers

in the fastest and most efficient manner, considering their

OPPORTUNITIES

IN THE UNDER —_—
ROBUST \‘ PENETRATED
ECONOMIC RURAL MARKET

vast geographical scope, understanding of the various

financial requirements of the people and extremely fast
diversify their loan portfolios. While housing loans continue

to dominate AHFCs'loan books, accounting for 74% of
the total share as of 2023, there is a noticeable trend
towards increasing the share of non-housing segments,

turnaround times. Non-bank money lenders have played
an important role in the financial inclusion process

by supporting the growth of millions of MSMEs and

LANDSCAPE

Despite global geopolitical tensions, India’s economy is

India’s housing shortage has been well documented over
the years with potential demand for housing by 2022

particularly LAP. This move is aimed at mitigating margin
pressures and complying with regulatory guidelines such

independently employing people. The sector has grown
significantly, with several players with heterogeneous
business models starting operations. The last few years

as the RBI's requirement for HFCs to have 60% of their
portfolios in housing finance by 2024. AHFCs are focussing
on LAP within the non-housing segment, unlike prime
HFCs that diversify through builder book/construction
finance. This strategic shift underscores AHFCs'adaptability

expected to grow by 7.6% in 2023-24, driven by robust pegged at 100 million units as per the Reserve Bank of have seen a transformation in the Indian financial services

domestic demand and strong growth in the manufacturing India’s Report of the Committee on the Development landscape. The increasing penetration of neo-banking,

of Housing Finance Securitisation Market in September
2019. LIG (Low Income Group) and EWS (Economic
Weaker Section) account for 95% of the shortage,
while MIG (Middle Income Group) and above account
for the remaining 5%. Total demand to fulfil the entire

and services sectors. Demand for credit is likely to remain digital authentication, the rise of UPI and mobile phone
strong, especially among MSMEs and retail, projected to
grow by 13.5-14.0%. NBFCs have emerged as a crucial

source of finance for a large segment of the population,

including SMEs and underserved & unserved communities,

usage as well as mobile internet has resulted in the

modularisation of financial services, particularly credit.
and proactive approach to evolving market dynamics.

At India Shelter, our focus on the affordable housing finance

We have witnessed significant growth in the affordable segment aligns with the trend of NBFCs catering to the

shortage in value terms is estimated at ¥ 50-60 trillion.
Understanding and bridging this housing gap is crucial
for India’s inclusive growth and sustainable development.

efficiently meeting diverse financial needs. Non-bank housing finance segment, achieving a remarkable

5-year CAGR of 32% in assets under management
from 2020-21 to 2023-24. Our scalable technology
infrastructure and extensive distribution network

. . . financial needs of underserved populations. Our Company’s
money lenders have played a vital role in financial

inclusion, supporting the growth of millions of MSMEs and significant AUM growth serves as a testament to our efforts
in addressing the housing finance requirements of this
segment. By tapping into market demand, expanding

our customer base, and enhancing our revenue streams,

self-employed individuals. The percentage of urbanisation By targeting this segment, India Shelter can tap into

is also expected to increase further in the years to come,
thereby translating into higher demand for housing and

a market with substantial growth potential, where have played pivotal roles in expanding our business

demand for housing finance is on the rise due to factors operations. This strategic approach has empowered

we have positioned ourselves as a key player in providing

related amenities in urban areas. Several drivers such as Us to meet the evolving needs of customers seeking

financial solutions backed by property assets. The growth
witnessed in both the affordable housing finance and

like increasing disposable income and a growing
desire for homeownership. This strategic approach
allows our Company to cater to a segment that is

. L : . . financial solutions to segments that are traditionally
rising urbanisation, growing disposable income, favourable _ S
. underserved by mainstream financial institutions.
demographics and government measures are expected

to lead to higher mortgage penetration going forward.

often underserved by traditional financial institutions, LAP segments underscores our commitment to serving

At India Shelter, we primarily finance the purchase and presenting a unique opportunity for us to expand our a diverse customer base and seizing opportunities

self-construction of residential properties by first-time in India’s burgeoning housing finance market.

reach and generate higher yields on advances. The

home loan takers through home loans and also offer under penetrated rural market offers India Shelter a

loans against property. Our focus is on serving low- and promising avenue for growth and market expansion,

middle-income, salaried and self-employed individuals positioning us to capitalise on the increasing demand
in Tier Il and Tier lll cities in India. The majority of our

customers have a monthly income of up to ¥ 50,000, and

for affordable housing finance in these regions.

our loan portfolio comprises mostly loans with principal
amounts less than X 2.5 million. India Shelter maintains a
conservative average loan-to-value ratio for home loans
and loans against property, with a lending portfolio
entirely dedicated to the retail segment and a focus on
loans with self-occupied residential property as collateral.
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STRATEGIC
IMPERATIVES

At India Shelter, our strategies underscore our commitment to innovation, growth, and

customer-centricity in the affordable housing finance sector. It centres on our key priorities

and initiatives aimed at driving sustainable success. By focussing on deepening market
penetration, enhancing operational efficiency, and fostering a culture of honesty &
transparency, our Company aims to solidify our position as a leader in the industry.

EXPANDING REACH

[ f) AND DEEPENING
PENETRATION

At India Shelter, we aim to expand our footprint in
adjacent markets, strategically increasing our reach and
penetration in untapped areas. This, along with improved
branch efficiency, will drive overall growth.

X4
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OPTIMISING

{5/ BORROWING
STRATEGY

Recognising the importance of a diversified and cost-effective
borrowing approach, we plan to enhance our credit rating,
prioritise long-term borrowings, and explore co-lending
opportunities to secure capital at competitive rates.

LEVERAGING

TECHNOLOGY FOR
EFFICIENCY

Technology will play a pivotal role in our Company’s growth
strategy, improving lead generation and customer service
processes. Internal data models will also be used to identify
potential default risks and strengthening financial stability.

(o @)

BUILDING BRAND

EQUITY AND
SUSTAINABILITY

At India Shelter, we aim to boost our brand presence by
focussing on Tier Il and Tier Ill cities. Additionally, fostering a
positive work environment will help attract and retain top
talent, supporting our Company’s long-term sustainability.




OUR INTEGRATED
BUSINESS MODEL

Capitals Engaged

Financial
Capital

Manufactured
Capital

Intellectual
Capital

Human
Capital

Social and
Relationship
Capital

Inputs

Lo}
Lo}
o
Lo}
Lo}
s
Lo}

BEBBRBRRB

Equity

Assets

Borrowings

Diversified Lender Base

Branches
Corporate Office

Data Analytics and Business
Intelligence

E-NACH, E-Sign and E-Stamp

API Libraries

Cybersecurity Framework
Underwriting Model

Scalable Technology Infrastructure
Mobile Applications

Employee Base

Employee Benefits

Learning & Development
Employee Engagement Initiatives

Regulators
Customers
Investors
Lenders

Rating Agencies
CSR Beneficiaries
Partners

OUR BUSINESS

&. PORTFOLIO

& Home Loan

t# Loan Against Property

Ay

~oa OUR
A\

\&~” VALUES
t# Honesty

t# Respect
t# Hardwork

&>~ ENABLERS

t# Deep Understanding
of Customer Needs

t# Tech-Driven Company with
Scalable Business Model

t# Diversified Phygital’
Distribution

Curated In-House Processes
Enable Robust Asset Quality

Professional Management Led
by Industry Veterans on Board

Strong Focus on Governance

Output

* Basic EPS

BEBRBRR

BB

BER B

L}
e
s

40% AUM Growth

T 248 Crs Profit after Tax
T 26.3 EPS*

4.9% ROA

14.0% ROE

223 Branches
15-State Coverage

99% E-Nach Mandates
98% E-Sign

92% Digital Collections
5 Applications

19,142 Person Hours
of Training

20% Women at

Head Office

23% of Employee Base,
excluding Frontline
Staff Covered Under
ESOP Programme

72% of EWS + LIG
38,789 CSR Beneficiaries

AA- (Stable) Credit Rating”

Outcomes

INVESTORS &
SHAREHOLDERS
t# Transparent Communication
t# Shareholder Value Creation

¢ Sustainable Growth

t# Strong Corporate Governance
and Ethics

™ N
TOMER
'.‘ CUSTO S

& Seamless Customer Service
& Experience

t# Fairness and Transparency

t#  Availability of Credit

N
ﬁ*o REGULATORS

? GOVERNMENT &

t# Compliance & Stability Assurance

t Inclusive Impact on the Economy

t Fair Treatment of Customers

‘ .n. EMPLOYEES

t# Skill Development & Diversity

t# Career Development Opportunities

‘ .n. SOCIETY

t® Awareness & Impact

t# Sustainable Development &
Progress

t# Social Welfare & Empowerment

"IND RA (AA - Stable), CARE Rating (A+ Positive), ICRA (A+Positive)
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SDGs Impacted

8

8

DEGENT WORK AND
ECONOMIC GROWTH

DECENT WORK AND
ECONOMIC GROWTH

DEGENT WORK AND
ECONOMIC GROWTH

o

GOOD HEALTH
AAND WELL-BEING

POV[KTV

il

]

GENDER
EQUALITY

¢

INDUSTRY, INNOVATION
AND INFRASTRUCTURE

&3

9 INDUSTRY, INNOVATION
AND INFRASTRUCTURE
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RESPONSIBLE
CONSUMPTION
AND PRODUCTION

IIEEENTWORKAND
[EDNUMIE GROWTH

GOOD HEALTH
AND WELL-BEING

‘SUSTAINABLE CITIES
AND COMMUNITIES
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INTELLECTUAL
CAPABILITIES

At India Shelter, we harness the power of technology and analytics across all facets

of our operations and throughout the customer life cycle. From onboarding and
underwriting to asset quality monitoring, collections, and customer services, our
innovative approach ensures efficiency and effectiveness at every step. By implementing
a paperless approach to customer acquisition and onboarding, complemented by
tailored mobile solutions, our Company strives to provide a seamless and personalised
lending experience for our customers.

STRONG TECH ARCHITECTURE ACROSS PROCESSES

Tech-Enabled Artificial
Processes Intelligence

Third-Party Mobility
Integrations Solutions
Customer
Data 360° View
Capture

Digital Loan
Approval

-==IndiaShelter

OUR IN-HOUSE MOBILE APP SOLUTIONS FOR
STREAMLINING ENTIRE LOAN LIFECYCLE

iSales
(Customer Acquisition)

t# Mobile app for new loan

applications and onboarding.

t# Enables online verification
and document capture.

(4 Facilitates real-time
submission of applications.

. -I‘!-Ij--
iCredit G —_— |
o oy e A P *
(Credit Underwriting) St ¢
[S— b

(% Mobile app for customer g
o T ) *
income assessment. T e 1
4 Online KYC checks. Y >
T ¥
4 Real-time submission of — »
reports to underwriters. .. 1

iTech

(Collateral Evaluation)

t# Mobile app for property
collateral valuation.

t# Generates detailed
valuation reports.

(e Provides GPS coordinates
of the property.

T km

B 203

PR T TSN ]

- balances in real-time.

iCollect
(Collections Management)

t# Enables EMI collection and
other dues from customers.

t# Provides 360° view of
customers payment history.

t# Updates outstanding

iServe
(Customer Service)

t# App for existing customers
to check loan status.

e Allows payment of EMIs
and pending dues.

i Supports service requests
in multiple languages.

92% Digital Collections

99 % E-Nach Mandates /\

L’ ) 98% E-Signing
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OUR MARKETING
SYMPHONY

At India Shelter, our marketing strategy seamlessly integrates technology, personalised
interactions, and data analytics to deliver a seamless customer experience. Our‘Phygital’
strategy combines a dedicated and experienced sales force with targeted social media
campaigns and data-driven customer insights. This allows our Company to not only nurture
trust-based relationships with potential homeowners but also optimise sales efforts and
maximise brand awareness. India Shelter’s marketing efforts include data analysis for
customer segmentation and targeting, allowing us to reach our audience effectively. By
utilising social media and client databases, we strategically target potential customers,
expanding our reach and engagement. Our marketing structure follows a multi-tiered
approach that includes various components and strategies, as detailed alongside.

A ‘PHYGITAL

% BLEND

Our ‘Phygital’ strategy seamlessly combines a dedicated and
experienced sales force with targeted social media campaigns
and data-driven customer insights. This allows us to:

(# Build Relationships: Foster trust and personalised
interactions with potential homeowners.

t# Optimise Sales Efforts: Concentrate resources
and efforts on the most promising leads.

(# Maximise Brand Awareness: Expand our reach and
establish brand recognition across various platforms.

MULTI-TIERED

DATA-DRIVEN

TARGETING

India Shelter’'s marketing strategies utilise data analytics to
segment and target customer audiences effectively. This
allows:

(% Customer Segmentation: Develop targeted messaging
and strategies for distinct customer groups based on
demographics, behaviour, and psychographics.

(4 Strategic Communication: Craft compelling
narratives across social media and client databases to
reach the right audience with the right message.

APPROACH

Our marketing strategy in today’s competitive landscape is about understanding our audience, building relationships, and guiding
them through a seamless customer journey. We incorporate several key tiers, working together to achieve this goal.

Strategic Marketing

t# Conduct market research to understand
customer needs and preferences

4 Identify target market segments based on
demographics, behaviour, and psychographics

t# Develop marketing strategies to reach
and engage with potential customers

t# Focus on market analysis, competitive
positioning, and identifying growth opportunities

Product Marketing

t# Create compelling value propositions
for different loan products

t# Develop product messaging that
highlights unique features and benefits

t# Communicate effectively to drive customer
interest, generate leads, and onboard customers

Digital Marketing

te  Utilise online channels like social media,
SEQ, and online advertising

i Expand reach and drive targeted campaigns
for lead generation and brand awareness

t# Engage third-party agencies for performance
marketing and media partnerships

Customer Relationship Management

t# Personalise customer communication for enhanced
engagement

i Ensure seamless grievance redressal and post-sales
support

@ Build customer loyalty and generate referrals through
satisfactory service

Public Relations & Advertising

t# Enhance brand visibility through industry events and
exhibitions

4 Issue press releases to improve brand reputation

(% Run targeted advertising campaigns to reach specific
audiences

____________________________________________________________________
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ENVIRONMENTAL
GUARDIANSHIP

At India Shelter, our environmental initiatives are centred around enhancing energy
efficiency and managing waste, including e-waste. Through digitalising our Company’s
lending process, we are committed to minimising paper usage and encouraging
sustainable practices throughout our operations. India Shelter has been certified by
JAN GRIHA for our Green Home initiative. This prestigious recognition highlights our
relentless pursuit of eco-conscious living and sets a new benchmark for sustainable
housing practices in the industry. We provide financing options tailored for green
housing projects and actively support eco-friendly initiatives within the housing sector.

Practising energy efficiency

Securing Green Home Certification by JAN GRIHA

Adhering to efficient waste and e-waste management

Promoting e-mobility

Financing in a sustainable manner through green housing
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INCLUSIVE CULTURE
FOR OUR PEOPLE

At India Shelter, we nurture human capital as a key responsibility, forming the backbone
of our operations. In line with this approach, we have adopted a three-dimensional
strategy: Get, Keep, and Grow. It focusses on effectively acquiring, retaining, and
developing the talent pool.

GET

India Shelter has implemented comprehensive strategies to attract
top-quality candidates, with 95% sourced through employee
referrals, highlighting the success of our referral programme.

KEEP

India Shelter promotes a culture of excellence, performance |‘
& meritocracy through various rewards and recognition
programmes, including Long Service, Adversity, ICON Awards,
Performance, Behind the Scenes, and Woman of Substance
Awards, celebrating excellence within our organisation.

GROW
At India Shelter, we have invested significantly in employee 6 O O O

development to support our ambitious business plans,

focussing on building capabilities and maximising potential.

CAREER

-==IndiaShelter
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ADVANCEMENT

At India Shelter, we focus on the career growth of our people,
with our leadership team actively supporting internal promotions
based on performance. We offer career discussions through our
Pragati programme, ensuring high-potential employees have
opportunities for professional growth within the organisation.

EMPLOYEE DEVELOPMENT
AND WELL-BEING

At India Shelter, we prioritise the development and well-being
of our employees, ensuring a healthy and balanced work
environment. Here are some initiatives that we have implemented:

t# Prarambh — A Leadership Journey

t# India Shelter Child Scholarship Programme
t# Mandatory Health Check-Up

t# Yoga Classes

t# Fitness Community

EMPLOYEE REWARD

'E@ AND RECOGNITION

At India Shelter, we foster a work culture that inspires
and motivates our employees to deliver their best each
day. Our Company firmly believes in recognising and

celebrating excellence, creating an environment that
promotes healthy competition and rewards outstanding
achievements. To achieve this, we have established a
robust Reward & Recognition programme that highlights
the exceptional contributions of our employees.

t# 19,142 Person hours of training provided in 2023-24

t# Multiple policies to create a safe and
conducive work environment

i 290+ Employees are covered under the ESOP
programme, comprising 9% of the total employee base
and 23% of the employee base, excluding frontline staff

;3

Employment generated in Tier Il, Il & IV cities

23

25% Women representation on the Board

20% Women representation at corporate office

..................
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CUSTOMER
DELIGHT

In our journey at India Shelter, we recognise the pivotal role of customer centricity in our
operations. Catering to customers within the low and middle-income strata underscores
our commitment of prioritising their needs and satisfaction. By tailoring financial solutions
to align with the unique requirements of these segments, fostering transparency, and
delivering efficient services, our Company demonstrates firm commitment to customer
centricity. This approach not only cultivates enduring customer loyalty but also propels our
overall success and growth within the affordable housing finance segment.

ELEVATING CUSTOMER DELIGHT THROUGH TECHNOLOGICAL ADVANCEMENTS

Integration of technology-led programmes
such as E-Nach, E-Sign, and E-Stamp

Streamlined onboarding
experience

Expedited disbursements with
thorough quality checks

Utilisation of data analytics
for credit underwriting

, Round-the-clock customer
Multi-channel customer , ,
service through IVR (Interactive
engagement .
Voice Response)

Seamless digital
service modules

Paperless
processes

-==IndiaShelter
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HOW DIGITALISATION BROUGHT INDIA SHELTER CLOSER TO CUSTOMERS

Boundary-Less Organisation Omni-Channel Transformation
Embracing digitalisation has led to a Integration of multiple touchpoints has facilitated
collaborative and interconnected organisation. a transition to an omni-channel strategy, ensuring

seamless customer interactions across various platforms.

Empowered Demand Forecasting

Digitalisation has strengthened India Shelter's demand forecasting capabilities by providing enhanced access to customer
preferences and responses across geographies, enabling better anticipation of market needs.

THE ROLE OF TECHNOLOGY WITHIN OUR BUSINESS

(1 Technology is integrated into every operation at India Shelter.

t# Our Company leverages technology to gain a comprehensive understanding of customers throughout their
engagement lifecycle.

(# Through technology, we offer the best turnaround time, address emerging customer needs, and provide
additional offerings, ultimately leading to higher customer retention.

t# Our Company thoroughly examines various technology options and tailors them to meet our specific
requirements, ensuring a seamless alignment between customer demands and our services.

(# We have introduced innovative business use cases of technology such as geo-tagging for radial
delinquency, valuation, and income assessment, lead eligibility and filtering, IRIS-based Aadhaar e-KYC with
built-in biometric scans on tablets, E-Stamping, and insurance calculators.
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HOW OUR COMPANY’S

TECHNOLOGY PERSONALITY
IS OUR BRAND

Simplifying Complex Processes

India Shelter excels at simplifying complex processes, automating
labour-intensive tasks, and delivering extended services instantly,
showcasing a commitment to efficiency and innovation.

Commitment to Service

We are renowned for our relentless commitment to serving
customers with a smile, assurance, and speed, highlighting a
customer-centric approach.

Innovative Business Practices

The ability to leverage technology empowers India Shelter

to engage in traditional business practices in a modern and
innovative manner. This approach challenges existing paradigms
with a sense of urgency, passion, and the ability to design
solutions that go beyond the ordinary, demonstrating a forward-
thinking and progressive attitude.

OURTECHNOLOGY

]
"'{’ﬁ INVESTMENTS HAVE
PRIORITISED

Flexible Systems

At India Shelter, our strategic investments focus on flexible
systems that facilitate smooth upgrades to the latest versions,
ensuring we remain updated with technology trends.

Pure Software-as-a-Service
(SaaS) Technologies

Our Company prioritises investments in pure Saa$S technologies,
which offer pricing based on usage, modular architecture, and
adaptability. This approach ensures we are constantly prepared
for future technological advancements.

Cloud Migration

We have taken steps to migrate all our knowledge capital to the
cloud, enabling online access to our systems and data anytime,
anywhere, enhancing flexibility and accessibility.

-

OUR COMPANY HAS

ACHIEVED A HIGH
LEVEL OF AUTOMATION

Mobile-Based Technology for Field Force

Investment in mobile-based technology for our entire field force,
aimed at improving responsiveness, saving time, and enhancing
customer satisfaction.

Investments in Top-Tier Systems

Prioritisation of investments in top-tier systems, efficient data
management, and third-party online data services to optimise
our Company'’s credit and operational functions.

Accessible Technology Stack

At India Shelter, our technology stack is accessible round the
clock, from anywhere, ensuring continuous availability and
convenience for our operations.

*Login to Sanction TAT of 4 days and Login to Disbursement TAT of 6 days

India Shelter Finance Corporation Limited

CASE STUDY

e Loan Granted for Construction

(]
\t/ Purposes (Uttarakhand)

Our customer applied for a home loan for construction on
a pre-owned parcel of land. The customer did not have any
previous loan history or documentary evidence of cash
flows.

Automated Income Assessment: Public data + cash
register app data

Radial Variances: Benchmarks and property value checks

E-Verification & Background Checks: Secure mobile &
bank verification (social media checks)

E-signing & Disbursement: Digital paperwork and fast
loan transfer

Loan approval in 4 days*
No paperwork (entire process digital)
Enhanced security (e-verification)

Improved customer experience (faster and transparent)
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FOR THE
COMMUNITY

At India Shelter, we are deeply dedicated to catalysing positive change by uniting our
employees and communities to create a profound impact on our society. Our Company’s
initiatives are strategically designed to empower communities through targeted
interventions in crucial areas such as healthcare, education, women empowerment,

and societal welfare. Guided by our corporate social responsibility (CSR) policy, we are
committed to implementing sustainable solutions that generate enduring benefits for the
communities we serve. Here are the details of some of India Shelter’s CSR initiatives:

OUR CSR INITIATIVES

Education Initiative — An initiative to empower young girls through education o

Under this initiative, we ar§ v.vorkin.g towards eradicating 8’500+
classroom hunger by providing mid-day meals to
underprivileged children in partnership with the Akshaya Patra

Government school children supported with mid-
day meals in Hubli and Jaipur

< 8,750,000

Contributed to Akshaya Patra Foundation under

Foundation.

our education initiative

-==IndiaShelter
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Healthcare Initiative - An initiative to support underprivileged women and .
young girls with better healthcare facilities

Through our healthcare initiative, we extend a helping hand We have partnered with the Impact Guru Foundation,
to underprivileged women and young girls, offering them

access to better healthcare facilities. This initiative embodies our underprivileged communities through enhanced

a collaboration that aims to illuminate the lives of
commitment to nurturing a healthier future, bringing rays of healthcare facilities. This initiative reflects our commitment
hope and healing to those in need. to making a meaningful impact and bringing positive

change to those in need.

X 8,817,288

Contributed to the Impact Guru Foundation

Under our healthcare initiative, we have partnered with Bansi

Vidya Memorial Trust. With this partnership, we are supporting
leukaemia-affected young girls by supporting their treatment
and providing financial support to them.

276 < 8,500,000

Contributed to the Bansi Vidya Memorial Trust

Children supported in the treatment against leukaemia

Women Empowerment Initiative — An initiative to upskill and empower young o«

girls and women from underprivileged areas

We have partnered with the Paralympic Committee of India to
empower para-athletes by extending financial support for their

< 3,990,000

training and providing sport kits, showcasing their incredible Contributedito ke RIC e I e

accomplishments, and promoting the importance of sports for
people with disabilities.

_=fIndiaShelter
' Home Loans
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STAKEHOLDER
ENGAGEMENT

At India Shelter, we integrate diverse stakeholder perspectives, concerns, and expectations

into our decision-making and practices through structured and inclusive engagement. Their
feedback drives our Company’s performance, aligning our efforts with their evolving needs.
This initiative builds trust, fosters relationships and creates shared value. We are committed

to open dialogue, listening and integrating feedback for sustainable outcomes.

Stakeholder

Group

Customers

Mode of Engagement

Loan officers, customer
service executive, credit
officers, technical &
legal team and branch
manager

Digital channels—social
media, SMS, E-mail,
Mobile app and call
centre

Customer satisfaction
surveys

Centralised customer
support desk

Frequency

Matters of
Importance

Knowledgeable and Ot
friendly staff

Availability of Lo}
relevant products
and services

Quick resolution of
problems

Convenience s
of carrying out

activities

Fairness and

transparency

Availability of credit

Right sizing of loans

Value Created for

Stakeholders

Active Live
Accounts - 80,791

A dedicated
customer service
team focussed on
improving customer
experience

Continuous training
of employees

Stakeholder

Group

Employees

@
=

Mode of Engagement

Internal publications and
circulars

Performance updates
Feedback and surveys

Learning and
development initiatives

Frequency

®
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Matters of
Importance

t# Career development

opportunities

(#  Responsive

grievance handling
process

t#  Regular training to

s

Value Created for

.2

s

Stakeholders

Employee-centricity
reflected through
various initiatives

19,142 person hours
of training provided

Annual awards

. learn and develop programmes
Remuneration '
new skills t#  Large ESOP Scheme
t#  Work-life balance
Communities/ Through our partner (% Supporting t#  Uplifting the
CSR NGOs community economically

D,
00

CSR projects

Supporting government
initiatives

development

(%  Addressing various

social issues

i Providing financial

literacy

weaker sections
(EWS) and low-
income groups (LIG)

India Shelter
Nakshatra: Our
educational initiative

India Shelter
Nav Jeevan: Our
Healthcare initiative

India Shelter Nayi
Umeed: initiative
for women'’s
empowerment

Investors/
Shareholders

BB BB BPEBERP

Annual General Meeting
Annual Report

Investor presentations
Investor/analyst meets
Media releases
Conference/video calls
Investor conferences

Roadshows

®

Timely Lo}
communication of
material information [

Shareholder value
creation

Strong corporate
governance and
ethics

Clear and consistent
business strategy

Disclosure of non-
financial metrics

Compliance and
transparency

Increased investor
engagement

Communicating

the business
strategy through the
quarterly results and
conference calls

Government
Regulators

Periodic meetings with
regulatory bodies

Representation through
various trade bodies and
forums

Other forms of
communication like
e-mails, and letters,
among others

i Timely reporting,

statutory and legal
compliance

(i  Fair treatment of

customers

(i  Effective

and efficient
management of
regulatory changes

t®  Financial inclusion

A dedicated team
for communicating
with regulators and
responding timely

Playing a proactive
role in creating
awareness about
financial inclusion

@ Ongoing

___________________________________________________________

____________________________________________________________________
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OUR GOVERNANCE
PHILOSOPHY

At India Shelter, we uphold the highest standards of ethical integrity, corporate governance,
and regulatory compliance, which serve as the bedrock of our corporate governance

policy. Embracing a proactive approach, our Company continuously refines and elevates
our adherence to best governance practices. Central to this commitment is our esteemed
Board of Directors, whose guidance steers the trajectory of our Company and assesses our
performance against the highest governance benchmarks.

Additionally, our evaluation criteria encompass a comprehensive spectrum, including
compliance, internal control, risk management, information and cybersecurity, customer
service, as well as social and environmental responsibility.

KEY POLICIES

Customer Grievance Policy

This policy ensures a timely, fair, and thorough
resolution of customer complaints through an
effective grievance management process.

Whistle-Blower Policy

This policy encourages and supports
employees to promptly report any suspicions
or observations of actions that may indicate
corrupt, illegal, or unethical conduct.

Prevention of Sexual Harassment (POSH)
This policy shows our commitment to
zero-tolerance towards sexual harassment,
ensuring a safe and respectful workplace for all
employees.

Equal Opportunities

This policy helps maintain a state of stringent

non-discrimination ensuring fair treatment for
all employees regardless of gender, age, social
status, or religious beliefs.

Second Innings Policy
Through this policy, we actively encourage and
support women to rejoin the workforce after a

career break for personal reasons.

-==IndiaShelter
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KEY RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE BOARD

The Board plays a crucial role as the guardian of our Company's stakeholders, overseeing and guiding all business operations. With a
focus on corporate performance, the Board reviews, evaluates, and approves strategic investments, while ensuring vigilant oversight of
regulatory compliance and corporate governance matters. By offering invaluable guidance and strategic direction, the Board enables the
Management team to navigate complex challenges and seize opportunities. Working closely with the specialised committees, the Board

provides leadership and wise counsel, ensuring that India Shelter operates optimally in the best interests of all stakeholders.




OUR BOARD MEMBERS

Age - 70 Years

Date of Appointment — 03 November, 2021

Member

Age - 47 Years

Date of Appointment — 12 May, 2021

Member

Age - 64 Years

Date of Appointment — 12 June, 2023

MR. SUDHIN BHAGWANDAS CHOKSEY

Chairman and Non-Executive Nominee Director

Area of Expertise — Industry Experience, Strategy & Planning,
Financial Expertise, Leadership Experience , Governance, Compliance
& Risk Advisory

Board in Indian Companies

Anchorage Infrastructure Investments Holdings Limited
CSB Bank Limited

Fairchem Organics Limited

Guijarat Ambuja Exports Limited

Kuhoo Finance Private Limited

Kuhoo Technology Services Private Limited

BEBBRBRR

MR. RUPINDER SINGH
Managing Director & Chief Executive Officer

Area of Expertise — Industry Experience, Financial Expertise,
Strategy & Planning, Leadership Experience , Technology Expertise ,
Governance, Compliance & Risk Advisory

Board in Indian Companies - NA

MR. PARVEEN KUMAR GUPTA

Independent Director

Area of Expertise — Industry Experience, Financial Expertise,
Strategy & Planning, Leadership Experience , Governance,
Compliance & Risk Advisory

Board in Indian Companies

Bank of India Investment Managers Private Limited
Future Generali India Insurance Company Limited
Midland Microfin Limited

Protium Finance Limited

Utkarsh Small Finance Bank Limited

National Securities Depository Limited

BEBBRBRR

Age - 64 Years

Date of Appointment - 12 February, 2021

Age - 64 Years

Date of Appointment — 03 November, 2021

Age - 53 Years

Date of Appointment — 02 August, 2022

Member

(CiCi

Member

3 C 3 C
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MS. RACHNA DIKSHIT

Independent Director

Area of Expertise — Industry Experience, Strategy & Planning,
Leadership Experience , Governance, Compliance & Risk Advisory

Board in Indian Companies

t#  Arthimpact Digital Loans Private Limited

t# India SME Asset Reconstruction Company Limited
t# Capital Small Finance Bank Limited

t# Miracle Foundation India

MS. SAVITA MAHAJAN

Independent Director

Area of Expertise — Strategy & Planning , Leadership Experience,
Governance, Compliance & Risk Advisory

Board in Indian Companies

% Aurobindo Pharma Limited

(% Gemini Edibles & Fats India Limited
i Avanse Financial Services Limited

{4 Bhagirath Resurgence Private Limited

MR. THOMSON KADANTOT THOMAS

Independent Director

Area of Expertise — Strategy & Planning , Leadership Experience,
Technology Expertise, Governance, Compliance & Risk Advisory

Board in Indian Companies - NA

Member

e

Member

__jCg

I Risk Management Committee I Corporate Social Responsibility Committee

I stakeholders’ Relationship Committee

B  Audit Committee (© Chairperson of Committee

I Nomination and Remuneration Committe B IT Strategy Committee

*As on March 31,2024



-==IndiaShelter
Corporate Overview > Our Board Members === === = === == = T T T T T T T T T T T TS —  Home Loans m_

MR. SHAILESH J. MEHTA

Non-Executive Nominee Director

61 Years

Strategy & Planning, Leadership Experience, Technology Expertise, Average Age
Governance, Compliance & Risk Advisory ® % L J

S0% i > 14

Board Independence Board Meetings

S 2

Women Directors

Area of Expertise — Industry Experience, Financial Expertise,

'cl g

Board in Indian Companies

t#  Aptus Value Housing Finance India Limited
t# Manappuram Finance Limited

Age - 74 Years

Date of Appointment - 31 August, 2017

Member / \ f \

— D 84% i':‘i > 99%

MR. SUMIR CHADHA (< Board Attendance Board Committee Attendance

Non-Executive Nominee Director ® / ® /

Area of Expertise — Industry Experience, Financial Expertise, / \

Strategy & Planning , Leadership Experience, Governance, A brief resume of our Directors, along with details of the

Compliance & Risk Advisory ?ﬁ > 4 nature of their expertise in specific functional areas, is

u available at:

s cmpanie Independent Directors https://www.indiashelter.in/board-of-directors

Aptus Value Housing Finance India Limited ® /

Kuhoo Technology Services Private Limited
MarketXpander Services Private Limited

Mountain Managers Private Limited

Star Health and Allied Insurance Company Limited
Safecrop Investments India LLP

Age - 53 Years

BEBRBRR

Date of Appointment - 03 June, 2015
Member

p——
-

t =

B Audit Committee I Risk Management Committee I Corporate Social Responsibility Committee

I Nomination and Remuneration Committe I stakeholders’ Relationship Committee B IT Strategy Committee

*As on March 31, 2024
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OUR LEADERSHIP OUR
TEAM AWARDS & ACCOLADES

At India Shelter, we take pride in our leadership team, which boasts a proven track record of

success. Comprising seasoned professionals with extensive experience in financial services, | [— - 1 , Elrem
1 Ty . . ace
the team brings a wealth of knowledge and expertise to the table. Their strategic vision | 7 5 .. To

and collaborative leadership style are instrumental in steering our Company towards our Work
Certified

ambitious goals. s A | Place e e

JAN Griha Certification on Top 50 India’s Best Workplaces Great Place to Work Certified Affordable Housing Finance
Greem Home Initiatives in BFSI 2024 Company

MR. RUPINDER SINGH MR. ASHISH GUPTA MR. SHARAD PAREEK MR. NILAY
MD & CEO Chief Financial Officer Chief Risk Officer Chief Human Resources Officer

Rising Star - Housing Finance Best CSR Project of the Year Best Risk and Cyber Security Excellency in Technology
Company of the Year Initiatives Implementation

Ndw

MR. AMAN SAINI MR. NITIN GOEL MR. RAVINDRA DHILLON MR. ROHIT GAUR
National Business Head Head - Credit & Policy Head - Collections Head - Product & Strategy

Best Brand Building Campaign Best Technical Application Best Customer Centric IT Best House Financier of the Year
Implementation of the Year

MR. ABHINAV ARYA MS. MUKTI CHAPLOT
Chief Information Officer Company Secretary &
Chief Compliance Officer Best SDG Impact Award
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CORPORATE

INFORMATION

CHAIRMAN
Mr. Sudhin Bhagwandas Choksey

MANAGING DIRECTOR & CEO

Mr. Rupinder Singh

BOARD OF DIRECTORS
Mr. Sudhin Bhagwandas Choksey

Mr. Rupinder Singh

Mr. Parveen Kumar Gupta

Ms. Rachna Dikshit

Ms. Savita Mahajan

Mr. Thomson Kadantot Thomas
Mr. Shailesh Jayantilal Mehta

Mr. Sumir Chadha

MANAGEMENT TEAM

Mr. Ashish Gupta
Chief Financial Officer

Mr. Sharad Pareek
Chief Risk Officer

Mr. Nilay
Chief Human Resources Officer

Mr. Aman Saini
National Business Head

Mr. Nitin Goel
Head-Credit & Policy

Mr. Ravinder Dhillon
National Recoveries & Legal Head

Mr. Rohit Gaur
Head Product & Strategy

Mr. Abhinav Arya
Chief Information Officer

___________________________________________________________

COMPANY SECRETARY AND CHIEF
COMPLIANCE OFFICER

Ms. Mukti Chaplot

SECRETARIAL AUDITORS

Jitender Singh
Company Secretaries
Plot No. 112, 2nd Floor,
Udhyog Vihar Phase-1,
Gurgaon-122016

STATUTORY AUDITORS

TR Chadha & Co. LLP
76E, Udyog Vihar Phase IV,
Gurgaon- 122016

DEBENTURE TRUSTEE

Catalyst Trusteeship Limited.

CIN: U74999PN1997PLC110262

GDA House, Plot No. 85 Bhusari Colony (Right), Paud Road,
Kothrud Pune MH -411038 IN, Maharashtra

KEY BANKERS AND FINANCIAL INSTITUTION

AU Small Finance Bank Limited

Axis Bank Limited

Bajaj Finance Limited
Bandhan Bank Limited
Bank of Baroda

Bank of Maharashtra
Canara Bank

DBS Bank India Limited
DCB Bank Limited
Equitas Small Finance Bank
HDFC Bank Limited
ICICI Bank Limited

IDBI Bank Ltd

Indian Bank

Indian Overseas Bank
Indusind Bank Limited
Karnataka Bank Ltd

Karur Vysya Bank Limited

Kotak Mahindra Bank Limited
Nabsamruddhi Finance Limited
National Housing Bank

Poonawalla Fincorp Limited

RBL Bank Limited

South Indian Bank Limited

State Bank of India

Sundaram Finance Limited

Suryoday Small Finance Bank Limited
The Federal Bank Limited

UCO Bank

Ujjivan Small Finance Bank Limited
Union Bank of India

United States International Development Finance Corporation

Yes Bank Ltd

REGISTRAR AND SHARE TRANSFER
AGENT

KFin Technologies Limited

Selenium, Tower B, Plot 31-32, Gachibowli,

Financial District, Nanakramguda, Hyderabad, Telangana- 500032
Tel. 040- 79611000

Website: www.kfintech.com

REGISTERED AND CORPORATE
OFFICE

Plot No. 15, 6" Floor, Institutional Area
Gurgaon-122002

CIN: L65922HR1998PLC042782

Email: customer.care@indiashelter.in

Website: https://indiashelter.in/
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DIRECTORS REPORT

To,

The Members of,

India Shelter Finance Corporation Limited
6™ Floor, Plot -15,

Institutional Area,

Sector - 44,

Gurgaon-122002

Your Directors have pleasure in presenting the 26th Annual Report on the Business and Operations of the Company and the Audited

Standalone and Consolidated Financial Statements for the Financial Year ended 31 March, 2024.

FINANCIAL RESULTS

A brief highlight of the Standalone & Consolidated Financial Performance of your Company is presented as below:

(Amount in Lacs)

Particulars

Standalone Consolidated
FY24 FY23 FY24 FY23

Total Income

86,037.66 60,562.62 86,137.42 60,623.06

Less: Total Expenses

54,216.63 40,416.12 54,219.15 40,427.84

Profit/(Loss)before tax

31,821.03 20,146.50 31,918.27 20,195.22

Less: Current tax 6,967.56 4,634.07 6,991.83 4,648.41
Deferred Tax 166.16 14.68 166.68 12.60
Profit after tax 24,687.31 15,497.75 24,759.76 15,534.21
Other comprehensive Income (504.91) (62.27) (504.91) (62.27)
Transfer of Statutory Reserve (u/s Section 29C of NHB Act, 1987) 4,937 .46 3,099.55 4,937.46 3,099.55
Balance carried to Balance Sheet 15,029.51 10,092.05 15,029.51 10,092.05
Earnings per Share (Face Value X 2)

Basic 26.24 17.72 26.32 17.75
Diluted 25.10 1743 25.18 1747

INITIAL PUBLIC OFFERING

During the year under review, your Company has successfully
completed the Initial public offering of 2,43,40,768 equity shares
of face value of ¥ 5 each (“equity shares”) of the Company for cash
at a price of ¥ 493.00 per equity share of face value of I 5 each
including a securities premium of ¥ 488.00 per equity share (the
“offer price”) aggregating to X 1,200 Crores (the “offer”). The offer
comprises of a fresh issue of 16,227,180 equity shares of face value
of ¥ 5 each by our company aggregating to ¥ 800 Crores (the “fresh
issue”) and an offer for sale of 81,13,588 equity shares aggregating
to I 400 Crores (“offer for sale”).

The 1,200 crore IPO, which was opened on 13 December, 2023 to
15 December, 2023, was subscribed 38.6 times. The category for
qualified institutional buyers was subscribed 94.3 times. The quota
reserved for retail individual investors was subscribed 10.5 times.

Pursuant to the aforesaid allotment of equity shares, the issued,
subscribed and paid-up capital of the Company stands increased
to< 53,52,55,680 (10,70,51,136 Equity Shares of ¥ 5 each).

The Equity Shares of the Company were successfully listed on the
National Stock Exchange of India Limited (NSE) and BSE Limited
(BSE) on 20 December, 2023.

The Company has fully utilised the net IPO proceeds during the
year for the purpose of onward lending and general corporate
purposes in accordance with the Objects as stated in the Offer
letter. There has been no deviation in the utilisation of IPO
proceeds of the Company.

DIVIDEND DISTRIBUTION POLICY

Pursuant to the provisions of regulation 43A of the Securities
and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (the ‘SEBI Listing Regulations’),
the Company had formulated a dividend distribution policy.

DIVIDEND

Considering your Company’s rapid growth and future strategy and
plans, the Board considers it prudent to conserve the resources
of the Company for its future growth and not recommend any

DIRECTORS REPORT (Contd.)

dividend payment on equity shares for the financial year under
review.

CHANGE IN SHARE CAPITAL

Authorised Capital

The Authorised share capital of the Company as on 31 March,
2024, stood at ¥ 81 Crores comprising of 16,20,00,000 Equity
shares of ¥ 5 /- each.

Paid up Capital

The Paid-up capital of the Company as on 31 March, 2024, stood
at ¥ 53.5 Crores comprising of 10,70,51,136 Equity shares of
% 5/-each.

During the year, the following changes were made in the Share
Capital of the Company:

® Approved the sub-division of the equity shares of the
Company from 1 (One) equity share of ¥ 10/- each into
2 (Two) equity shares of T 5/- each by way of resolution
passed in the Board meeting held on 12 July, 2023 and in the
extraordinary general meeting held on 18 July, 2023.

® During the year ended 31 March, 2024, following options
were exercised during the year ended 31 March, 2024 and
equity shares were allotted as mentioned below:

ESOP Scheme Number of equity shares
ESOP Scheme 2012 1,50,000%
ESOP Scheme 2017 8,42,000%
ESOP Scheme 2021 13,76,652%

*Number of equity share are post considering of sub-division
of share from ¥ 10 per share to ¥ 5 per share.

® During the year, allotted 3,55,000 equity shares of ¥ 10 each
to Mr. Anil Mehta on July 20, 2023.

® TheCompany called and received unpaid money of ¥ 349.60
(Face Value of ¥ 8 and Premium of ¥ 341.6) on 19 July, 2023
on 1,35,000 partly paid-up equity shares allotted at ¥ 437
(Face Value of ¥ 10 and Premium of ¥ 427) to Mr. Anil Mehta
on 19 November, 2022.

® Allotted 1,62,27,180 equity shares of ¥ 5 each on
18 December, 2023, pursuant to Initial public offering (IPO).

EMPLOYEE STOCK OPTIONS SCHEMES

ESOP 2017

The Company has adopted the Employee Stock Option Plan, 2017
(ESOP 2017), which was approved by the Board of Directors at their
meeting held on 10 November, 2017 and by the Shareholders of
the Company by way of a special resolution at their Extra Ordinary
General Meeting held on 31 January, 2018 and subsequent
modifications thereto.

ESOP 2017 is in compliance with the SEBI (Share Based Employee
Benefits and Sweat Equity) Regulations, 2021. In terms of
Regulation 12(1) of the Securities and Exchange Board of India
(Share Based Employee Benefits and Sweat Equity) Regulations,
2021, the shareholders of the Company have amended the

scheme by special resolution passed in annual general meeting
held on 14 July, 2024.

The shareholders of the Company, in their general meeting
held on 31 January, 2018 and subsequent amendments have
authorised the Board to grant up to 10,22,000 (Ten Lacs Twenty-
Two Thousand) Employee Stock Options to the Employees, in
one or more tranches, from time to time under the Plan, being
exercisable into not exceeding 10,22,000 (Ten Lacs Twenty-Two
Thousand) Shares of a face value of ¥ 5/- each fully paid-up, with
each such Option conferring a right upon the Employee to be
issued one Share of the Company, in accordance with the terms
and conditions of such Grant.

Nomination and Remuneration Committee is empowered to
formulate the detailed terms and conditions of the ESOP 2017,
administer and supervise the same. The specific employees of the
Company to whom the options are granted, and their eligibility
criteria is determined by the NRC.

In terms of Regulation 14 of Securities and Exchange Board
of India (Share Based Employee Benefits and Sweat Equity)
Regulations, 2021, the disclosures with respect to ESOP
2017 have been provided on the website of the Company at
https.//www.indiashelter.in.

ESOP 2021

The Company has adopted the Employee Stock Option Plan,
2021 (ESOP 2021), which was approved by the Board of Directors
at their meeting held on May 12, 2021 and by the Shareholders
of the Company by way of a special resolution at their Extra
Ordinary General Meeting held on 26 July, 2021 and subsequent
modifications thereto.

ESOP 2021 is in compliance with the SEBI (Share Based Employee
Benefits and Sweat Equity) Regulations, 2021. In terms of
Regulation 12(1) of the Securities and Exchange Board of India
(Share Based Employee Benefits and Sweat Equity) Regulations,
2021, the shareholders of the Company have ammended the
scheme by way of a special resolution passed in annual general
meeting held on 14 July, 2023. Further, the Shareholders have
ratified the scheme by way of a special resolution through postal
ballot on 19 March, 2024.

The shareholders of the Company, in their general meeting held on
26 July, 2021 and subsequent amendments, have authorised the
Board to grant up to 53,01,688 [Fifty Three Lacs One Thousand Six
Hundred Eight Eight] Employee Stock Options to the Employees,
in one or more tranches, from time to time under the Plan, being
exercisable into not exceeding 53,01,688 [Fifty Three Lacs One
Thousand Six Hundred Eight Eight] Shares of a face value of
% 5/- each fully paid-up, with each such Option conferring a right
upon the Employee to be issued one Share of the Company, in
accordance with the terms and conditions of such Grant.

Nomination and Remuneration Committee is empowered to
formulate the detailed terms and conditions of the ESOP 2021,
administer and supervise the same. The specific employees of the
Company and its subsidiary to whom the options are granted, and
their eligibility criteria is determined by the NRC.
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In terms of Regulation 14 of Securities and Exchange Board
of India (Share Based Employee Benefits and Sweat Equity)
Regulations, 2021, the disclosures with respect to ESOP
2021 have been provided on the website of the Company at

except as disclosed below that may affect the financial position of
the Company.

CHANGE IN NATURE OF BUSINESS

DIRECTORS REPORT (Contd.)

PERFORMANCE OF COMPANY

Disbursement

During the year, your Company disbursed X 2,646 Crs compared to X 1,964 Crs in the previous year.

https.//www.indiashelter.in. During the financial year under review, there was no change in & In Crs)
ESOP 2023 nature of business of the Company.
However, during the year, company filed an application to register Disbursement
The Company has adopted the Employee Stock Option Plan, . grhey . pany PP J
2023 (ESOP 2023). which 4 by the Board of Di itselfasa Corporate Agent with Insurance Regulatory Development
( 023), which was approved by the Board of Directors Authority of India (IRDAI") under the IRDAI (Registration of 551 895 1,295 1,964 2,646
at their meeting held on 12 July, 2023 and by the Shareholders . :

_ _ . Corporate Agents) Regulations, 2015. The company has received —¢
of t.he Company by Way of a special resolution at their Extra theRegistration Certificate toactasaCorporate Agent (Composite) e -
Ordinary General Meeting held on 18 July, 2023 and subsequent dated 19 April, 2024, i —
modifications thereto. e - -
ESOP 2023 is in compliance with the SEBI (Share Based Employee DETAILS OF COMPANIES WHICH HAVE BECOME ITs = =— =—
Benefits and Sweat Equity) Regulations, 2021. In terms of HOLDING, SUBSIDIARY, ASSOCIATE OR JOINT VENTURE e -—- - - -

. . . o L L ] D 4
Regulation 12(1) of the Securities and Exchange Board of India COMPANIES: - - - - -
(Share Based Employee Benefits and Sweat Equity) Regulations

' Holding Compan
2021, the shareholders of the Company have ratified the scheme J pany 2019-20 2020-21 2021-22 2022-23
, . During the start of Financial Year 2023-24, WestBridge Crossover
by way of a special resolution through postal ballot on 19 March,

2024.

The shareholders of the Company, in their general meeting held
on 18 July, 2023 and subsequent amendments, have authorised
the Board to grant up to 33,53,450 Employee Stock Options to the
Employees, in one or more tranches, from time to time under the

Fund, LLC, together with its wholly owned subsidiary Aravali
Investment Holdings was the Holding Company. With successful
completion of IPO dated 20 December, 2023, WestBridge Crossover
Fund, LLC ceased to be the holding company, as shareholding
of WestBridge Crossover Fund, LLC has gone below 50%. The
reduction in shareholding is on account of further issuance of

ASSETS UNDER MANAGEMENT (AUM)

Your Company had assets under management of ¥ 6,084 Crs compared to ¥ 4,359 Crs in the previous year and recorded a growth of 40%

over previous year.

Plan, being exercisable into not exceeding 33,53,450 [Thirty-Three shares in Initial Public Offer. WestBridge Crossover Fund, LLC and & In Crs)
Lacs Fifty-Three Thousand Four Hundred Fifty] Shares of a face Aravali Investment Holdings has not participated in Offer of Sale.
value of ¥ 5/- each fully paid-up, with each such Option conferring beidi AUM
aright upon the Employee to be issued one Share of the Company, Subsidiary Company
i ith th iti fsuch Grant. During the year 2022-23, the Company “India Shelter Capital
in accordance with the terms and conditions of such Grant . & yed . 1520 2199 3073 4359 6,084
o . . . Finance Limited” was incorporated dated 24 March, 2022 to carry
Nomination and Remuenration Committee is empowered to the busi ¢ chort med 4 long term fi _ biect e
formulate the detailed terms and conditions of the ESOP 2023, O the DUSINESS OTSNOTL MECAIUM and fohg term financing stbjec -
. . . to regulatory approvals. —
administer and supervise the same. The specific employees of the - . . — —
Company and its subsidiary to whom the options are granted, and Statement .Colntammg salient features of the financial stétements _ - -
their eligibility criteria is determined by the NRC. of the subsidiary, pursuant to first proviso to sub - section (3)of o - - -
) N Section 129 read with rule 5 of Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 e — - - -
In terms of Regulation 14 of Securities and Exchange Board . . . : - - - - -
¢ India (Sh d | " 45 . in Form AOC - 1, is attached, which forms part of this Report as - - - - -
of In @ (Share Base Emp oyee Bene .ts and Sweat Equity) Annexure 1. - - - - -
Requlations, 2021, the disclosures with respect to ESOP 2019.20 2020.21 2021.29 2022.23 03374
2023 have been provided on the website of the Company at Associate or joint venture companies - - - - -
https.//www.indiashelter.in.

BRIEF DESCRIPTION OF THE COMPANY’S WORKING

Your Company is incorporated to carry on the business of Housing
Finance by way of providing facilities in the form of term loans for
construction, alteration, repair or for outright purchase of all types
of accommodation and loans against property.

MATERIAL CHANGES AND COMMITMENTS, IF ANY,
AFFECTING THE FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE COMPANY
WHICH HAVE OCCURRED BETWEEN THE END OF THE
FINANCIAL YEAR OF THE COMPANY TO WHICH THE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS RELATE AND THE DATE OF THE
REPORT.

No Material change and commitment occurred between the end
of the financial year 2023-24 of the Company and this report date

As per the provisions of the Act, the Company did not have any
Joint Ventures/ Associates during the financial year under review.

Particulars of Loans, Guarantees or Investments to Wholly
Owned Subsidiary

The Company had made investments of ¥ 12 Crores in the equity
share capital of the subsidiary company during the financial year
2022-23. No further investment has been made during the year
under review.

For details refer to Note no. 40 in relation to related party
transactions disclosed as per notes to the Standalone Financial
Statements.

Net Worth

As of 31 March, 2024, the net worth of your Company stood at
3 22976 Crs compared to ¥ 1240.2 Crs on 31 March, 2023
registering an increase of 85.3% .

BORROWINGS

Your Company's overall borrowing is guided by Borrowing and
Investment Policy.

Your Company has a Board approved borrowing and investment
policy in place to cater its funding requirements. The Company has
well diversified base of lenders/investors that includes National
Housing Bank, public sector bank, private sector bank and other
financial institutions (domestic as well as international). As at March
31,2024, your Company's sources of funding were primarily in the
form of Long Term Loans from Banks and Financial Institutions
56% followed by Securitization/Direct assignment 22% NHB
Refinance (15%), External Commercial Borrowings (ECB) (6%) Debt
capital market (1%). The Weighted Average Borrowing Cost as at

March 31,2024 was 8.8% (including Securitization/ Assignment) as
against 8.7% as at the end of the previous Financial Year.

Your Company has vide Special Resolution passed on July 18,2023,
under Section 180 (1) (c) of the Companies Act, 2013, authorized
the Board of Directors to borrow money upon such terms and
conditions as the Board may think fit in excess of the aggregate
of paid up share capital and free reserves of the Company up to
an amount of 7,500 crore (Rupees Seven Thousand Five Hundred
crore only) and the total amount so borrowed shall remain within
the limits as prescribed by RBI.

Your Company manages its cash flows through prudent Asset-
Liability Management and takes the various measures, which
includes the diversification of funding sources, tenure optimisation,
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and prudent borrowing timing to maintain its borrowing cost at
an optimum level.

Your Company has a comfortable liquidity position as on March
31, 2024 with ¥ 451 crore of liquid assets and ¥ 759 crore of
undrawn sanction in hand. Further, During the Financial Year your
Company has crossed assets size of ¥ 5000 crore and hence LCR
guidelines has made applicable on the Company. The Liquidity
Coverage Ratio ('LCR’) for the Financial Year ended March 31, 2024
was 140.2% as against the regulatory requirement of 60%.

Your Company secured financing from a variety of sources
including term loans, proceeds from the issuance of NCDs and
refinance from the NHB. As of 31 March, 2024, the Company’s
total borrowings stood ¥ 3,395.9 crores. Your Company remains
committed towards maintaining a vigorous diversified resource
profile.

During the financial year under review, the interest on Non-
Convertible Debentures issued were paid by the Company on
their respective due dates.

DIRECT ASSIGNMENT (DA) FROM BANKS AND FINANCIAL
INSTITUTIONS

Your Company has actively tapped Securitization/Direct
Assignment market, which has enabled it to create liquidity,
diversify liability profile and minimizing asset liability mismatches.
During the Financial Year under review, your Company received
purchase consideration of ¥ 451 crore from transfer of LAP loan
assets(Direct Assignment) pool to banks. The Direct Assignment
Transaction transactions were carried out in line with RBI
guidelines on Transfer of Loan exposure of Standard Assets and
assigned assets were de-recognized in the books of the Company.

BORROWINGS FROM OTHER SOURCES

During the year, your Company raised ¥ 1,588.7 Crs from Banks
and Financial Institutions in the form of term loans including NHB
Refinance; and ¥ 450.7 Crs from seven Direct Assignment.

During the year, the NHB reposed faith in your Company by
disbursing refinance of ¥ 210 Crs. With this disbursement, your
Company had an outstanding of ¥ 639.0 Crs with the NHB as on
31 March, 2024.

EXTERNAL COMMERCIAL BORROWINGS

The Company has External Commercial Borrowing (ECB) line of
$30 mn from US International Development Finance Corporation
(DFC). During the current year, the Company has drawn the
remaining $20 mn External Commercial Borrowing (ECB) limits.
Total outstanding foreign currency loan exposure in the form of
External Commercial Borrowing as on March 31, 2024 is [6%] of
Total Borrowings which is fully hedged by way of cross currency
swaps.

DEPOSITS

Your Company being a non-deposit taking Housing Finance
Company, resolved by the Board of Directors in their meeting held
on 09 May, 2023 that it shall not accept public deposit and has
not accepted any public deposits within the meaning of Section
73 to 76 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the Companies
[Acceptance of Deposits] Rules, 2014 and amendment made
thereunder.

LISTING WITH STOCK EXCHANGE:

Your Company’s equity shares got listed on Bombay Stock
Exchange (BSE) and National Stock Exchange (NSE) on 20
December, 2023.

Your Company is up to date in the payment of annual listing fees
to Bombay Stock Exchange (BSE) and National Stock Exchange
of India Ltd. (NSE) on which its equity shares are listed. The Non-
Convertible Debentures issued by the Company are listed on
Bombay Stock Exchange (BSE).

During the financial year under review, the interest on Non-
Convertible Debentures issued (Private Placement) was paid by
the Company on their respective due dates and there were no
instances of any interest amount which were not claimed by the
investors or not paid by the Company after the date on which the
same became due for payment.

DISCLOSURES WITH RESPECT TO NON-CONVERTIBLE
DEBENTURES AS PER THE MASTER DIRECTION- NON-
BANKING FINANCIAL COMPANY - HOUSING FINANCE
COMPANY (RESERVE BANK) DIRECTIONS, 2021

() The total number of non-convertible debentures which
have not been claimed by the Investors or not paid by the
housing finance Company after the date on which the non-
convertible debentures became due for redemption: Nil

(i) The total amount in respect of such debentures remaining
unclaimed or unpaid beyond the date referred to in clause
(1) as aforesaid: Nil

DEBENTURE TRUSTEE

Debenture Trust Agreement(s) were executed in favour of Catalyst
Trusteeship Limited for NCDs issued on private placement basis.
Following are details of Catalyst Trusteeship Limited.

Catalyst Trusteeship Limited
CIN: U74999PN1997PLC110262
GDA House, Plot No. 85
Bhusari Colony (Right),

Paud Road,

Kothrud

Pune MH-411038 IN,
Maharashtra

DIRECTORS REPORT (Contd.)

CREDIT RATING

During the financial year under review, the credit rating of your
Company was assigned to IND AA- (Stable) by India Ratings &
Research (Ind-Ra).

The credit rating details of the Company as of 31 March, 2024 are
as follows

RESERVES

In terms of Section 29C of the National Housing Bank Act, 1987,
every Housing Finance Company is required to transfer at least 20%
of its net profit every year to Statutory Reserve account before any
dividend is declared. Accordingly, your Company has transferred
an amount of ¥ 49.4 Crs (Previous Year: 31 Crs) to'Statutory Reserve’
and it stands at ¥ 150.3 Crs as on 31 March, 2024.

Agency Instrument Rating (Outlook)
Ind-Ra Bank Loan IND AA-/Stable PROFITABILITY
ICRA Non-Convertible Debentures | ICRA A +(Positive) During the year, your Company earned total revenue of ¥ 861 Crs
ICRA Long Term Borrowings ICRA A + (Positive) compared to ¥ 605.6 Crs of revenue earned last year registering an
i 0,
CARE Long Term Borrowings CARE A +(Positive) increase of 42.1%. Your Company earned a proﬁ‘F after tgx of X 248
Crs compared to ¥ 155 earned last year registering an increase of
59.3%.
R In Crs)
Revenue
230 323 460 606 861
" - -
2019-20 2020-21 2021-22 2022-23 2023-24
R In Crs)
PAT
47 87 128 155 248
-
-
-
2019-20 2020-21 2021-22 2022-23
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ASSET CLASSIFICATION

Your Company has adhered to the Policy for Asset Classification,
Provisioning, Settlement and Write Off approved by its Board of
Directors and as per the Expected Credit Loss (ECL) Methodology.
Provision computed as per the ECL methodology is higher than
the provision computed in accordance Income Recognition and
Asset Classification (IRAC) Norms specified by RBI.

For details refer to Note no. 6 (ix) in relation to provisioning
disclosed as per notes to the Standalone Financial Statements.

RECOVERY MECHANISM

Your Company is a “Financial Institution” under The Securitisation
and Reconstruction of Financial Assets and Enforcement of
Security Interest (SARFAESI) Act, 2002 and it initiated proceedings
under The Securitisation and Reconstruction of Financial Assets
and Enforcement of Security Interest (SARFAESI) Act, 2002 against
defaulting borrowers for recovery of dues. Your Company has also
filed cases under section 138 of Negotiable instrument Act, 1881.

Your Company is disbursing 100% loans through electronic mode.

CAPITAL ADEQUACY RATIO

NHB Housing Finance Companies (NHB) Directions requires your
Company to maintain a minimum capital adequacy of 15% on a
standalone basis. Your Company’s capital adequacy ratio (CRAR)
stood at 70.9% (comprising Tier | capital of 70.1% and Tier Il capital
of 0.8%) as on 31 March, 2024, compared to 52.7% (comprising
Tier | capital of 51.9% and Tier Il capital of 0.8%) as on 31 March,
2023.

BRANCH EXPANSION

During the year, your Company added 40 additional branches
with total of 223 offices in 15 states as on 31 March, 2024. This
increase in branches has contributed to the better performance
by your Company. Your Company now operates in the states
of Rajasthan, Maharashtra, Gujarat, Madhya Pradesh, Haryana,
Chhattisgarh, Uttar Pradesh, Uttaranchal, Punjab, Tamil Naduy,
Karnataka, Telangana, Andhra Pradesh, Delhi and Orissa. Your
Company has undertaken several measures to improve its visibility
through focus on marketing and advertising.

CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION

Since your Company is engaged in financial services activities, its
operations are not energy intensive nor does it require adoption
of specific technology and hence information in terms of Section
134(3)(m) of the Act read with the Companies (Accounts) Rules,
2014 is not provided in this Board's Report. However, the Company
has given the details of its initiatives in relation to conservation of
energy and technology absorption in Business Responsibility and
Sustainability Report (“BRSR") forming part of this Annual Report.

FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNINGS AND OUTGO

The Foreign Exchange earned and the Foreign Exchange outgo
during the year is as below:

& in Lacs)
Particulars For Year For Year
ended ended

March, 2024 March, 2023
a)  Total Foreign exchange - -

earned
b)  Software license expense 16.6 2.8
c)  Legal and professional 471.04 -
charges (in respect of IPO)
d) Interest Expense of ECB 788.6 1723

REGULATORY GUIDELINES

During the Year under review, the RBI/NHB has issued various
Notifications, Circulars and Guidelines to Housing Finance
Companies. The Circulars and the Notifications issued by RBI/NHB
are also placed before the Board of Directors at regular intervals
to update the Board members on compliance of the same. Your
Company has adhered to all the Circulars, Notifications and
Guidelines issued by RBI/NHB from time to time.

Your Company has been following guidelines, circulars and
directions issued by RBI from time to time. The Company has
adopted all the Policies as recommended by RBI/NHB from time
to time.

Your Company has been complying with the Master Directions,
guidelines and circulars issued by the Reserve Bank of India,
National Housing Bank, Companies Act, 2013, SEBI (Listing
Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015,
Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider
Trading) Regulations, 2015, Securities and Exchange Board of India
(Substantial Acquisition of Shares and Takeovers) Regulations,
2011, to the extent applicable to the Company, Foreign Exchange
Management Act, 1999, Labour Laws, Income Tax Act, Goods and
Services Tax Act and other applicable Acts from time to time.

Your Company has also complied with the provisions of the
Secretarial Standards issued by the Institute of Company
Secretaries of India.

DIRECTORS

The composition of the Board is in accordance with Section 149
of the Act and Regulation 17 of SEBI (Listing Obligations and
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 with an optimum
combination of Executive, Non-executive and Independent
Directors

The Board of Directors of the Company comprises of Eight
Directors, consisting of Chairman & Non-Executive Director,
Managing Director & CEO, four Independent Directors (including
two Woman Director), two Non-Executive Directors, (Nominee),
as on 31 March , 2024 who bring in a wide range of skills and
experience to the Board.

DIRECTORS REPORT (Contd.)

The Board of Directors of the Company as on 31 March, 2024 are:

Directors Designation DIN

Mr. Sudhin Bhagwandas Choksey Chairman and Non-Executive Director (Nominee) 00036085
Mr. Rupinder Singh Managing Director and Chief Executive Officer 09153382
Mr. Shailesh J. Mehta Non-Executive Director (Nominee) 01633893
Mr. Sumir Chadha Non-Executive Director (Nominee) 00040789
Mr. Parveen Kumar Gupta Independent Director 02895343
Ms. Rachna Dikshit Independent Director 08759332
Ms. Savita Mahajan Independent Director 06492679
Mr. Thomson Thomas Independent Director 09691435

The following changes took place in the composition of Board of
Directors during the year:

® TheBoard of Directors of the Company through resolution by
circulation on 12 June, 2023, appointed Mr. Parveen Kumar
Gupta as an Additional (Independent & Non-Executive)
Director with effect from 12 June, 2023 and shareholders
confirmed his appointment as an Independent Director in
their meeting held on 14 July, 2023.

® The Board of Directors of the Company in their meeting
held on 12 July, 2023, appointed Mr. Ajay Narayan Jha as
an Additional (Independent & Non-Executive) Director with
effect from 12 July, 2023 and shareholders confirmed his
appointment as an Independent Director in their meeting
held on 18 July, 2023.

® The Board of Directors of the Company in their meeting held
on 31 July, 2023 accepted resignation of Mr. Anil Mehta as
a Chairman and Non-executive director with effect from
closure of business hours of 31 July,2023.

® The Board of Directors of the Company in their meeting
held on 31 July, 2023, re-designated Mr. Sudhin Bhagwandas
Choksey as a Chairman and Non-Executive Director
(Nominee) and appointed Ms. Savita Mahajan as an
Additional (Independent & Non-Executive) Director with
effect from 31 July, 2023 and shareholders confirmed her
appointment as an Independent Director in their meeting
held on August 01, 2023.

® The Board of Directors of the Company in their meeting
held on 08 February, 2024 accepted resignation of Mr. Ajay
Narayan Jha as an Independent Director with effect from
closure of business hours of 08 February, 2024.

® The Board of Directors of the Company, through resolution
by circulation on 07 March, 2024, accepted resignation of Mr.
Anup Kumar Gupta as a Non-Executive Director (Nominee)
of the Company effective from closure of business hours of
07 March, 2024.

FOLLOWING CHANGES TOOK PLACE IN COMPOSITION OF
BOARD OF DIRECTORS FROM FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED
31 MARCH, 2024 TILL DATE OF THIS REPORT

® The shareholders of the Company have passed a special
resolution for continuation of Mr. Shailesh J. Mehta (DIN:

01633893) as a Non-Executive Non-Independent Director
beyond age of 75 Years, in their extraordinary general
meeting held on 19 April, 2024.

BOARD MEETINGS HELD DURING THE YEAR

During the financial year ended 31 March, 2024, the Board met
fourteen times on [1] 09 May, 2023 ; [2] 12 July, 2023; [3] 31 July,
2023;[4] 03 August, 2023; [5] 14 August, 2023; [6] 27 October, 2023;
[7] 13 November, 2023; [8] 23 November, 2023; [9] 07 December,
2023; [10] 07 December, 2023; [11] 12 December, 2023; [12] 16
December, 2023; [13] 18 December, 2023; [14] 08 February, 2024.
The maximum time gap between any two Board meetings did not
exceed 120 days during the financial year under review.

COMMITTEES OF THE BOARD

The Company has the following Nine (9) Board level Committees
as on March 31, 2024 which have been constituted in compliance
with the requirements of the business and relevant provisions of
applicable laws and statutes:

1. Audit Committee
Nomination and Remuneration Committee
Corporate Social Responsibility Committee
Risk Management Committee

Asset Liability Management Committee

Wilful Defaulter Identification & Review Committee and

2
3
4
5
6. [T Strategy Committee
/
8. Customer Service & Grievance Redressal Committee
9

Stakeholders Relationship Committee

On 31 July 2023, IPO Committee was established by the Company
to monitor the process of IPO and with successful closure of the
IPO and fulfilment of purpose of IPO committee, the committee
was dissolved on 08 February 2024.

The recommendations made by above Committees were
accepted by the Board.

The details with respect to the composition, terms of reference,
number of Meetings held, etc. of these Committees are given in
the Corporate Governance Report, which forms part of this Report.

~~
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KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL (KMP):

During the year under review, there were no changes in the office
of Key Managerial Personnel (KMP), the Key Managerial Personnel
of the Company are as follows:

a.  Mr. Rupinder Singh -Managing Director & CEO
b.  Mr. Ashish Gupta- Chief Financial Officer

Cc. Ms. Mukti Chaplot — Company Secretary and Chief
Compliance Officer

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

Your Company is committed to achieve the highest standards
of Corporate Governance and it aspires to benchmark itself with
the best practices in this regard. The Board regularly reviews the
Management'’s reports on statutory and regulatory compliances.
A report on corporate governance as per the Listing Regulations is
attached which forms part of this Report as Annexure 2.

A certificate from M/s. Jitender Singh, Practicing Company
Secretary, confirming compliance with corporate governance
norms, as stipulated under the SEBI (Listing Obligation & Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2015, is attached which forms part of
this Report as Annexure 3.

COMPANY’S POLICY ON DIRECTORS APPOINTMENT,
REMUNERATION & EVALUATION

The Board on the recommendation of the Nomination &
Remuneration Committee adopted a“Nomination & Remuneration
Policy”, which, inter-alia, lays down the criteria for identifying the
persons who are qualified to be appointed as Directors and/or
Senior Management Personnel of the Company, along with the
criteria for determination of remuneration of Directors, KMPs and
other employees and their evaluation and includes other matters,
as prescribed under the provisions of Section 178 of Companies
Act, 2013.

The"Nomination & Remuneration Policy”of the Company is placed
on the website of the Company at https.//www.indiashelter.in/

investor-relations. The Remuneration paid to the Directors is in line
with the remuneration policy of the Company.

DIRECTOR & KEY MANAGEMENT PERSONNEL

Retirement by Rotation and Re-appointment

As per Section 152 of the Companies Act, 2013, Mr. Sumir Chadha
(DIN: 00040789) of the Company, will retire by rotation at the
ensuing Annual General Meeting and being eligible offer himself
for reappointment.

Resignation/Retirement of Independent Director

Pursuant to Section 149 (6), Section 152 and Section 161 of the
Companies Act, 2013 and other applicable provisions (including
any modification or re-enactment thereof), if any, of the
Companies Act, 2013, the Board of Directors in Board meeting held
on 08 February, 2024, accepted the resignation of Mr. Ajay Narayan

Jha from the position of Independent Director of the Company
with effect from the closure of business hours of 08 February, 2024.

Appointment of Independent Director

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 149, 150, 152 read with
schedule IVand Section 161(1) read with Companies (Appointment
and Qualification of Directors) Rules, 2014, and other applicable
provisions, sections, rules of the Companies Act, 2013, following
Independent Directors were appointed:

® The Nomination and Remuneration Committee and Board of
Directors of the Company through resolution by circulation
on 11 June, 2023 and 12 June, 2023 respectively appointed
Mr. Parveen Kumar Gupta as an Additional (Independent &
Non-Executive) Director with effect from 12 June, 2023 and
shareholders confirmed his appointment as an Independent
Director in their meeting held on 14 July, 2023.

® The Nomination and Remuneration Committee and Board
of Directors of the Company in their meeting held on 12
July, 2023, appointed Mr. Ajay Narayan Jha as an Additional
(Independent & Non-Executive) Director with effect from 12
July, 2023 and shareholders confirmed his appointment as
an Independent Director in their meeting held on 18 July,
2023.

® The Nomination and Remuneration Committee and Board
of Directors of the Company in their meeting held on 31
July, 2023 respectively, appointed Ms. Savita Mahajan Jha as
an Additional (Independent & Non-Executive) Director with
effect from 31 July, 2023 and shareholders confirmed his
appointment as an Independent Director in their meeting
held on August 01, 2023.

Declaration by Independent Director

The Independent Directors have submitted the Declaration of
Independence, stating that they continue to fulfil the criteria
of independence as required pursuant to section 149 of the
Companies Act, 2013 and Regulations 16 of the Listing Regulations.

In the opinion of your Board of Directors, the Independent
Directors fulfil the conditions specified in the Act and the rules
made there under for appointment as Independent Directors
including the integrity, expertise and experience and confirm that
they are independent of the management.

Disqualifications of Directors, if any:

None of the Directors on the Board of the Company are disqualified
pursuant to the provisions of Section 164 or Schedule V Part Il of
the Companies Act, 2013.

Declaration of Fit & proper Criteria

Your Company is adhering the Fit and Proper Criteria and your
Board of Directors have approved Fit and Proper Policy which
assesses the Fit and Proper Criteria for the directors at the time
of appointment and on a continuing basis, as per the criteria
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prescribed by RBI.

All the Directors of the Company have given the declaration to the
effect that they are Fit & Proper, to be appointed as Director, as per
the criteria prescribed by RBI / NHB.

Remuneration to Directors

During the year, Company has not paid any remuneration to
Non-executive Directors except as disclosed in the Financial
Statements forming part of this Report. Sitting fees has been paid
to the Independent Directors as per the provisions of Companies
Act, 2013, details of which has been presented in the Corporate
Governance Report.

ANNUAL EVALUATION

The annual evaluation process of the Board, its committees and
Individual Directors were conducted as per the provisions of the
Companies Act, 2013 and the listing regulations

The Nomination & Remuneration Committee and Board of
Directors carried out the evaluation of each Director’s performance
without the presence of the Director concerned who is being
evaluated, Statutory Board Committees on parameters such
as composition of Board and committees, execution of roles
and responsibilities, quality, quantity and timeliness of flow of
information, deliberations at the meeting etc.

During the vyear, Independent Directors of the Company also
held separate meetings to review the performance of the Non-
Independent Directors and Board as a whole and assessed the
quality, quantity and timeliness of flow of information between
the Company management and the Board which is necessary
for the Board to effectively and reasonably perform their duties.
Major aspects of board evaluation include who is to be evaluated,
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process of evaluation including laying down of objectives and
criteria to be adopted for evaluation of different persons, feedback
to the persons being evaluated and action plan based on the
results.

CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY

At India Shelter, we firmly believe in the power of making a
difference, one step at a time. Our unwavering dedication
lies in creating meaningful change by bringing together our
employees and communities to have a positive impact on
every aspect of society. Whether it is the economic, social, or
environmental imperatives, we are committed to fostering growth
and development. To achieve this, we empower communities
through targeted interventions in crucial areas such as healthcare,
education, skill development, and societal welfare. We extend a
helping hand to the underprivileged children and their families,
providing a ray of hope in their darkest hours with our initiatives like
Education, Healthcare, and empowerment. Through collaborative
efforts and a people centric approach, we strive to make a lasting
difference. We strive towards the progress of society, through our
Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) policy, which lays down the
action plan for defining how CSR is to be implemented and is in
compliance with the Schedule VII of the Companies Act, 2013.
The said policy is available at https://www.indiashelter.in/investor-
relations.

The Board constituted the Corporate Social Responsibility
Committee in terms of the provisions of Section 135 of the Act
and is chaired by an Independent (Non-Executive Director).

The Corporate Social Responsibility Committee of your Company
as on 31 March, 2024 comprises three members including two
independent directors as below:

Directors Designation DIN

Ms. Savita Mahajan Independent Director (Chairman of Committee) 06492679
Ms. Rachna Dikshit Independent Director 08759332
Mr. Sumir Chadha Nominee Director 00040789

The CSR Committee met two times in the year under consideration
on 14 August, 2023 and 08 February, 2024.

The attendance record of members is given in the Corporate
Governance Report forming part of this Annual Report.

The disclosures as per Rule 9 of Companies (Corporate Social
Responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014 is attached which forms part of
this Report as Annexure 4.

Business Responsibility & Sustainability Report (BRSR)

The Business Responsibility Report (BRR) for the financial year
ended 31 March, 2024 is attached, which forms part of this Report
as Annexure 5. The initiatives taken by the Company from an
environmental, social and governance perspective, in the format

as specified by SEBI from time to time,

DISCLOSURES UNDER SEXUAL HARASSMENT OF
WOMEN AT WORKPLACE (PREVENTION, PROHIBITION &
REDRESSAL) ACT 2013 READ WITH RULES.

The Company is committed to provide a work environment
that ensures that every Employee is treated with equal dignity
and respect. The Company has implemented a framework on
prevention of sexual harassment, which is in line with the Sexual
Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and
Redressal) Act, 2013. The Company educates Employees regarding
Sexual Harassment Policy through posters and regular mailers and
also conducts online trainings which form a part of the induction
process.

____________________________________________________________________
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The details of the composition of the Internal Complaint
Committee’s have been disclosed in the Corporate Governance
Report forming part of this Annual Report.

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 22 of Sexual Harassment
of Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition & Redressal)
Act 2013 read with Rules there under, the Internal Complaint
committee of the Company did not receive any complaint of
sexual harassment during the year under review.

RISK MANAGEMENT FRAMEWORK

Your Company has in place a Board constituted Risk Management
Committee. The details of the Committee and its terms of reference
are set out in the Corporate Governance Report forming part of
this Report. Your Company has Board approved Risk Management
Policy wherein risks faced by the Company are identified and
assessed.

Effective risk management and mitigation are critical to sustain
and grow any business. At India Shelter, we recognise the
importance of identifying risks and implementing mitigation plans
to reduce theirimpact. The Company proactively manages various
business risks through mitigation strategies tailored to each risk.
It constantly reviews and updates risk management policies to
ensure our business is well-positioned to navigate potential risks
successfully.

In compliance with the clause 51 of Chapter IX- Corporate
Governance of Non-Banking Financial Company -Housing
Finance Company (Reserve Bank) Directions, 2021, the Company
has designated Mr. Sharad Pareek as Chief Risk Officer (CRO) of the
Company.

During the Financial Year under review, the Risk Management
Committee reviewed the risks associated with the business of
your Company, undertook its root cause analysis and monitored
the efficacy of the measures taken to mitigate the same.

HUMAN RESOURCES DEVELOPMENT

Your Company has been following best human resource practices
and had 3,323 employees on its rolls as on 31 March, 2024
compared to 2,709 employees as on 31 March, 2023 registering
an increase of 19.0 %.

PARTICULARS OF EMPLOYEE RELATED DISCLOSURES

Your Company grants Employee Stock Options, share based
benefit to eligible employees with a view to attracting and
retaining the best talent, encouraging employees to align
individual performance with the Company's objectives and
promoting increased participation by them in the success of the
Company.

The details of the ESOP plan form part of Note No.43 of the
Financial Statements in this Annual Report.

In terms of Regulation 14 of Securities and Exchange Board of India
(Share Based Employee Benefits) Regulations 2014, the disclosures
with respect to the ESOP Schemes have been provided on the
website of the Company.

The disclosure with respect to remuneration as required under
section 197 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with rule 5 of the
Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial
Personnel) Rules, 2014 is available on the Company’s website. The
statements prescribed under rule 5(2) and 5(3) of the Companies
(Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules,
2014 are available for inspection by the Members at the Registered
Office of the Company during the business hours on all working
days of the Company up to the date of the forthcoming Annual
General Meeting. If any member is interested in obtaining a copy,
such member may send an e-mail to the Company secretary in
this regard

VIGIL MECHANISM & WHISTLE BLOWER POLICY

The Company have a Vigil Mechanism implemented through
Whistle Blower Policy, under which Directors, employees and
other stakeholders are free to report violations of applicable
laws and regulations. The Chairperson of the Audit Committee
has direct access to all complaints raised through the policy. The
policy is hosted on the website of the Company at https://www.
indiashelter.in/investor-relations.

The Company has also provided the facility to all the employees
of the Company to report any suspected, alleged or actual
fraud without disclosing their identity. A dedicated Email ID —
Whistleblowing@indiashelterin has been made for this purpose

which acts as a single point of contact for all the employees.

Further, there were no report under sub section (12) of section 143
of the Companies Act has been filed by the Statutory Auditors as
prescribed under Rule 13 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors)
Rules, 2014 with the Central Government, during the year and
upto the date of the report.

As regards the fraud on the Company, two frauds has been
reported as disclosed in Note No.44.31 of the Financial Statements.

CODE OF CONDUCT FOR PROHIBITION OF INSIDER
TRADING AND CODE OF PRACTICES AND PROCEDURES
FORFAIRDISCLOSURE OF UNPUBLISHED PRICE SENSITIVE
INFORMATION

The Board has adopted a code to regulate, monitor and report
trading by insiders in securities of the Company in accordance with
the provisions of SEBI (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations,
2015 as amended from time to time. The code inter alia requires
preclearance for dealing in the securities of the Company and
prohibits the purchase or sale of securities of the Company while
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in possession of unpublished price sensitive information in relation
to the Company and during the period when the trading window
is closed. The Board of Directors had adopted a ‘Code of Practices
and Procedures for Fair Disclosure of Unpublished Price Sensitive
Information’which is available on the website of the Company and
can be accessed at https://www.indiashelter.in/investor-relations.

PARTICULARS OF CONTRACTS OR ARRANGEMENTS WITH
RELATED PARTIES

All contracts / arrangements / transactions entered into by the
Company during the financial year with the related parties were
on arm’s length basis and were in the ordinary course of business.
There were no materially significant related party transactions
with promoters, directors, key managerial personnel or other
designated persons, which may have a potential conflict with the
interest of the Company at large.

The particulars of every contract or arrangements entered into by
the Company with related parties referred to in sub-section (1) of
section 188 of the Companies Act, 2013 have been disclosed in
Form No. AOC -2 as attached, which forms part of this Report as
Annexure 6. The Company has framed a Related Party Transaction
policy for the Company as per the NHB/RBI Directions which is
available on the website at https://www.indiashelter.in/investor-
relations.

INTERNAL AUDIT & INTERNAL CONTROLS OVER
FINANCIAL REPORTING

As per the provisions of section 134(5)c of the Companies Act,
2013, the Directors have an overall responsibility for ensuring
that the Company has implemented robust systems/ framework
of internal financial controls to provide them with reasonable
assurance regarding the adequacy and operating effectiveness
of controls with regards to reporting, operational and compliance
risks.

Your Company has in place adequate financial controls
commensurate with its size, scale and complexity of operations
with reference to its financial statements. Internal financial controls
of the Company are also similarly commensurate. These have been
designed to provide reasonable assurance about recording and
providing reliable financials information, ensuring integrity in
conducting business, accuracy and completeness in maintaining
accounting records and prevention and detection of frauds and
errors.

Your Company has an Internal Audit Department assisted by
External advisor Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu India Limited Liability
Partnership (“DTTILLP") wherever required, which is responsible
for independently evaluating the adequacy and effectiveness of
all internal controls, risk management, governance systems and
processes.

Significant audit observations and follow up actions thereon are
reported to the Audit Committee on quarterly basis. The Audit
Committee reviews and evaluates adequacy and effectiveness
of the Company’s internal control environment and monitors the
implementation of audit recommendations. The Company has
implemented all the recommendations of Audit Committee.

Based on information provided, nothing has come to the attention
of Directors to indicate that any material breakdown in the
function of these controls, procedures or systems occurred during
the year under review. There have been no significant changes in
our internal financial controls during the year that have materially
affected, or are reasonably likely to materially affect, our internal
financial controls.

PARTICULARS OF LOANS, GUARANTEES ORINVESTMENTS
UNDER SECTION 186

Since the Company is an HFC, the disclosure regarding particulars
of loans given, guarantees given and security provided in the
ordinary course of business is exempted under the provisions of
Section 186(11) of the Companies Act, 2013.

However, the details of loans, guarantees, and investments made
as required under the provisions of Section 186 of the Act and the
rules made thereunder are set out in the Notes to the Standalone
Financial Statements of the Company.

DISCLOSURE UNDER SECTION 43(A)(ll) OF THE ACT

Your Company has not issued any shares with differential rights
and hence no information as per provisions of Section 43(a)(ii) of
the Act read with Rule 4(4) of the Companies (Share Capital and
Debenture) Rules, 2014 is furnished.

DISCLOSURE UNDER SECTION 54(1)(D) OF THE ACT

The Company has not issued any sweat equity shares during the
year under review and hence no information as per provisions of
Section 54(1)(d) of the Act read with Rule 8(13) of the Companies
(Share Capital and Debenture) Rules, 2014 is furnished.

DISCLOSURE UNDER SECTION 67(3) OF THE ACT:

During the year under review, there were no instances of non-
exercise of voting rights directly by the employee, in respect of
shares purchased directly by employees under a scheme hence
no information pursuant to Section 67(3) of the Act read with Rule
16(4) of Companies (Share Capital and Debentures) Rules, 2014 is
furnished.

DISCLOSURE UNDER RULE 8 OF THE COMPANIES
(ACCOUNTS) RULES, 2014:

During the year under review the Company neither made had any
application against the Company or no proceedings are pending
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under the Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code, 2016 (31 of 2016).
Further there were no instances of one-time settlement for any
loans taken from the Banks or Financial Institutions

MAINTENANCE OF COST RECORDS

The Central Government has not specified the maintenance of
cost records under section 148(1) of the Act, for the services of
the Company.

INVESTOR EDUCATION AND PROTECTION FUND:

The Company has not transferred any amount to Investor
Education and Protection Fund during the year under review,
since nothing remain unpaid or unclaimed during the current year
or during the period of past 7 years.

WEBSITE DISCLOSURES

Your Company has made its disclosures on its website www.
indiashelter.in. All the regulatory disclosures, compliances, public
notices and policies have been regularly updated. Our customer
can also reach us regarding toll-free helpline number, contact
details of Principal Officer, submit complaints or grievances, if any,
etc.

ANNUAL RETURN

Pursuant to Section 92(3) read with section 134(3)(a) of the
Companies Act, 2013and Rule 12 of the Companies (Management
and Administration) Rules, 2014, copies of the Annual Returns
of the Company prepared in accordance with Section 92(1) of
the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 11 of the Companies
(Management and Administration) Rules, 2014 are placed on the
website of the Company at https://www.indiashelter.in/investor-

relations.

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

The Management Discussion and Analysis report as required
in term of SEBI (Listing Obligation & Disclosure Requirements)
Regulations, 2015, is attached which forms part of this Report as
Annexure 7.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT

In terms of sub-section (5) of Section 134 of the Companies Act,
2013, we, the Directors of your Company, state in respect of 2023-
24 that: —

(@) in the preparation of the annual accounts, the applicable
accounting standards had been followed along with proper
explanation relating to material departures;

(b) the Directors had selected such accounting policies and
applied them consistently and made judgments and
estimates that are reasonable and prudent so as to give a
true and fair view of the state of affairs of the company at

the end of the financial year and of the profit and loss of the
company for that period;

(c) the Directors had taken proper and sufficient care for the
maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance
with the provisions of this Act for safeguarding the assets of
the company and for preventing and detecting fraud and
other irreqularities;

(d) the Directors had prepared the annual accounts on a going
concern basis; and

(e) the Directors had laid down internal financial controls to be
followed by the company and that such internal financial
controls are adequate and were operating effectively.

AUDITORS

Statutory Auditors

As per provisionsof Section 139, 142 and other applicable provisions
of the Companies Act, 2013, if any, read with the Companies (Audit
& Auditors) Rules, 2014, and RBI guidelines dated 27 April, 2021
and other relevant provisions including any statutory enactment
or modification thereof, appointment of M/s. T R Chadha & Co LLP,
Chartered Accountants, having Registration number 006711N/
N500028 was approved by Audit Committee by Circular resolution
bearing No 01/2021-22 dated 01 September, 2021 and Board of
Directors by Circular resolution bearing No 15/2021-22 dated 01
September, 2021 subject to the approval of shareholders of the
Company and subsequently by the shareholders of the Company
in the Annual General Meeting held on 29 September, 2021 as
Statutory Auditors of India Shelter to hold the office from the
conclusion of 23rd Annual General Meeting till the conclusion of
26th Annual General Meeting.

In view of the above, the tenure of M/s. T R Chadha & Co LLP,
Chartered Accountants, as Statutory Auditors of the Company will
get completed at the ensuing 26th Annual General Meeting.

AUDITORS’ REPORT

The Statutory Auditors Report is unqualified. The Statutory
Auditors have not made any adverse comments on the working of
the Company. The Standalone and Consolidated Financials, notes
to the Financial Statements, read with the Auditors’ Report, are
self-explanatory and not require further clarification.

DETAILS IN RESPECT OF FRAUDS UNDER SUB-SECTION
(12) OF SECTION 143 OF THE ACT

There were no instances of any frauds being reported by the
Company'’s auditors.
Secretarial Auditors and Secretarial Audit Report

In accordance with Section 204 of the Companies Act, 2013 and
Rule 9 of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of
Managerial Personnel) Rules 2014, Mr. Jitender Singh (Membership
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No.: A33610 & CP: 26612) was appointed as Secretarial Auditor
to conduct the Secretarial Audit of the Company for the year
2023-24 by the Board of Directors in their meeting held on 08
February, 2024. Company has provided all assistance and facilities
to the Secretarial Auditor for conducting their audit. The Report
of Secretarial Auditor for 2023-24 is annexed, which forms part of
this Report as Annexure 8. The report is self-explanatory and there
were no qualifications in the Auditor’s Report.

SIGNIFICANT AND MATERIAL ORDERS PASSED BY
THE REGULATORS/COURTS/TRIBUNALS IMPACTING
THE GOING CONCERN STATUS AND THE COMPANY’S
OPERATIONS IN FUTURE

There were no significant orders passed by the Regulators / Courts
/ Tribunals which would impact the going concern status of the
Company and its future operations.

However, the Company was levied a penalty of I 24,000/- with
applicable taxes each from both the Stock exchanges, National
Stock Exchange of India Limited and BSE Limited for Non-

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Sd/-

Mr. Sudhin Bhagwandas Choksey
DIN: 00036085

Place: Gurugram

Date: 08 May, 2024

compliance with the provisions of composition of Nomination and
Remuneration Committee under Regulation 19(1)/ 19(2) of SEBI
(Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations,
2015.

APPRECIATION

Your Directors wish to place on record their appreciation and
sincerely acknowledge the contribution and support from
shareholders, customers, debenture holders, debenture trustees,
Central and State Governments, Bankers, Reserve Bank of India,
National Housing Bank, Registrar of Companies, Securities and
Exchange Board of India, BSE Limited, National Stock Exchange
of India Limited, Registrar & Share Transfer Agents, Credit Rating
Agencies and other Statutory and Regulatory Authorities for the
kind co-operation and assistance provided to the Company. The
Directors also extend their special appreciation to the employees
at all levels for their contribution towards the growth of the
Company which was made possible by their hard work, dedication
and continued support.

Sd/-

Mr. Rupinder Singh
DIN: 09153382

Place: Gurugram
Date: 08 May, 2024
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ANNEXURE -1

Form AOC-1

(Pursuant to first proviso to sub-section (3) of section 129 read with rule 5 of Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014)
Statement containing salient features of the financial statement of subsidiaries/associate companies/joint ventures

PART “A”: SUBSIDIARIES

(Information in respect of each subsidiary to be presented with amounts in )

Sl. | Particulars Details (% In Lacs)
No.
Name of the subsidiary India Shelter Capital Finance Limited'
2. The date since when subsidiary was acquired -
Reporting period for the subsidiary concerned, if different from the holding company’s | 01 April, 2023 to 31 March, 2024
reporting period
4, Reporting currency and Exchange rate as on the last date of the relevant Financial year | NA
in the case of foreign subsidiaries
5 Share capital 1,200.00
6. Reserves & surplus 108.90
7. Total assets 1,311.27
8 Total Liabilities 2.37
0. Investments 0.00
10. | Turnover 0.00
11. | Profit before taxation 97.24
12. | Provision for taxation 24.79
13. | Profit after taxation 7245
14. | Proposed Dividend 0.00
15. | Extent of shareholding (in percentage) 100%

' Subsidiary Company has not commenced business till 31 March, 2024.
Names of subsidiaries which are yet to commence operations: India Shelter Capital Finance Limited

Names of subsidiaries which have been liquidated or sold during the year: Not Applicable

PART “B”: ASSOCIATES AND JOINT VENTURES

Statement pursuant to Section 129 (3) of the Companies Act, 2013 related to Associate Companies and Joint Ventures

Name of associates/Joint Ventures - -

1. Latest audited Balance Sheet Date - -

2. Date on which the Associate or Joint venture was associated or acquired

3. Shares of Associate/Joint Ventures held by the Company on the year end - -

No. - -

Amount of Investment in Associates/Joint Venture - -

Extent of shareholding (in percentage) ; _

Description of how there is significant influence - -

Reason why the associate/joint venture is not consolidated - -

Net worth attributable to shareholding as per latest audited Balance Sheet - -

N|o|w s

Profit/Loss for the year - -

i. Considered in Consolidation - -

ii. Not Considered in Consolidation - -

1. Names of associates or joint ventures which are yet to commence operations. Not Applicable

2. Names of associates or joint ventures which have been liquidated or sold during the year. Not Applicable

ANNEXURE - 2

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

COMPANY’S PHILOSOPHY ON CODE OF GOVERNANCE

India Shelter Finance Corporation Limited (referred as “Your
Company”) is committed towards achieving the highest standards
of Corporate Governance right from its establishment by staying
true to its core values of Honesty, Respect, and Hard work
in all its engagements. Your Company’'s Corporate Governance
framework ensures that it makes timely and appropriate
disclosures and shares factual and accurate information to its
stakeholders so as to make an informed decision. The Company
is in compliance with Non-Banking Financial Company — Housing
Finance Company (Reserve Bank) Directions, 2021 (hereinafter “RBI
Master Directions”) and the applicable SEBI LODR Regulations, SEBI
(Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations, 2015, SEBI (Substantial
Acquisition of Shares and Takeovers) Regulations, 2011, Companies
Act, 2013 and other applicable laws.

GOVERNANCE STRUCTURE AND DEFINED ROLES AND
RESPONSIBILITIES

Your Company’s governance structure comprised of Board of
Directors, Committees of Board and the Management. Your
Company encompasses the structure, practices and processes
adopted in every sphere of the Company’s operations to provide
long term value to its stakeholders through ethical behaviour in
doing business. Your Company transforms these core values into
business policies and practices with the aim of sustainable growth
for all its stakeholders. Your Company believes that adopting
and adhering to the best standards of Corporate Governance
encourages the Company to build a trustworthy, moral as well
as ethical environment in the Company. The Company duly
acknowledges its fiduciary role and responsibility towards all of its
stakeholders including shareholders that strives hard to meet their
expectations.

BUSINESS RESPONSIBILITY AND SUSTAINABILITY REPORT

The Business Responsibility and Sustainability Report describing
the initiatives taken by the Company from an environmental, social
and governance perspective forms part of this Annual Report.

The Board of Directors of the Company as on March 31, 2024 are:

BOARD OF DIRECTORS (“BOARD”)

The Board represents the interest of the Company’s stakeholders,
oversees and directs the Company’s overall business and affairs,
reviews corporate performance, monitors strategic decisions
and has an oversight on regulatory compliances and corporate
governance matters and provides the management with
guidance and strategic direction. The Board, along with its various
Committees, provides leadership and guidance to the Company’s
management and directs, supervises and ensures functioning of
the Company in the best interest of all the stakeholders.

The Directors attend and actively participate in Board Meetings
and Meetings of the Committees in which they are Members.
The responsibilities of the Board include various matters such
as providing overall direction, reviewing quarterly/annual
results, ensuring ethical behaviour and compliance of laws and
regulations, reviewing policies and its alignment with the recent
developments and amendments, developing corporate culture
and bringing such an enabling environment which creates value
through sustainable business growth etc.

Size and Composition of Board

Your Company's Board is constituted of highly experienced
professionals from diverse backgrounds which consists of values
of collaborative spirit, expert thinking and a primary role of
trusteeship to protect and enhance stakeholders' value through
strategic supervision. The Board provides direction and exercises
appropriate controls. The Company’s Board has an appropriate
mix of Independent and Non-Independent Directors as well as
Non-Executive and Executive Directors. The Board comprises of
8 Directors of whom 4 are Independent Directors (including 2
Women Independent Director), 3 are Non- Executive Directors
(out of which 2 are Nominee Directors and Chairman & Nominee
Director) and the Managing Director & CEO. The Chairman of the
Company is a Non-Executive Nominee Director and not related to
the Managing Director & CEO of the Company. The Composition
of the Board is in conformity with the applicable provisions of
the Companies Act, 2013 (hereinafter referred as “Act”) and SEBI
(Listing Obligation and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations
2015 and regulatory requirements and is in accordance with the
highest standards of Corporate Governance.

Directors Designation DIN

Mr. Sudhin Bhagwandas Choksey Chairman and Non- Executive Director (Nominee) 00036085
Mr. Rupinder Singh Managing Director and Chief Executive Officer 09153382
Mr. Shailesh J. Mehta Non- Executive Director (Nominee) 01633893
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Directors Designation DIN

Mr. Sumir Chadha Non- Executive Director (Nominee) 00040789
Mr. Parveen Kumar Gupta Independent Director 02895343
Ms. Rachna Dikshit Independent Director 08759332
Ms. Savita Mahajan Independent Director 06492679
Mr. Thomson Thomas Independent Director 09691435

Changes in Board of Directors

The following changes took place in the composition of Board of
Directors during the year:

® TheBoard of Directors of the Company through resolution by
circulation on 12 June, 2023, appointed Mr. Parveen Kumar
Gupta as an Additional (Independent & Non-Executive)
Director with effect from 12 June, 2023 and shareholders
confirmed his appointment as an Independent Director in
their meeting held on 14 July, 2023.

® The Board of Directors of the Company in their meeting
held on 12 July, 2023, appointed Mr. Ajay Narayan Jha as
an Additional (Independent & Non-Executive) Director with
effect from 12 July, 2023 and shareholders confirmed his
appointment as an Independent Director in their meeting
held on 18 July, 2023.

® The Board of Directors of the Company in their meeting held
on 31 July, 2023 accepted resignation of Mr. Anil Mehta as
a Chairman and Non-executive director with effect from
closure of business hours of July 31, 2023.

® The Board of Directors of the Company in their meeting
held on 31 July, 2023, re-designated Mr. Sudhin Bhagwandas
Choksey as a Chairman and Non-Executive Director

(Nominee) and appointed Ms. Savita Mahajan as an
Additional (Independent & Non-Executive) Director with
effect from 31 July, 2023 and shareholders confirmed her
appointment as an Independent Director in their meeting
held on 01 August, 2023.

® The Board of Directors of the Company in their meeting
held on 08 February, 2024 accepted resignation of Mr. Ajay
Narayan Jha as an Independent Director with effect from
closure of business hours of 08 February, 2024,

® The Board of Directors of the Company, through resolution
by circulation on 07 March, 2024, accepted resignation of Mr.
Anup Kumar Gupta as a Non-Executive Director (Nominee)
of the Company effective from closure of business hours of
07 March, 2024.

Following changes took place in composition of Board of
Directors from financial year ended 31 March, 2024 till date
of this report

® The shareholders of the Company have passed a special
resolution for continuation of Mr. Shailesh J. Mehta (DIN:
01633893) as a Non-Executive Non-Independent Director
beyond age of 75 Years, in their extraordinary general
meeting held on 19 April, 2024.

Number of other Board of Directors or Committees in which director is member or chairperson, as on 31 March, 2024-

Name of Director No. of Other Membership in Committees as
Di:;itezril:‘igtsii: Member Chairperson
Mr. Sudhin Bhagwandas Choksey 3 6 3
Mr. Rupinder Singh 0 1 0
Mr. Shailesh J. Mehta 2 3 1
Mr. Sumir Chadha 2 0 0
Mr. Parveen Kumar Gupta 1 5 1
Ms. Rachna Dikshit 1 1 1
Ms. Savita Mahajan 1 4 1
Mr. Thomson Thomas 0 1 0

**For the purpose of considering the Committee Memberships and Chairpersonship’s for a Director, Audit Committee and the Stakeholders’

Relationship Committee of Listed Companies including our Company has been considered.
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Other Directorships of Directors in Listed Entity as on 31 March, 2024

Name of Director Name of listed Entity

Category of Directorship

Mr. Sudhin Bhagwandas Choksey | Gujarat Ambuja Exports Limited

Fairchem Organics Limited

CSB Bank Limited

Independent Director
Independent Director

Independent Director

Mr. Rupinder Singh Not Any

Not Any

Mr. Shailesh J. Mehta

Manappuram Finance Limited

Chairman and Non- Executive Independent Director

Aptus Value Housing Finance India Limited | Non-Executive Director

Mr. Sumir Chadha

Aptus Value Housing Finance India Limited | Nominee Director

Star Health and Allied Insurance Co Ltd Nominee Director

Ms. Savita Mahajan Aurobindo Pharma Limited

Independent Director

Ms. Rachna Dikshit

Capital Small Finance Bank Ltd.

Independent Director

Mr. Thomson Thomas Not Any

Not Any

Mr. Parveen Kumar Gupta

Utkarsh Small Finance Bank Limited

Chairman and Independent Director

Independent Directors

Independent Directors are appointed for a specific term based
on the recommendations of the Nomination and Remuneration
Committee by the Board and the members at their respective
meetings.Independent Director acts as a guide, coach,and mentor
to the Company. The role of an Independent Director includes
improving corporate credibility and governance standards and
helping in managing risk.

Meeting of Independent Directors

In compliance with Regulation 25 (3) of the Listing Regulations
and Schedule IV of the Act, separate meetings of Independent
Directors were held two times, on 07 December, 2023 and on
08 February, 2024 in 2023-24, without the presence of Non-
Independent Directors and members of the management.

Declaration by Independent Directors

The Independent Directors have submitted declaration of
independence, as required pursuant to sub-section (7) of Section
149 of the Companies Act, 2013 stating that they meet the criteria
of independence as provided in sub-section (6) of Section 149 of
the Act and in terms of Regulation 25(8) of Listing Regulations,
they have confirmed that they are not aware of any circumstance
or situation that exists or may be reasonably anticipated that could
impair or impact their ability to discharge their duties.

They have also confirmed compliance with the provisions of Rule
6 of Companies (Appointment and Qualification of Directors)
Rules, 2014 relating to the inclusion of their name in the databank
of Independent Directors maintained by Indian Institute of
Corporate Affairs (IICA). The terms and conditions of appointment
of Independent Directors are available on the Company’s website.

Fit & Proper Criteria

The Company has formulated and adopted a Policy on Fit & Proper
Criteria for the Directors as per the provisions of the RBI Master
Directions.

Familiarisation Programmes for The Independent Directors

The Familiarisation Programme of your Company endeavours
to familiarise Independent Directors with the Housing Industry
scenario and to keep the Independent Directors in the loop with
matters relating to the industry in which Company operates,
its business model, the operational and financial performance
of the Company, risk matrix, mitigation and management,
governing regulations, overall socio economic regime of the
industry, information technology including cyber security, and
major developments and updates on the Company so as to
enable them to take well-informed decisions in a timely manner.
Further, at the time of appointment of an Independent Director,
the Company issues a formal letter of appointment outlining
his/ her role, function, duties and responsibilities. The details of
familiarisation programme imparted to independent directors and
policy of the Company are available on the Company’s website at
https.//www.indiashelter.in.

Cessation of Independent Director

During the year Mr. Ajay Narayan Jha (DIN: 02270071) resigned as
an Independent Director of the Company w.e.f closure of business
hours of 08 February, 2024 due to his appointment as a Member of
the Sixteenth Finance Commission by the President of India vide
Ministry of Finance (Department of Economic Affairs) Notification
S.0. 369(F) dated January 30, 2024.
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Core Skills/Expertise/Competencies of the Board:

The Board has identified the skills / expertise / competence, fundamental for the effective functioning of the Company.

Following are the list of core skills / expertise / competencies identified by the board:

Industry Experience
Financial Expertise
Strategy & Planning

Technology Expertise

Governance, Compliance & Risk Advisory

Leadership Experience

Name of Director

Core skills / expertise / competencies

Mr. Sudhin Bhagwandas Choksey

Compliance & Risk Advisory

Industry Experience, Financial Expertise, Strategy and Planning, Leadership experience, Governance,

Mr. Rupinder Singh

experience, Governance, Compliance & Risk Advisory

Industry Experience, Financial Expertise, Strategy & Planning, Technology Expertise, Leadership

Mr. Shailesh J. Mehta

Compliance & Risk Advisory

Industry Experience, Financial Expertise, Strategy & Planning, Leadership experience, Governance,

Mr. Sumir Chadha

experience, Governance, Compliance & Risk Advisory

Industry Experience, Financial Expertise, Strategy & Planning, Technology Expertise, Leadership

Ms. Savita Mahajan

Strategy & Planning , Leadership experience, Governance, Compliance & Risk Advisory

Ms. Rachna Dikshit

Advisory

Industry Experience, Strategy & Planning, Leadership experience , Governance, Compliance & Risk

Mr. Thomson Thomas

Strategy & Planning, Leadership experience, Governance, Compliance & Risk Advisory

Mr. Parveen Kumar Gupta

experience, Governance, Compliance & Risk Advisory

Industry Experience, Technology Expertise, Financial Expertise, Strategy & Planning, Leadership

General Body Meetings

During the year Annual General Meeting of the members of the Company was held on July 14, 2023. During the year 3 Extra-Ordinary
general meeting of the members of the Company were held on [1] 18 July, 2023; [2] 01 August, 2023 and [3] 27 September, 2023 and 1
postal ballot event was conducted from 19 February, 2024 to 19 March, 2024 and results were announced on 20 March, 2024.

Annual General Meeting (AGM):

The details of Annual General Meetings held in last 3 years along with the details of the Special Resolutions, as more particularly set
out in the notices of the respective AGMs and passed by the members are as follows:

Financial year/AGM

Venue

Date & Time

2020-21/23“ AGM

6th Floor, Plot No.15 Institutional Area, Sector 44, Gurgaon,
Haryana-122002

29 September, 2021 at 11:00 A.M.

2021-22/24" AGM

6th Floor, Plot No.15 Institutional Area, Sector 44, Gurgaon,
Haryana-122002

26 July, 2022 at 11:00 AM.

2022-23/25" AGM

6th Floor, Plot No.15 Institutional Area, Sector 44, Gurgaon,
Haryana-122002

14 July, 2023 at 05:00 PM.

Details of Special Resolutions Passed During the Last Three AGMs are Given Below:

Date of Annual General
Meeting

Particulars

29 September, 2021

Company, as Special Resolution

® Approved appointment of Ms. Rachna Dikshit (DIN:08759332) as an Independent Director of the

26 July, 2022

Special Resolution

® Approved an increase in Managerial Remuneration of MD & CEO of the Company for 2022-23, as
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Date of Annual General | Particulars
Meeting
14 July, 2023 ® Approved an increase in Managerial Remuneration of MD & CEO of the Company for 2023-24, as
Special Resolution
® Approved the Transfer of option from Employee Stock option Plan 2017 to Employee Stock Option
Plan 2021, as Special Resolution
® Approved appointment of Mr. Parveen Kumar Gupta (DIN: 02895343) as independent Director of the
Company, as Special Resolution:
® Approved the amendments in the ESOP Schemes 2017 and 2021, as Special Resolution:

iii. Details of Special Resolution passed through postal ballot last year:

During the year under review, one postal ballot event was conducted by the Company from 19 February, 2024 to 19 March,2024 and

results were announced on 20 March, 2024. Details of Special Resolution passed through Postal Ballot and Details of voting pattern

are as below:

1. Amended the Memorandum of Association of the Company as a Special Resolution.

Particulars E-Voting
No. of votes polled | % of total number of
(Equity shares of valid votes cast
% 5/- each)
Total e-votes 9,27,23,699 -
Less: Invalid e-votes (as per register) 0 -
Net valid e-votes (as per register) 9,27,23,699 100
E-votes with assent for the resolution as a percentage of net valid e-votes 9,27,23,242 99.9995
E-votes with dissent for the resolution as a percentage of net valid e-votes 457 0.0005
2. Ratified the ESOP Schemes 2021 and 2023, as a Special Resolution.
Particulars E-Voting
No. of votes polled % of total number of
(Equity shares of valid votes cast
T 5/- each)
Total e-votes 9,27,23,699 -
Less: Invalid e-votes (as per register) 0 -
Net valid e-votes (as per register) 9,27,23,699 100
E-votes with assent for the resolution as a percentage of net valid e-votes 8,30,27,172 89.5426
E-votes with dissent for the resolution as a percentage of net valid e-votes 96,96, 527 104574

3. Approved payment of commission to Independent Directors as a Special Resolution.

Particulars E-Voting
No. of votes polled % of total number of
(Equity shares of valid votes cast

% 5/- each)

Total e-votes 9,27,23,661 -
Less: Invalid e-votes (as per register) 0 -
Net valid e-votes (as per register) 9,27,23,661 100
E-votes with assent for the resolution as a percentage of net valid e-votes 9,02,00,348 97.2787
E-votes with dissent for the resolution as a percentage of net valid e-votes 25,23,313 27213
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Person who conducted the Postal Ballot exercise

Mr. Jitender Singh (Membership No. A33610 and C.P. No. 26612),
Practicing Company Secretary, was appointed as the Scrutiniser
to scrutinise the postal ballot and remote e-voting process in a fair
and transparent manner.

Details of special resolution proposed to be passed through
postal ballot

No Special Resolution is proposed to be passed through postal
ballot on or before the ensuing Annual General Meeting.

Procedure for Postal Ballot

The postal ballot was conducted in accordance with the provisions
specified in Section 110 and other applicable provisions, if any, of
the Act read with Rule 22 of the Companies (Management and
Administration) Rules, 2014. The shareholders were provided the
facility to vote through e-voting. As per the MCA Circulars, this
Postal Ballot Notice was sent only through electronic mode to
those Members whose email addresses are registered with the
Company or depository / depository participant. Shareholders
held equity shares as on the cut-off date casted their votes

through e-voting during the voting period fixed for this purpose.
After completion of scrutiny of votes, the scrutiniser submitted his
report to the Chairman and the results of voting by postal ballot
were announced within two working days of conclusion of the
voting period. The results were displayed on the website of the
Company https://www.indiashelter.in/ and communicated to the
Stock Exchanges, Depositories, and Registrar and Share Transfer
Agents. The resolutions, passed by the requisite majority, are
deemed to be passed on the last date specified for e-voting.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING

During the Financial Year under review, the Board of the Company
had met fourteen times during the year under consideration on
[1109 May, 2023 ; [2] 12 July, 2023; [3] 31 July, 2023; [4] 03 August,
2023; [5] 14 August, 2023; [6] 27 October, 2023; [7] 13 November,
2023; [8] 23 November, 2023; [9] 07 December, 2023; [10] 07
December, 2023;[11] 12 December, 2023; [12] 16 December, 2023;
[13] 18 December, 2023; [14] 08 February, 2024.

The attendance of the Board of Directors at the Board Meetings
during the year and at the last Annual General Meeting ["AGM”]
are as under:

Name Category Number of Meetings Last AGM
Held Entitled | Attended attended
Mr. Sudhin Bhagwandas Choksey Chairman & Nominee Director 14 14 09 No
(DIN: 00036085)
Mr. Anil Mehta (DIN: 02132315)* Chairman & Non Executive 14 03 03 Yes
Director
Mr. Rupinder Singh (DIN: 09153382) Managing Director and Chief 14 14 14 Yes

Executive Officer

Ms. Rachna Dikshit (DIN: 08759332) Independent Director 14 14 14 Yes
Mr. Thomson Thomas (DIN: 09691435) Independent Director 14 14 12 No
Mr. Parveen Kumar Gupta (DIN: 02895343) * Independent Director 14 13 13 No
Mr. Ajay Narayan Jha (DIN: 02270071) * Independent Director 14 12 10 NA
Ms. Savita Mahajan (DIN: 06492679) * Independent Director 14 11 11 NA
Mr. Anup Gupta (DIN: 02284944)* Non-Executive Director (Nominee) 14 14 13 No
Dr. Shailesh J Mehta (DIN: 01633893) Non-Executive Director (Nominee) 14 14 10 No
Mr. Sumir Chadha (DIN: 00040789) Non-Executive Director (Nominee) 14 14 6 No

® TheBoard of Directors of the Company through resolution by
circulation on 12 June, 2023, appointed Mr. Parveen Kumar
Gupta as an Additional (Independent & Non-Executive)
Director with effect from 12 June, 2023 and shareholders
confirmed his appointment as an Independent Director in
their meeting held on 14 July, 2023.

® The Board of Directors of the Company in their meeting
held on 12 July, 2023, appointed Mr. Ajay Narayan Jha as

an Additional (Independent & Non-Executive) Director with
effect from 12 July, 2023 and shareholders confirmed his
appointment as an Independent Director in their meeting
held on 18 July, 2023.

® The Board of Directors of the Company in their meeting held
on 31 July, 2023 accepted resignation of Mr. Anil Mehta as
a Chairman and Non-executive director with effect from
closure of business hours of 31 July, 2023.
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® The Board of Directors of the Company in their meeting
held on 31 July, 2023, re-designated Mr. Sudhin Bhagwandas
Choksey as a Chairman and Non-Executive Director
(Nominee) and appointed Ms. Savita Mahajan as an
Additional (Independent & Non-Executive) Director with
effect from 31 July, 2023 and shareholders confirmed her
appointment as an Independent Director in their meeting
held on 01 August, 2023.

® The Board of Directors of the Company in their meeting
held on 08 February, 2024 accepted resignation of Mr. Ajay
Narayan Jha as an Independent Director with effect from
closure of business hours of 08 February, 2024.

® The Board of Directors of the Company, through resolution
by circulation on 07 March, 2024, accepted resignation of Mr.
Anup Kumar Gupta as a Non-Executive Director (Nominee)
of the Company effective from closure of business hours of
07 March, 2024

Disclosure of relationship between directors inter-se

There has been no relationship between directors other than of
professional works.

COMMITTEES OF THE BOARD

The Board has constituted sub-committees to focus on specific
areas and make informed decisions within the authority delegated
to each of the Committees. Each Committee of the Board is guided
by its charter, which defines the scope, powers and composition
of the Committee. All decisions and recommendations of the
Committees were placed before the Board for information or
approval. All decisions and recommendations of the various
Committees were accepted by the Board during the 2023-24. The

compliance with the applicable provisions of the Companies Act
2013, SEBI Listing Regulations and Master Direction — Non-Banking
Financial Company — Housing Finance Company (Reserve Bank)
Directions, 2021("RBI Master Directions”) issued by Reserve Bank of
India and amendment thereof.

1. Audit Committee
Nomination and Remuneration Committee
Corporate Social Responsibility Committee
Risk Management Committee

Stakeholders Relationship Committee

IT Strategy Committee

2

3

4

5

6.  Asset Liability Management Committee

/

8. Wilful Defaulter Identification & Review Committee and
9

Customer Service & Grievance Redressal Committee

On 31 July, 2023, IPO Committee was established by the Company
to monitor the process of IPO and with successful closure of the
IPO and fulfilment of purpose of IPO committee, the Committee
was dissolved on 08 February, 2024.

The recommendations made by above Committees were
accepted by the Board.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Board constituted the Audit Committee in terms of provisions
of Section 177 of the Act and RBI Master Directions and Regulation
18 of the SEBI Listing Regulations and is chaired by a Non-Executive
Independent Director.

The Audit Committee of your Company as on 31 March, 2024
comprises four members including three independent directors

composition and functioning of these Board Committees is in as below:

Directors Designation DIN

Ms. Rachna Dikshit Independent Director (Chairman of Committee) 08759332
Mr. Thomson Thomas Independent Director 09691435
Mr. Parveen Kumar Gupta Independent Director 02895343
Mr. Shailesh J Mehta Non-Executive Director (Nominee) 01633893

Terms of reference as prescribed by the board shall inter alia,
include,

1. oversight of financial reporting process and the disclosure of
financial information relating to our Company to ensure that
the financial statements are correct, sufficient and credible;

2. recommendation to the Board of Directors for appointment,
re-appointment, replacement, remuneration and terms
of appointment of auditors of our Company including the
internal auditor, cost auditor and statutory auditor, of our
Company and the fixation of the audit fee;

3. approval of payment to statutory auditors for any other
services rendered by the statutory auditors;

4. examining and reviewing, with the management, the
annual financial statements and auditor’s report thereon
before submission to the Board for approval, with particular
reference to

a)  matters required to be included in the director’s
responsibility statement to be included in the Board's
report in terms of clause (c) of sub-section 3 of Section
134 of the Companies Act, 2013;

____________________________________________________________________
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10.
1.

12.

13.

14.

________________

b) changes, if any, in accounting policies and practices
and reasons for the same;

C)  majoraccounting entries involving estimates based on
the exercise of judgment by management;

d) significant adjustments made in the financial
statements arising out of audit findings;

e) compliance with listing and other legal requirements
relating to financial statements;

f)  disclosure of any related party transactions; and
g) modified opinion(s) in the draft audit report.

reviewing, with the management, the quarterly, half-yearly
and annual financial statements before submission to the
Board for approval;

reviewing, with the management, the statement of uses /
application of funds raised through an issue (public issue,
rights issue, preferential issue, etc), the statement of funds
utilised for purposes other than those stated in the offer
document / prospectus / notice and the report submitted
by the monitoring agency monitoring the utilisation of
proceeds of a public issue or rights issue or preferential issue
or qualified institutions placement, and making appropriate
recommendations to the board to take up steps in this
matter;

reviewing and monitoring the auditor’s independence and
performance, and effectiveness of audit process;

approval of any subsequent modification of transactions of
our Company with related parties and omnibus approval for
related party transactions proposed to be entered into by our
Company, subject to the conditions as may be prescribed;

Explanation: The term “related party transactions” shall
have the same meaning as provided in Clause 2(zc) of the
SEBI Listing Regulations and/or the applicable Accounting
Standards and/or the Companies Act, 2013.

reviewing, at least on a quarterly basis, the details of related
party transactions entered into by our Company pursuant to
each of the omnibus approvals given;

scrutiny of inter-corporate loans and investments;

valuation of undertakings or assets of our Company and
appointing a registered valuer in terms of Section 247 of the
Companies Act, 2013, wherever it is necessary;

evaluation of internal financial controls and risk management
systems;

reviewing, with the management, performance of statutory
and internal auditors, and adequacy of the internal control
systems;

reviewing the adequacy of internal audit function, if any,
including the structure of the internal audit department,
staffing and seniority of the official heading the department,
reporting structure coverage and frequency of internal audit;

15.

16.

17.

18.

19.
20.

21.

22.

23.

24.

25.

26.

discussion with internal auditors of any significant findings
and follow-up thereon;

reviewing the findings of any internal investigations by the
internal auditors into matters where there is suspected fraud
or irregularity or a failure of internal control systems of a
material nature and reporting the matter to the Board;

discussion with statutory auditors before the audit
commences, about the nature and scope of audit as well as
post-audit discussion to ascertain any area of concern;

looking into the reasons for substantial defaults in the
payment to depositors, debenture holders, shareholders (in
case of non-payment of declared dividends) and creditors;

reviewing the functioning of the whistle blower mechanism;

monitoring the end use of funds through public offers and
related matters;

overseeing the vigil mechanism established by our Company,
with the chairman of the Audit Committee directly hearing
grievances of victimisation of employees and directors,
who used vigil mechanism to report genuine concerns in
appropriate and exceptional cases;

approval of appointment of chief financial officer (i.e., the
whole-time finance Director or any other person heading
the finance function or discharging that function) after
assessing the qualifications, experience and background, etc.
of the candidate;

reviewing the utilisation of loans and/or advances from/
investment by the holding company in the subsidiary
exceeding I 1,000,000,000 or 10% of the asset size of the
subsidiary, whichever is lower including existing loans/
advances/ investments existing as on the date of coming
into force of this provision; and

considering and commenting on rationale, cost-benefits
and impact of schemes involving merger, demerger,
amalgamation etc, on the listed entity and its shareholders;

approving the key performance indicators (“KPIs") for
disclosure in the offer documents, and approval of KPIs once
every year, or as may be required under applicable law; and

carrying out any other functions required to be carried out
by the Audit Committee as may be decided by the Board
and/or as provided under the Companies Act, 2013, the SEBI
Listing Regulations, uniform listing agreements and/or any
other applicable laws, as and when amended from time to
time, or by any regulatory authority and performing such
other functions as may be necessary or appropriate for the
performance of its duties.

Powers of Audit Committee

The Audit Committee shall have powers, including the following:

(M)
2)

to investigate any activity within its terms of reference;

to seek information from any employee;

ANNEXURE - 2 (Contd.)

to obtain outside legal or other professional advice;

to secure attendance of outsiders with relevant expertise, if it
considers necessary; and

such other powers as may be prescribed under the
Companies Act, 2013 and the SEBI Listing Regulations.

Reviewing Powers

The Audit Committee shall mandatorily review the following

information:

management discussion and analysis of financial condition
and results of operations;

management letters / letters of internal control weaknesses
issued by the statutory auditors;

internal audit reports relating to internal control weaknesses;

VI
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appointment, removal and terms of remuneration of the
chief internal auditor;

statement of deviations in terms of the SEBI Listing
Regulations:

a. quarterly statement of deviation(s) including report of
monitoring agency, if applicable, submitted to stock
exchange(s) where the Equity Shares are proposed to
be listed in terms of the SEBI Listing Regulations;

b.  annual statement of funds utilised for purposes other
than those stated in the offer document/ prospectus/
notice in terms of the SEBI Listing Regulations; and

such information as may be prescribed under the Companies
Act, 2013 and SEBI Listing Regulations.

The attendance of the members at the Audit Committee Meetings

during the year is as below:

Name Category Number of Meeting

Held Entitled | Attended
Ms. Rachna Dikshit (DIN: 08759332) Independent Director 5 5 5
Mr. Parveen Kumar Gupta (DIN: 02895343) * Independent Director 4 4
Mr. Thomson Thomas (DIN: 09691435) Independent Director 5 5 5
Mr. Shailesh J Mehta (DIN: 01633893) * Non-Executive Director (Nominee) 5 4 3
Mr. Rupinder Singh (DIN: 09153382) * MD & CEO 5 1 1

*The Audit Committee was reconstituted on 31 July, 2023 and Mr. Shailesh J Mehta and Mr. Parveen Kumar Gupta became members of the
Audit Committee and Mr. Rupinder Singh ceased to be member of Audit Committee w.ef. 31 July, 2023.

Nomination and Remuneration Committee

The Board constituted the Nomination and Remuneration Committee in terms of the provisions of Section 178 of the Act and Regulation
19 of the SEBI Listing Regulations and RBI Master Directions and is chaired by a Non-Executive Independent Director.

The Nomination and Remuneration Committee of your Company as on 31 March, 2024 comprises three members including two

independent directors as below:

Directors Designation DIN

Ms. Rachna Dikshit Independent Director (Chairman of Committee) 08759332
Ms. Savita Mahajan Independent Director 06492679
Mr. Sumir Chadha Non-Executive Director (Nominee) 00040789

Terms of reference as prescribed by the board shall inter alia,
include, -

1.

formulation of the criteria for determining qualifications,
positive attributes and independence of a director and
recommend to the Board of Directors a policy relating to the
remuneration of the Directors, Key Managerial Personnel,
Senior Management and other employees (“Remuneration
Policy”);

for every appointment of an independent director, the
Nomination and Remuneration Committee shall evaluate
the balance of skills, knowledge and experience on the Board
and on the basis of such evaluation, prepare a description of

the role and capabilities required of an independent director.
The person recommended to the Board for appointment as
an independent director shall have the capabilities identified
in such description. For the purpose of identifying suitable
candidates, the Nomination and Remuneration Committee
may:

a.  usethe services of an external agencies, if required;

b.  consider candidates from a wide range of backgrounds,
having due regard to diversity; and

C. consider the time commitments of the candidates.;

formulation of criteria for evaluation of Independent
Directors and the Board;

s
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4. devising a policy on Board diversity;

5. identifying personswhoare qualified to become directorsand
who may be appointed in senior management in accordance
with the criteria laid down, and recommend to the Board
their appointment and removal and carrying out evaluation
of every director’s performance (including Independent
Director), its committees and individual directors to be
carried out either by the Board, by the Nomination and
Remuneration Committee or by an independent external
agency and review its implementation and compliance. Our
Company shall disclose the Remuneration Policy and the
evaluation criteria in its annual report;

6.  whether to extend or continue the term of appointment
of the Independent Director, on the basis of the report of
performance evaluation of Independent Directors;

7. recommend to the Board, all remuneration, in whatever
form, payable to Senior Management;

8.  the Nomination and Remuneration Committee, while
formulating the Remuneration Policy, should ensure that:

(@) the level and composition of remuneration be
reasonable and sufficient to attract, retain and motivate
directors of the quality required to run our Company
successfully;

(b) relationship of remuneration to performance is clear
and meets appropriate performance benchmarks; and

(©) remuneration to Directors, Key Managerial Personnel
and Senior Management involves a balance between
fixed and incentive pay reflecting short and long term
performance objectives appropriate to the working of
our Company and its goals.

9.  perform such functions as are required to be performed by
the Nomination and Remuneration Committee under the
SEBI'SBEB Regulations, including the following:

(@) administering the employee stock option plans of our
Company, as may be required;

(b) determining the eligibility of employees to participate
under the employee stock option plans of our
Company;

(0 granting options to eligible employees and
determining the date of grant;

(d) determining the number of options to be granted to
an employee;

(e) determining the exercise price under the employee
stock option plans of our Company; and

(f)  construing and interpreting the employee stock option
plans of our Company and any agreements defining
the rights and obligations of our Company and eligible
employees under the employee stock option plans
of our Company, and prescribing, amending and/
or rescinding rules and regulations relating to the
administration of the employee stock option plans of
our Company.

10. frame suitable policies, procedures and systems to ensure
that there is no violation of securities laws, as amended from
time to time, including:

a)  the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition
of Insider Trading) Regulations, 2015; and

b)  the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition
of Fraudulent and Unfair Trade Practices Relating to the
Securities Market) Regulations, 2003, by the trust, our
Company and its employees, as applicable; and

11. carrying out any other activities as may be delegated by
the Board of Directors of our Company functions required
to be carried out by the Nomination and Remuneration
Committee as provided under the Companies Act, 2013, the
SEBI Listing Regulations or any other applicable law, as and
when amended from time to time.

The attendance of the members at the Nomination and
Remuneration Committee Meetings during the year is as below:

Name Category

Number of Meeting

Held Entitled Attended

Ms. Rachna Dikshit (DIN: 08759332) Independent Director 4 4 4
Mr. Thomson Thomas (DIN: 09691435) Independent Director 4 3 3
Ms. Savita Mahajan (DIN: 06492679) * Independent Director 4 1 1
Mr. Anup Gupta (DIN: 02284944) * Non-Executive Director (Nominee) 4 3 3
Mr. Sumir Chadha (DIN:00040789) Non-Executive Director (Nominee) 4 4 4

*The Nomination & Remuneration Committee was reconstituted on 31 July, 2023 and 08 February, 2024. Ms. Savita Mahajan was appointed

as member and Mr. Thomson Thomas ceased to be a member of the committee on 31 July, 2023. Further after reconstitution on February

03, 2024, Mr. Anup Gupta ceased to be member of the Nomination & Remuneration Committee.

ANNEXURE - 2 (Contd.)

Performance Evaluation of Directors

Performance Evaluation of the Board as a whole, as well as that
of its Committees, Independent Directors and Non-Independent
Directors has carried outin accordance with the relevant provisions
of the Act read with relevant rules made thereunder and SEBI
LODR Regulations and in compliance with guidance note issued
by SEBI under Circular no. SEBI/HO/ CFD/ CMD/ CIR/P/2017/004
dated Jan. 05, 2017. The performance evaluation of Directors was
carried out by the entire Board excluding the Directors being
evaluated. The performance evaluation criteria for Independent
Directors included the criteria formulated by the NRC that inter
alia included Qualifications & Experience, Standard of Integrity,
attendance in meetings, understanding of Company’s business

and value addition in Board Meetings. The Board has expressed its
satisfaction with the evaluation process.

Corporate Social Responsibility Committee

The Board constituted the Corporate Social Responsibility
Committee in terms of the provisions of Section 135 of the Act
and is chaired by a Non-Executive Independent Director. At
present, the Corporate Social Responsibility Committee comprises
of 3 Directors as its Members including two of them being
Independent Director.

The Corporate Social Responsibility Committee of your Company
as on 31 March, 2024 comprises three members including two
independent directors as below:

Directors Designation DIN

Ms. Savita Mahajan Independent Director (Chairman of Committee) 06492679
Ms. Rachna Dikshit Independent Director 08759332
Mr. Sumir Chadha Non-Executive Director (Nominee) 00040789

The disclosures as per Rule 9 of Companies (Corporate Social
Responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014 is attached as Annexure forming
part of this Annual Report.

Your Company has developed and implemented the Corporate
Social Responsibility Policy which is placed on the website at
https://www.indiashelter.in/investor-relations and is attached.

Terms of reference as prescribed by the Board shall inter alia,
include, -

a) formulate and recommend to the Board, a corporate social
responsibility policy which shall indicate amongst others,
the guiding principles for selection, implementation and
monitoring the activities as well as formulation of the
annual action plan which shall indicate the activities to be
undertaken by our Company as specified in Schedule VII of
the Companies Act, 2013 and make any revisions therein as
and when decided by the Board;

b) review and recommend the amount of expenditure to be
incurred on the activities referred in clause (a) and amount

to be incurred for such expenditure shall be as per the
applicable law;

c)  monitor the corporate social responsibility policy of our
Company and its implementation from time to time
and issuing necessary directions as required for proper
implementation and timely completion of corporate social
responsibility programme; and

d) any other matter as the Corporate Social Responsibility
Committee may deem appropriate after approval of the
Board or as may be directed by the Board from time to time
and/or as may be required under applicable law, as and
when amended from time to time.

The CSR Committee met two times in the year under consideration
on August 14, 2023 and 08 February, 2024.

The attendance of the members at the Corporate Social
Responsibility Committee Meetings during the year is as below:

Name Category Number of Meeting

Held Entitled Attended
Ms. Rachna Dikshit (DIN: 08759332) Independent Director 2 2 2
Mr. Rupinder Singh (DIN: 09153382) * | Managing Director and Chief Executive Officer 2 2 2
Mr. Ajay Narayan Jha (DIN: 02270071) * | Independent Director 2 2 2
Ms. Savita Mahajan (DIN: 06492679) * | Independent Director 2 2 2
Mr. Thomson Thomas (DIN: 09691435) *| Independent Director 2 2 2
Mr. Sumir Chadha (DIN: 00040789) * Non-Executive Director (Nominee) 2 2 2

*The Corporate Social Responsibility Committee was reconstituted on 31 July, 2023 and 08 February,2024.

On 31 July, 2023, Mr. Ajay Narayan Jha, Mr. Sumir Chadha and Ms. Savita Mahajan were appointed as members of the Committee. Further
on reconstitution on 08 February, 2024, Mr. Rupinder Singh, Mr. Ajay Narayan Jha and Mr. Thomson Thomas were ceased to be members

of the Committee.
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RISK MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE

on the Company and to take appropriate measures to mitigate

ANNEXURE - 2 (Contd.)

The attendance of the members at the Risk Management Committee Meetings during the year is as below:

The Board constituted the Risk Management Committee in terms such risks for assisting the Board to gstablish a risl.< culture and risk Name Category Number of Meeting

of the provisions of RBI Master Directions and Regulation 21 of governance framework in the organisation. The Risk Management )

the SEBI Listing Regulations and is chaired by a Non-Executive Committee of your Company as on 31 March, 2024 comprises of Held| Entitled) Attended
Independent Director to identify the risks that can create an impact Seven members including Two independent directors as below: Mr. Rupinder Singh (DIN: 09153382) Managing Director and Chief 4 4 4

Executive Officer

Directors Designation DIN Ms. Rachna Dikshit (DIN: 08759332) Independent Director 4 3 3
Mr. Parveen Kumar Gupta Independent Director (Chairman of the Committee) 02895343 Mr. Thomson Thornas (DIN: 09691435) * Independent Director 4 4 4
Mr. Thomson Thomas Independent Director 09691435 Mr. Ajay Narayan Jha (DIN: 02270071) * Independent Director 4 2 2
Mr. Rupinder Singh Managing Director and Chief Executive Officer 09153382 Mr. Parveen Kumar Gupta (DIN: 02895343) * Independent Director 4 3 3
Mr. Sudhin Bhagwandas Choksey Non-Executive Director (Nominee) 00036085 Ms. Savita Mahajan (DIN: 06492679) * Independent Director 4 7 5
Mr. Shailesh J. Mehta Non-Executive Director (Nominee) 01633893 Mr. Shailesh J Mehta (DIN: 01633893) Non-Executive Director (Nominee) 4 4 3
Mr. Sharad Pareek Chief Risk Officer ] Mr. Anup Gupta (DIN: 02284944)* Non-Executive Director (Nominee) 4 3 3
Mr. Ashish Gupta Cro _ Mr. Sudhin Bhagwandas Choksey (DIN: 00036085) Non-Executive Director (Nominee) 4 4 4
Your Company had Board-approved Credit and Risk Management for internal control of identified risks; and (c) business Mr. Sharad Pareck Chief Risk Officer ‘ N *
Policies wherein all material risks faced by your Company were continuity plan; Mr. Ashish Gupta CFO 4 4 4

identified and assessed. Your Company set up a policy framework
for ensuring better management of its asset and liability profile.

The Risk Management Policy of the Company has been approved
by the Board which is enclosed which is available at the Website
of the Company at https://www.indiashelter.in/investor-relations.

During the year, the Risk Management committee reviewed
the risks associated with the business of the Company, its root
causes and the efficacy of the measures taken to mitigate the
same. The Board of Directors of your Company with the intent to

b) ensure that appropriate methodology, processes and
systems are in place to monitor and evaluate risks associated
with the business of our Company;

) monitor and oversee implementation of the risk
management policy, including evaluating the adequacy of
risk management systems;

d) periodically review the risk management policy, at least once
in two years, including by considering the changing industry
dynamics and evolving complexity, and recommend for any

*The Risk Management Committee was reconstituted on 31 July, 2023 to include Mr. Parveen Kumar Gupta, Mr. Ajay Narayan Jha and Ms.

Savita Mahajan as members of the Risk Management Committee.

Further the Committee was reconstituted on 08 February, 2024 and Ms. Rachna Dikshit, Mr. Anup Kumar Gupta, Mr. Ajay Narayan Jha and

Ms. Savita Mahajan were ceased to be member of the Committee.

STAKEHOLDERS RELATIONSHIP COMMITTEE

The Board has constituted Stakeholders Relationship Committee in terms of provisions of Companies Act, 2013 and Regulation 20 of SEBI

(Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, comprising of three members and is chaired by a Non-Executive
Independent Director. The detailed composition of the Committee is as below:

?mple.ment a consistent, efﬁcienﬁ,.and econ.omical apprgach to amendment or modification thereof, as necessary:; Directors Designation DIN
identify, evaluate, respond and mitigate key risks that may impact &) keep the Board of directors of our Company informed about
business objectives of your Company and in order to minimise the g o , pary _ Ms. Savita Mahajan Independent Director (Chairman of Committee) 06492679
. . . the nature and content of its discussions, recommendations
frequency and impact of risks, have adopted Risk Management and actions to be taken: Mr. Sudhin Bhagwandas Choksey Non-Executive Director (Nominee) 00036085
Policy. ' . .
f)  reviewthe appointment, removal and terms of remuneration Mr. Rupinder Singh MD & CEO 09153382

Terms of reference as prescribed by the Board shall inter alia,
include, -

a)  review,assessandformulate the risk management systemand
policy of our Company from time to time and recommend for
an amendment or modification thereof, which shall include:
(a) a framework for identification of internal and external risks
specifically faced by our Company, in particular including
financial, operational, sectoral, sustainability (particularly,
environmental, social and corporate governance related
risks), information, cyber security risks or any other risk as
may be determined by the Risk Management Committee; (b)
measures for risk mitigation including systems and processes

of the chief risk officer (if any);

g) to implement and monitor policies and/or processes for
ensuring cyber security; and

h)  any other similar or other functions as may be laid down by
Board from time to time and/or as may be required under
applicable law, as and when amended from time to time,
including the SEBI Listing Regulations.

The Risk Management Committee met four times during the year
under consideration on [1] 08 May, 2023; [2] 14 August, 2023; [3] 25
October, 2023; and [4] 09 February, 2024.

Terms of reference as prescribed by the board shall inter alia
include:

(1) considering and looking into various aspects of interest of
Shareholders, debenture holders and other security holders;

(2)  resolving the grievances of the security holders of the listed
entity including complaints related to transfer/transmission
of shares, non-receipt of annual report, non-receipt of
declared dividends, issue of new/duplicate certificates,
general meetings etc;

(3) formulation of procedures in line with the statutory
guidelines to ensure speedy disposal of various requests
received from shareholders from time to time;

(4) giving effect to allotment of Equity Shares, approval of
transfer or transmission of Equity Shares, debentures or any
other securities;

issue of duplicate certificates and new certificates on split/
consolidation/renewal, etc;

review of measures taken for effective exercise of voting
rights by Shareholders;

review of adherence to the service standards adopted by the
listed entity in respect of various services being rendered by
the Registrar & Share Transfer Agent;

to dematerialise or rematerialise the issued shares;

review of the various measures and initiatives taken by
the listed entity for reducing the quantum of unclaimed
dividends and ensuring timely receipt of dividend warrants/
annual reports/statutory notices by the Shareholders of the
Company; and

____________________________________________________________________
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(10) carrying out any other functions required to be carried out by the Stakeholders’ Relationship Committee as contained in the SEBI
Listing Regulations or any other applicable law, as and when amended from time to time.

The Stakeholders Relationship committee met one time during year under consideration on 29 March, 2024.

The attendance of the members at the Stakeholders Relationship Committee meeting during the year is as below:

Name Category Number of Meeting

Held Entitled Attended
Ms. Savita Mahajan (DIN: 06492679) Independent Director 1 1 1
Mr. Sudhin Bhagwandas Choksey (DIN: 00036085) Non-Executive Director (Nominee) 1 1 1
Mr. Rupinder Singh (DIN: 09153382) MD & CEO 1 1 1

Details of investor complaints received during the period under review are as below:

Investor Complaints Year ended on

31 March, 2024
Complaints received during the year 17
Complaints resolved during the year 16
Complaints not solved to the satisfaction of shareholders 0
Complaint pending at the end of the year* 1

* Closed as on the date of this report.

INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY STRATEGY COMMITTEE

The Board has constituted Information Technology Strategy Committee in accordance with Master Direction- Information Technology
Framework for the NBFC Sector issued by the Reserve Bank of India dated 08 June, 2017, comprising of six members and is chaired by a
Non-Executive Independent Director. The detailed composition of the Committee is as below:

Directors Designation DIN

Mr. Thomson Thomas Independent Director (Chairman of Committee) 09691435
Mr. Parveen Kumar Gupta Independent Director 02895343
Mr. Shailesh J. Mehta Non-Executive Director (Nominee) 01633893
Mr. Ashish Gupta CFO -

Mr. Sharad Pareek Chief Risk Officer -

Mr. Abhinav Arya Chief Information Officer -

Terms of reference as prescribed by the board shall inter alia, include, —

a)  Approving IT strategy & policy documents and ensuring that the management has put an effective strategic planning process in
place

b)  Ascertaining that the management has implemented processes and practices that ensure that the IT deliver value to the business
c)  Ensuring IT investments represent a balance of risks and benefits and that budgets are acceptable

d)  Monitoring the method that management uses to determine the IT resources needed to achieve strategic goals and provide high
level direction for sourcing & use of IT resources

e)  Ensuring proper balance of IT investments for sustaining HFC's growth and becoming aware about exposure towards IT risks and
controls

The Information Technology Strategy Committee met two times during the year under consideration on [1] 12 July, 2023; and [2] 05
January, 2024;

Home Loans

ANNEXURE - 2 (Contd.)

The attendance of the members at the Information Technology Strategy Committee Meetings during the year is as below:

Name Category Number of Meeting

Held Entitled | Attended
Ms. Rachna Dikshit (DIN: 08759332) Independent Director 2 1 1
Mr. Parveen Kumar Gupta (DIN: 02895343) Independent Director 2 1 1
Mr. Sudhin Bhagwandas Choksey (DIN: 00036085) Non-Executive Director (Nominee) 2 1 1
Mr. Thomson Thomas (DIN: 09691435) Independent Director 2 2 2
Mr. Shailesh J Mehta (DIN: 01633893) Non-Executive Director (Nominee) 2 2 2
Mr. Rupinder Singh (DIN: 09153382) Managing Director and Chief 2 2 2

Executive Officer

Mr. Abhinav Arya Clo 2 2 2
Mr. Ashish Gupta CFO 2 2 2
Mr. Sharad Pareek Chief Risk Officer 2 2 2

*The IT Strategy Committee was reconstituted on 31 July, 2023 to include Mr. Parveen Kumar Gupta and Mr. Sudhin Bhagwandas Choksey
as members of the Information Technology Strategy Committee. Ms. Rachna Dikshit ceased to be member of the IT Strategy Committee
effective 31 July, 2023.

Further the Committee was reconstituted on 08 February, 2024 and Mr. Sudhin Bhagwandas Choksey and Mr. Rupinder Singh were ceased
to be member of the Committee.
Asset Liability Management Committee (ALCO)

The Board has constituted Asset Liability Management Committee comprising of seven members and is chaired by Managing Director and
Chief Executive Officer. The detailed composition of the Committee is as below:

Directors Designation DIN
Mr. Rupinder Singh Managing Director and Chief Executive Officer (Chairman of 09153382
Committee)
Mr. Ashish Gupta CFO -
Mr. Nitin Goel Head-Credit & Policy -
Mr. Sharad Pareek Chief Risk Officer -
Mr. Aman Saini National Business Head -
Mr. Abhinav Arya Head-IT (Permanent Invitee) -
Mr. Vikas Sharma Head-Treasury -
Terms of reference as prescribed by the board shall inter alia, 8. avall borrowings, NHB refinance, non-convertible
include, — debentures, securitisation, direct assignment and all other

fund raising activities within the borrowings powers as may
be approved under Section 180(1)(c) of the Companies Act,

—_

review borrowings & investments of our Company;

2. review fund planning; 2013:

3. profit planning and growth projection; 9. create charge on the assets of our Company as may be

4. review interest/ market and liquidity risk; approved under Section 180(1)(a) of the Companies Act,
2013;

5. forecasting and analysing ‘what of scenario’and preparation

10. approve all investments as per the investment policy, such as

of contingency plans;
gencyp but not limited to mutual funds, fixed deposits, etc.;

6.  review liquidity statements submitted to NHB and required 11, approve bank guarantees but not grant of guarantees by our

action, if any; Company to any other organisation/ individual;
7. avail banking and investment services and other matters 12.  review and approve loan documents, products and related
incidental thereto; charges;

===IndiaShelter 89 6




-==IndiaShelter
EEIETID  S:.cuior Reports B Amnexures - === mm e ——Home Loans @O # 1

ANNEXURE - 2 (Contd.)

13.  to negotiate, discuss finalise and approve the proposals of The ALCO Committee met fourteen times during the year under
co-lending with banks and to discuss, finalise and execute consideration on [1] 05 April, 2023; and [2] 31 May, 2023;[3] 22
the documents or to do any acts as may be necessary to give June, 2023; [4] 28 July, 2023; [5] 29 August, 2023; [6] 22 September,
effect to the above transaction; 2023; [71 09 November, 2023; [8] 24 November, 2023; [9] 06

14. to delegate the said authority to any of the authorised December, 2023; [10] 29 December, 2023; [11] 29 January, 2024;
officers of our Company as it may deem fit; and [12] 21 February, 2024; [13] 15 March, 2024; [14] 27 March, 2024

15, All other matters incidental thereto. The attendance of the members at the ALCO Committee Meetings

during the year is as below:

Name Category Number of Meeting

Held Entitled | Attended

Mr. Rupinder Singh Managing Director and Chief 14 14 14

Executive Officer

Mr. Ashish Gupta CFO 14 14 14

Mr. Nitin Goel Head-Credit & Policy 14 14 14

Mr. Sharad Pareek Chief Risk Officer 14 14 14

Mr. Aman Saini National Business Head 14 14 14

Mr. Abhinav Arya Head-IT (Permanent Invitee) 14 14 14

Mr. Prakash Bhawnani* Head-Treasury (Permanent Invitee) 14 8 8

Mr. Vikas Sharma* Head-Treasury (Permanent Invitee) 14 6 6

*The ALCO Committee was reconstituted on 08 February, 2024 to include Mr.Vikas Sharma (Head- Treasury) instead of Mr. Prakash Bhawnani

as member of the ALCO Committee.

Prevention of Sexual Harassment Policy, and information required to be disclosed under Sexual Harassment of Women at
Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013

The Company is committed to providing a work environment that ensures that every Employee is treated with equal dignity and respect.
The Company has implemented a robust framework on prevention of sexual harassment, which is in line with the Sexual Harassment of

Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013. The Company educates Employees regarding Sexual Harassment

Policy through posters and regular mailers and also conducts online trainings which form a part of the induction process.

In this regard, India Shelter has instituted an Internal Complaints Committee for redressal of sexual harassment complaint (made by the
victim) and for ensuring time bound treatment of such complaints. The Internal Complaints Committee as on 31 March, 2024 comprises of

the following four members out of which 3 members are women:

Presiding Officer

Member-1

Member-2 NGO

Madhu Sharma

Mukti Chaplot Nilay

Samta Ahuja

An Appellate Committee is also constituted as below:

Members

Designation

Ms. Rachna Dikshit (DIN: 08759332)

Board Representative

4 other members

Equal number of male & female members from amongst ICC members

Your Company has imparted training for Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace as part of the Induction training provided to the

employees.

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 22 of Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition & Redressal) Act 2013

read with Rules there under, the Internal Complaint committee of the Company did not received any complaint of sexual harassment

during the year under review.

___________________________________________________________
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There were 10 meetings of other Committees as per the business requirements of the Company.

22 June, 2023

Wilful Defaulter Identification Committee

2. 22 September, 2023 Wilful Defaulter Identification Committee

3. 29 December, 2023 Wilful Defaulter Identification Committee

4, 27 March, 2024 Wilful Defaulter Identification Committee

5. 22 June, 2023 Customer Service & Grievance Redressal Committee
6. 22 September, 2023 Customer Service & Grievance Redressal Committee
7. 29 December, 2023 Customer Service & Grievance Redressal Committee
8. 27 March, 2024 Customer Service & Grievance Redressal Committee

03 August, 2023 IPO Committee
10. | 07 December, 2023 Independent Director Meeting

1.

08 February, 2024

Independent Director Meeting

Remuneration of Directors

Sitting Fees

All Independent Directors are paid a sitting fee for attending every meeting of the Board and committees, in accordance with sitting

fees approved by the Board of Directors:

The details of sitting fees paid and shares held by non-executive directors in the Company as at 31 March, 2024 are as follows:

Name Sitting fees (in Lacs) Commission No. of equity
Board Committees (inLacs) |  shares held in

the Company

Mr. Ajay Narayan Jha* 10.00 3.10 - -
Mr. Parveen Kumar Gupta 13.00 6.85 - -
Ms. Rachna Dikshit 14.00 11.00 - -
Ms. Savita Mahajan 11.00 4.25 - -
Mr. Thomson Thomas 12.00 11.40 - -

Mr. Sudhin Bhagwandas Choksey

Mr. Anup Kumar Gupta

Mr. Shailesh J. Mehta

Mr. Sumir Chadha

*The Board of Directors of the Company in their meeting held on 08 February, 2024 accepted resignation of Mr. Ajay Narayan Jha as

an Independent Director with effect from closure of business hours of 08 February, 2024

Pecuniary relationship and/or transactions of the Non-
Executive Directors with the listed entity:

During the year under review, there were no pecuniary
relationships or transactions with the Non-Executive
Directors of the Company, apart from remuneration paid to
them by way of sitting fees.

Criteria for making payment to Non-executive
Directors

No amount was paid to any director as a commission in
Financial Year 2023-24.

The Nomination and Remuneration Committee and Board
of Directors in their meeting held 08 February, 2024 and

shareholders vide postal ballot dated 19 March, 2024
approved commission upto a sum not exceeding = 6
Lacs per Independent Director in accordance with the
provisions of the Act, be paid to and distributed to the
Independent Directors of the Company or some or any of
them in such amounts or proportions and in such manner
and in all respects as may be directed by the Nomination &
Remuneration Committee/Board of Directors from Financial
Year 2024-25 onwards.

The criteria for making payments to non-executive Directors
is published on the website of the Company (weblink:
https://www.indiashelter.in/investor-relations)
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Remuneration of Managing Director & Chief Executive Officer (‘MD & CEO’)

The components of the MD & CEQO's compensation package include salary, a performance-linked Variable Pay, and other benefits. The
Nomination and Remuneration Committee makes the decision, which is then accepted by the Board and stays within the general

parameters set by the shareholders at the Annual General Meeting.

The details of remuneration paid to Mr. Rupinder Singh, Managing Director & Chief Executive Officer for the financial year ended 31 March,
2024 are as follows:

Particulars

Amount (% In Lacs)

Salary

3,17,40,000

Bonus (Upto 100% of Fixed Pay or as per the bonus plan of the company, whichever is higher | 3,17,40,000

as approved by the Board of Directors/Committee)

Others

43,00,000

Total

6,77,80,000

For details refer to Note no. 40 in relation to related party transactions disclosed as per notes to the Standalone Financial Statements.

Penalties

During the year under review, the Company was levied a

penalty of = 24,000/- with applicable taxes each from both the

Stock exchanges, National Stock Exchange of India Limited

and BSE Limited for Non-compliance with the provisions of

composition of Nomination and Remuneration Committee under
Requlation 19(1)/ 19(2) of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure

Requirements) Regulations, 2015.

Means of Communication

Your Company focuses on prompt, continuous and efficient

communication to all its stakeholders. The Company has provided

adequate and timely information to its member’s inter-alia

through the following means:

................

Financial Results: The quarterly, half yearly and annual
financial results of the Company were published in the
national daily leading newspapers viz Business Standard,
Financial Express, The Mint (English) and Navodaya
Times(Hindi) and are also posted on the Company’s
Website(www.indiashelterin) and on the websites of

Stock exchanges BSE https.//www.bseindia.com/ and NSE

https://www.nseindia.com/.

Website: In compliance with Regulation 46 and 62 of the
SEBI' LODR Regulations, the Company has maintained a
separate section i.e.'Disclosures under Regulation 46 and 62
of SEBI (LODR), 2015"on the Company’s website providing all
the announcements made by the Company, annual reports,
result and policies of the Company.

Further, the shareholding pattern and other intimations to
stock exchanges from time to time are also displayed on
the website of the Company. Details of investor / analysts
calls, call transcripts, investor presentation and press news

releases are also posted on the Company’s Website.

Other Disclosures

Related Party Transactions Policy

The Company has formulated a policy on materiality of and
dealing with Related Party Transactions pursuant to the
provisions of the Companies Act and Regulation 23 of the
Listing Regulations, which specify the manner of entering
into Related Party Transactions. Details of related party
transactions entered by the Company in the ordinary course
of its business are included in the notes forming part of the
financial statements. The Company did not enter into any
material related party transaction during the financial year
ended March 31, 2024. During the year under review, all RPTs
were placed before the Audit Committee for its approval
as required under Section 177 of the Companies Act, 2013
and Regulation 23 of the Listing Regulations. No materially
significant related party transactions and no omnibus
approval was entered into during the FY24 that may have
potential conflict with interests of the listed entity at large.

The Policy on Related Party Transactions has been hosted
on the website of the Company in accordance with the
provisions of the Listing Regulations and the RBI master
directions for housing finance companies and can be

accessed at the web-link at https://www.indiashelter.in/

investor-relations.

Details of non-compliance by the listed entity,
penalties, strictures imposed on the listed entity
by stock exchange(s) or the board or any statutory
authority, on any matter related to capital markets,
during the last three years;

During the year under review, the company was levied a
penalty of I 24,000/- with applicable taxes each from both

the Stock exchanges, National Stock Exchange of India

ANNEXURE - 2 (Contd.)
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vi.

vii.

viii.

Limited and BSE Limited for Non-compliance with the
provisions of composition of Nomination and Remuneration
Committee under Regulation 19(1)/ 19(2) of SEBI (Listing and
the company submitted the waiver request application to

the exchanges.

National Housing Bank (NHB) vide its letter 29 July, 2021,
has imposed a monetary penalty of 15000/- plus GST
on the Company for non-compliance with provisions of
the Paragraph 22 (2) of the Housing Finance Companies
(NHB) Directions, 2010 and the RBI Circular No. DOR.No.BP.
BC.63/21.04.048/2019-20.

Weblink of Corporate Policies

.es
il
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Establishment of Vigil Mechanism and Whistle Blower
Policy

The Company have a Vigil Mechanism implemented through
Whistle Blower Policy, under which Directors, employees
and other stakeholders are free to report violations of
applicable laws and regulations. The Chairperson of the
Audit Committee has direct access to all complaints raised
through the policy. The policy is hosted on the website of the
Company at https://www.indiashelter.in/investor-relations.

Particulars

Weblink

Policy for determining material subsidiaries

https://www.indiashelter.in/investor-relations

Policy on Materiality of Related Party Transactions and on Dealing
with Related Party Transactions

https://www.indiashelter.in/investor-relations

Compliance with Accounting Standards

The Company has followed the Guidelines of Accounting
Standards as laid down by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India (ICAI) in preparation of its financial
statements and notes to accounts of this Annual Report.

MD/CFO Certification

Pursuant to the provisions of Regulation 17(8) of the
Listing Regulations, 2015, the Managing Director and Chief
Financial Officer have issued a certificate in the prescribed
format to the board certifying that the financial statements
do not contain any materially untrue statement and these
statements represent a true and fair view of the Company’s
Affairs. The said certificate is enclosed and is forming part of
this report as Annexure A.

Compliance certificate on Corporate Governance

As required under the SEBI Listing Regulations, certificate
issued by Mr. Jitender Singh (Membership No. A33610 and
C.P.No. 26612), Practicing Company Secretary, certifying that
the Company has complied with the conditions of Corporate
Governance as stipulated by SEBI Listing Regulations.
The said certificate forms part of the Annual Report as an
Annexure to the Directors Report.

Certificate from Practicing Company Secretary

A certificate issued by Mr. Jitender Singh (Membership
No. A33610 and CP No. 26612), Practicing Company
Secretary, pursuant to Regulation 34(3) read with Clause
10 (i) of Paragraph C of Schedule V of the Securities and
Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure

ix.

Xi.

Requirements) Regulations, 2015, certifying that none of
the Directors on the Board of the Company as on March'24,
has been debarred or disqualified from being appointed or
continuing as Directors of the companies by the Securities
and Exchange Board of India, Ministry of Corporate Affairs,
Reserve Bank of India, or any such Statutory Authority. The
said certificate is enclosed and is forming part of this report

as Annexure B..

Details of utilisation of funds raised through
preferential allotment or qualified institutional
placement

During the year under review, your company has raised
< 2.95 Crs by way of preferential allotment and utilised the
same for General Corporate Purposes.

Due dates for transfer of unclaimed dividend to
Investor Education and Protection Fund (IEPF)

In terms of Section 125 of the Act, unclaimed dividends are
required to be transferred to the Investors Education and
Protection Fund. There was no dividend declared in the last
Seven (7) years prior to the year under review and hence,
there was no requirement of transferring the same to the

Investors Education and Protection Fund.

Directors and Officers (D&O) Liability Insurance

As per the provisions of the Act and in compliance with
Regulation 25(10) of the SEBI Listing Regulations, the
Company has taken a D&O Liability Insurance policy on
behalf of all Directors including Independent Directors and

Key Managerial Personnel of the Company for indemnifying

(o @)
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Xii.

xiii.

Xiv.

any of them against any liability in respect of any negligence,
default, misfeasance, breach of duty or breach of trust for
which they may be guilty in relation to the Company.

Details of non-acceptance of any recommendation
of any committee of the board which is mandatorily

required

During the year under review, there were no such
recommendations made by any Committee of the Board
that were mandatorily required and not accepted by the
Board.

Loans and advances in the nature of loans to firms/
companies in which directors are interested by name

and amount

There are no loans and advances in the nature of loans to

firms/companies in which directors are interested.

Total fees paid to Statutory Auditors and all entities in
the network firm/network entity of which the statutory

auditor is a part

The total fees for all services paid by Company, on a
consolidated basis, to M/s T .R. Chadha & Co. LLP (Firm
Registration No.: 006711N/N500028), Statutory Auditors of
the Company and other firms in the network entity of which
the Statutory Auditors are a part, as included in the Financial
Statements of the Company for the year ended on 31 March,
2024, are as follows:

(In Lacs)
(a) AsAuditors
- Statutory audit including limited 41.00
review
- Certification and other charges 6.54
(b) forre-imbursement of expenses* 4.20

* Excludes remuneration of INR 50 lacs paid for reports on Intial

Public Offer documents i.e report on restated financial information

and various certificates whichis adjusted against security premium.

XV.

.................

Compliance with mandatory Requirements and
adoption of the non-mandatory Requirements of
Corporate Governance

The Company has complied with all the mandatory
requirements of Corporate Governance as specified in
regulation 17 to 27 and clauses (b) to (i) of sub-regulation
(2) of regulation 46 of the Securities and Exchange Board
of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements)
Regulations, 2015. The Company has also adopted certain
voluntary compliance requirements as outlined in the
Companies Act, 2013, SEBI Listing Regulations, 2015 and

XVi.

XVii.

Xviii.

other applicable acts, rules, reqgulations & guidelines. As per
the discretionary requirements specified in Schedule I, Part
E of the Listing Regulations, the Company has appointed
separate persons to the post of Chairperson and Managing
Director & Chief Executive Officer.

Statutory and Regulatory Compliance

The Company has followed all applicable directions,
guidelines and circulars issued by Reserve Bank of India
from time to time. The Company also has been following
directions / guidelines / circulars issued by Income Tax Act,
1961, Securities and Exchange Board of India and Ministry
of Corporate Affairs from time to time, as applicable to the
Company. There was no non-compliance of any requirement
of corporate governance report of sub-paras (2) to (10) of
Schedule V of SEBI Listing Regulations. Except as disclosed in
this Annual Report.

Disclosure regarding demat suspense account/
unclaimed suspense account

a) Aggregate number of shareholders and the
outstanding shares in the suspense account lying at
the beginning of the year- Not Any

b)  Number of shareholders who approached listed entity
for transfer of shares from suspense account during the
year- Two shareholders approached the Company for
transfer of shares from suspense account.

c¢)  Number of shareholders to whom shares were
transferred from suspense account during the year-
Not Any

d) Aggregate number of shareholders and the
outstanding shares in the suspense account lying at
the end of the year- Two shareholders , equity shares
aggregating to Sixty shares are lying in the suspense

account lying at the end of the year

e) That the voting rights on these shares shall remain
frozen till the rightful owner of such shares claims the

shares- Yes.

Code of Conduct for Prohibition of Insider Trading and
Code of Practices and Procedures for Fair Disclosure of
Unpublished Price Sensitive Information

In compliance of the SEBI PIT Regulations, as amended
from time to time, the Company has formulated a Code of
Conduct for Prevention of Insider Trading in the shares of
the Company, which inter alia, prohibits trading in shares of
the Company by insiders while in possession of unpublished
price sensitive information in relation to the Company and in

ANNEXURE - 2 (Contd.)
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5d/-

order to ensure uniform dissemination of unpublished price
sensitive information. The Board of Directors had adopted
a ‘Code of Practices and Procedures for Fair Disclosure of
Unpublished Price Sensitive Information” which is available
on the website of the Company and can be accessed at

https://www.indiashelter.in/investor-relations.

Code of Conduct for the Board of Directors and the
Senior Management Personnel

Pursuant to Regulation 17(5) of Listing Regulations, the
Company has adopted Code of Conduct applicable to the
Board of Directors and the Senior Management Personnel
(‘Code’). The Code provides guidance to the Directors and

Senior Management Personnel to conduct their business

Mr. Sudhin Bhagwandas Choksey
DIN: 00036085

Place: Gurugram

Date: May 08, 2024

XX.
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affairs ethically and in full compliance with applicable laws,
rules and regulations. In accordance with Schedule V (D) of
the SEBI Listing Regulations. The Company has also received
declaration from MD & CEO confirming that all the Directors
and the Senior Management Personnel of the Company
have complied to the Code of Conduct for the financial year
ended March'24 as attached with this Report. The said code
is hosted on the website at https//www.indiashelter.in/

investor-relations.

General Shareholder Information

A separate section on General Shareholder Information
required under the Listing Regulations have been included

in the Annual Report.

Sd/-

Mr. Rupinder Singh
DIN: 09153382

Place: Gurugram
Date: May 08, 2024

(o @)
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General Shareholder Information STOCK PRICE DATA:
The reported high and low closing prices of equity shares (in ) of the Company traded on NSE and BSE during the period under review are
CORPORATE INFORMATION: set out in the following table:
Incorporation date 26 October, 1998 Period BSE NSE
Corporate Identification Number | L65922HR1998PLC042782 High ) Low () High ) Low ()
Registered Office Address 6th Floor, Plot No. 15, Sector - 44, Institutional Area, Gurgaon, Haryana, India, 122002 Dec-23 625.00 519.00 630.00 519.15
ISIN for equity shares of the INE922K01024 Jan-24 616.75 52955 617.00 529.00
Company Feb-24 723.00 580.20 725.10 578.70
Date, Time and Venue of the | [ Mar- 24 646,00 522.90 650.00 521.00
Annual General Meeting
Financial year 01 April, 2023 to 31 March,2024 Share Price performance in comparison to broad based indices - BSE Sensex and NSE Nifty
Dividend Payment Date Not applicable as no dividend is recommended by the Board
Name & Address of the Stock The Equity shares of the Company are listed on Bombay Stock Exchange Limited (BSE) and National Stock
Exchanges Exchange of India Limited (NSE). ) ) ) ..
C India Shelter Finance Corporation Limited vs. BSE Sensex
BSE Limited
Phiroze JeeJeebhoy Towers, Dalal street, Mumbai - 400 001.
National Stock Exchange of India Limited Exchange Plaza, Floor 5, Plot C/1, Bandra-Kurla Complex, Bandra 630 73,300
(East), Mumbai-400051
Non-convertible Debentures issued by the Company are listed on the Wholesale Debt Market segment 620 73,300
of BSE. 610
Payment of Listing Fees The Company has paid the annual listing fees to both BSE and NSE. 600 72,800
Scrip code/Symbol BSE: 544044 590 72.300
NSE: INDIASHLTR 580
Registrar and Share Transfer KFin Technologies Limited (Formerly known as KFin Technologies Private Limited) 70 71,800
Agent Selenium Building, Tower-B, Plot No 31 & 32, Financial District, Nanakramguda, Serilingampally, 21300
Hyderabad, Rangareddi, Telangana - 500 032 Phone: 18003094001 560 ’
E-mail: einward.ris@kfintech.com 550 70,800
Trustees for Debenture Holders | Catalyst Trusteeship Limited Dec’23 Jan'24 Feb'24
GDA House, Plot No. 85 . , o
. . —&— [ndia Shelter Finance Corporation Limited = —®— BSE Sensex
Bhusari Colony (Right),
Paud Road,
Kothrud
Pune MH -411038 IN,
Maharashtra . . . .
Dematerialisation of shares and | As of 31 March, 2024 100% of the Company’s shares were held in dematerialised form. The Company’s India Shelter Finance Corporation Limited vs. Nifty 50
liquidity shares are regularly traded on NSE and BSE.
Share Transfer System The Company’s shares are traded under compulsory dematerialised mode and are freely tradable. The 55400
Board of Directors have delegated the power to attend all the formalities relating to transfer of securities 640 A
to the Registrar and Share Transfer Agent of the Company. An annual certificate of compliance with 630 22,300
the share/debt transfer formalities as required under Regulation 40(9) and 61(4) of the SEBI Listing 620 22200
Regulations is obtained from the Company Secretary in Practice and a copy of the certificate is filed with
the Stock Exchanges within the prescribed time. 610 22,100
Address for Correspondence KFin Technologies Limited 600 22,000
(Formerly known as KFin Technologies Private Limited) 590 21,900
Selenium Tower-B Plot 31 & 32, Gachibowli, Financial District, Nanakramguda, Serilingampally, 580 21,800
Hyderabad-500032 Telangana, India 570 21,700
The Company Secretary & Chief Compliance Officer 560 21,600
India Shelter Finance Corporation Limited 550 21,500
6th Floor, Plot No. 15, Sector - 44, Institutional Area, Gurgaon, Haryana, India, 122002 Dec’23 Jan'24 Feb'24
Email- compliance@indiashelter.in . _ S o
Outstanding Global Depository | The Company has not issued any Global Depository Receipts or American Depository Receipts or any —® India Shelter finance Corporation Limited Nifty 50
Receipts or American Depository | convertible instruments.
Receipts or warrants or any
convertible instruments, India Shelter Finance Corporation Limited listed on 20" December 2023
conversion date and likely
impact on equity;
Commodity price risk or foreign | The company has borrowed External Commercial Borrowing (ECB) limit from US International
exchange risk and hedging Development Finance Corporation (DFC) during the year. Total outstanding foreign currency loan
activities exposure as on March 31, 2024 is 249.3 crores. The company has fully hedged the foreign currency
exposure through cross currency swaps.
Plant Locations Not Applicable
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DISTRIBUTION OF SHAREHOLDING

Sl. | Category (Shares) No. of Holders % of Holders No. of Shares % of Shares
No.
1. 1-5000 64,143 99.6 22,92,498 2.1
2. 5007~ 10000 6/ 0.1 1,05,271 0.1
3. 10001-20000 56 0.1 1,65,516 0.2
4. 20001-30000 33 0.1 1,60,426 0.2
5. 30001-40000 18 0.0 1,29,326 0.1
6. 40001-50000 14 0.0 1,31,029 0.1
7. 50001-100000 16 0.0 2,20,963 0.2
8. 100001 & Above 92 0.1 10,38,46,107 97.0
Total 64,439 100 10,70,51,136 100
Shareholding pattern as on 31 March, 2024
S. | Category Total Shares % Equity
No.
1. Promoters 15,70,734 147
2 Foreign Promoters 5,01,31,120 46.83
3 Mutual Funds 1,41,66,695 13.23
4. Alternative Investment Fund 17,87,749 1.67
5. Qualified Institutional Buyer 12,72,792 1.19
6 Foreign Portfolio Investors Category | 50,28,099 4.70
7 Foreign Portfolio Investors Category |l 6,23,212 0.58
8 Directors 7,75,000 0.72
9. Key Management Personnel 5,02,000 047
10. | Resident Individuals holding nominal share capital up to 2 Lacs 30,66,596 2.87
11. | Resident Individuals holding nominal share capital in excess of ¥ 2 Lacs 7,83,698 0.73
12. | Non-Resident Indians 1,15,483 0.11
13. | Foreign Corporate Bodies 2,68,06,973 25.04
14. | Bodies Corporates 2,66,978 0.25
15, |HUF 1,54,007 0.14
Total 10,70,51,136 100.00

CREDIT RATING

During the financial year under review, the credit rating of your Company was assigned to IND AA- (Stable) by India Ratings & Research

(Ind-Ra).

The credit rating details of the Company as of 31 March, 2024 are as follows

Agency Instrument Rating (Outlook)
Ind-Ra Long Term Borrowings IND AA-/Stable
ICRA Non-Convertible Debentures ICRA A +(Positive)
ICRA Long Term Borrowings ICRA A + (Positive)
CARE Long Term Borrowings CARE A +(Positive)

UNCLAIMED SUSPENSE ACCOUNT

As on 31 March, 2024, there were 60 (sixty) equity shares lying in the unclaimed suspense demat account.

DUE DATES FOR TRANSFER OF UNCLAIMED DIVIDEND TO INVESTOR EDUCATION AND PROTECTION FUND (IEPF)

In terms of Section 125 of the Act, unclaimed dividends are required to be transferred to the Investors Education and Protection Fund. There

was no dividend declared in the last Seven (7) years prior to the year under review and hence, there was no requirement of transferring the

same to the Investors Education and Protection Fund.

_______________________________________
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As per the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and in compliance with Regulation 25(10) of the SEBI Listing Regulations, the Company

has taken a D&O Liability Insurance policy on behalf of all Directors including Independent Directors and Key Managerial Personnel of the

Company for indemnifying any of them against any liability in respect of any negligence, default, misfeasance, breach of duty or breach of

trust for which they may be guilty in relation to the Company.

ONLINE SERVICES PROVIDED BY THE REGISTRAR AND SHARE TRANSFER AGENT

The shareholders can reach out to the Registrar and Share Transfer Agent, Kfin Technologies Limited, through the modes given below.

Particulars

Information

Email ID

einward.ris@kfintech.com

Toll Free

1800 309 4001

WhatsApp Number

Investor Support Centre (Investors can use a host of services like post
a query, raise a service request, track the status of their DEMAT and
REMAT request, Dividend status, interest and redemption status, upload
exemption forms (TDS), download all ISR and other related forms)

https://kprism.kfintech.com/

E-sign facility (Common and simplified norms for processing investor’s
service requests by RTAs and norms for furnishing PAN, KYC details and
Nomination)

https://ris.kfintech.com/clientservices/isc/isrforms.aspx

KYC Status (Shareholders can access the KYC status of their folio)

https://kprism.kfintech.com/

KPRISM: A mobile application as well as a webpage which allows users to
access folio details , interest and dividend status, FAQs, ISR Forms and full
suite of other investor services.

https://kprism.kfintech.com/signin.aspx

KFIN Corporate Website Link

https://www.kfintech.com/

Corporate Registry (RIS) Website Link

https://ris.kfintech.com/
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ANNEXURE ANNEXURE-A

MD & CFO Certificate Declaration on Code of Conduct
[Pursuant to Regulation 34(3) read with Schedule V (Part D) of
We hereby certify that: SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015]
1. We have reviewed the Audited Financial Statements and the cash flow statement for the financial year ended 31 March, 2024 and that
to the best of our knowledge and belief: This is to confirm that the Board has laid down a Code of Conduct for all board members and senior management of the Company. The
a.  these statements do not contain any materially untrue statement or omit any material fact or contain statements that might be Code of Conduct has also been posted on the website of the Company. It is further confirmed that all directors and senior management
misleading; personnel of the Company have affirmed compliance with the Code of Conduct of the Company for the year ended 31 March, 2024, as

b.  these statements together present a true and fair view of the Company’s affairs and are in compliance with existing accounting envisaged in schedule V under regulation 34 (3) of the Listing Regulations.

standards, applicable laws and regulations.

2. Thereare, to the best of our knowledge and belief, no transactions entered into by the Company during the year which are fraudulent, 5d/-

illegal or violative of the Company’s code of conduct. Rupinder Singh
Managing Director and CEO

3. We accept responsibility for establishing and maintaining internal controls for financial reporting and that we have evaluated the DIN: 09153382

effectiveness of internal control systems of the Company pertaining to financial reporting and we have disclosed to the auditors and
the audit committee, deficiencies in the design or operation of such internal controls, if any, of which we are aware and the steps we
have taken or propose to take to rectify these deficiencies.

Place: Gurgaon
Date: 08 May, 2024

4. We have indicated to the auditors and the Audit Committee that there are no:
a.  significant changes in internal control over financial reporting during the year;
b.  significant changes in accounting policies during the year requiring disclosure in the notes to the financial statements; and

c.  instances of significant fraud of which we have become aware and the involvement therein, if any, of the management or an
employee having a significant role in the Company’s internal control system over financial reporting.

On behalf of the Board of Directors
For India Shelter Finance Corporation Limited

Sd/- Sd/-
Place: Gurgaon Mr. Rupinder Singh Mr. Ashish Gupta
Date: 08 May 2024 MD & CEO Chief Financial Officer
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Certificate of Non-Disqualification of Directors
[Pursuant to Regulation 34 (3) read with Schedule V Para-C Sub clause (10) (i) of Securities and Exchange Board of India
(Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015]

To,

The Board of Directors

India Shelter Finance Corporation Limited

6™ Floor, Plot No. 15, Sector - 44, Institutional Area,

Gurgaon-122002, Haryana, India.

We have examined the relevant registers, records, forms, returns and disclosures received from the Directors of India Shelter Finance
Corporation Limited having CIN: L65922HR1998PLC042782 and having registered office at 6th Floor, Plot No. 15, Sector - 44, Institutional
Area, Gurgaon-122002, Haryana, India (hereinafter referred to as ‘the Company’), produced before us by the Company for the purpose of
issuing this Certificate, in accordance with Regulation 34(3) read with Schedule V Para-C Sub clause 10(i) of the Securities and Exchange
Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the verifications (including Director Identification Number (DIN) status
at the portal (www.mca.gov.in) as considered necessary and explanations furnished to us by the Company & its officers, we hereby certify
that none of the Directors on the Board of the Company as stated below for the Financial year ended on 31 March 2024 have been debarred
or disqualified from being appointed or continuing as Directors of companies by the Securities and Exchange Board of India, Ministry of
Corporate Affairs or any such other Statutory Authority:

S. | Name of Director Designation DIN Date of Appointment
No.

1. Mr. Sudhin Bhagwandas Choksey | Chairman and Non-Executive Nominee Director | 00036085 03/11/2021

2. Mr. Rupinder Singh Managing Director and Chief Executive Officer | 09153382 23/11/2021

3. Mr. Shailesh Jayantilal Mehta Non-Executive Nominee Director 01633893 03/11/2021

4. Mr. Sumir Chadha Non-Executive Nominee Director 00040789 03/06/2015

5. Mr. Parveen Kumar Gupta Independent Director 02895343 12/06/2023

6. Ms. Rachna Dikshit Independent Director 08759332 12/02/2021

7. Ms. Savita Mahajan Independent Director 06492679 31/07/2023

8. Mr. Thomson Kadantot Thomas Independent Director 09691435 02/08/2022

Ensuring the eligibility for the appointment/continuity of every Director on the Board is the responsibility of the management of the
Company. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these based on our verification. This certificate is neither an assurance as to the
future viability of the Company nor of the efficiency or effectiveness with which the management has conducted the affairs of the Company.

Jitender Singh

Practicing Company Secretary

Membership No. A33610

C.P. No. 26612

UDIN: A033610F000330060

Peer Review Certificate No.: 12013UP1081800

Date: May 08, 2024
Place: Gurgaon
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ANNEXURE -3

Independent Company Secretary’s certificate on compliance with the conditions of Corporate Governance as per provisions
of Chapter IV of Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015

To,

The Board of Directors

India Shelter Finance Corporation Limited

6™ Floor, Plot No. 15, Sector - 44, Institutional Area,

Gurgaon-122002, Haryana, India.

We have examined the compliance of the conditions of Corporate Governance by India Shelter Finance Corporation Limited (“the
Company”) having CIN: L65922HR1998PLC042782 and having registered office at 6th Floor, Plot No. 15, Sector - 44, Institutional Area,
Gurgaon-122002, Haryana, India for the year ended 31 March 2024 as stipulated in Regulations 17 to 27, clauses (b) to (i) of Regulation 46(2)
and Paragraphs C, D and E of Schedule V of the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements)
Regulations, 2015 as amended (“SEBI Listing Regulations”) read with Regulation 34(3) of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2015 for the financial year ended March 31, 2024.

MANAGEMENT’S RESPONSIBILITY

The compliance of conditions of Corporate Governance is the responsibility of the Management of the Company. This responsibility includes
the designing, implementing and operating effectiveness of internal control to ensure compliance with the conditions of Corporate
Governance as stipulated in the SEBI Listing Regulations.

OUR RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is limited to examine the procedures and implementation thereof, adopted by the Company for ensuring compliance
with the conditions of the Corporate Governance. It is neither an audit nor an expression of opinion on the financial statements of the
Company.

We have examined the relevant records and documents maintained by the Company for the purposes of providing reasonable assurance
on the compliance with Corporate Governance requirements by the Company.

OPINION

Based on our examination of the relevant records and according to the information and explanations provided to us and the representations
provided by the Management, we certify that the Company has complied with the conditions of Corporate Governance as stipulated in
Regulations 17 to 27 and clauses (b) to (i) of Regulation 46(2) and Para C and D of Schedule V of the SEBI Listing Regulations during the year
ended 31 March 2024.

We state that such compliance is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the Company nor the efficiency or effectiveness with
which the Management has conducted the affairs of the company.

Jitender Singh
Practicing Company Secretary
Membership No. A33610
C.P. No. 26612
UDIN: A033610F000330027
Peer Review Certificate No.: 12013UP1081800
Date: May 08, 2024
Place: Gurgaon
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CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY (CSR) 6 9

[Pursuant to clause (0) of sub-section (3) of section 134 of the Act and Rule 9 of the
Companies (Corporate Social Responsibility) Rules, 2014]

1. A BRIEF OUTLINE OF THE COMPANY’S CSR POLICY

India Shelter is a growing company and is committed towards social welfare of the common people as it caters the housing needs
of self-employed, informal segment of customers, belonging to middle income, primarily from semi urban and rural markets. The
Company firmly believes that it has commitment to all its stakeholders - customers, employees and the community.

India Shelter’s key CSR initiatives were undertaken with a long-term view. Initiatives that are sustainable, that have long-term benefits
to the society at large.

We have a CSR policy which lays down the action plan for defining how CSR is to be implemented and is in compliance with the
Schedule VII of the Companies Act, 2013. The CSR programs undertaken by the Company largely fall in the areas of improving

awareness of communities towards Education and medical aid. (b)
()
2. THE COMPOSITION OF THE CSR COMMITTEE AS ON 31 MARCH, 2024 @
Directors Designation DIN @
Ms. Savita Mahajan Independent Director (Chairman of Committee) 06492679
Ms. Rachna Dikshit Independent Director 08759332
Mr. Sumir Chadha Nominee Director 00040789
The attendance of the members at the Corporate Social Responsibility Committee Meetings during the year is as below:
Name Category Number of Meeting
Held Attended
Ms. Rachna Dikshit (DIN: 08759332) Independent Director 2 2
Mr. Rupinder Singh (DIN: 09153382) * Managing Director and Chief Executive Officer 2 2 (f)
Mr. Ajay Narayan Jha (DIN: 02270071) * Independent Director 2 2
Ms. Savita Mahajan (DIN: 06492679) * Independent Director 2 2
Mr. Thomson Thomas (DIN: 09691435) * Independent Director 2 2
Mr. Sumir Chadha (DIN: 00040789) * Nominee Director 2 2
*The Corporate Social Responsibility Committee was reconstituted on 31 July, 2023 and 08 February, 2024.
On 31 July, 2023, Mr. Ajay Narayan Jha, Mr. Sumir Chadha and Ms. Savita Mahajan were appointed as members of the Committee.
Further on reconstitution on 08 February, 2024, Mr. Rupinder Singh, Mr. Ajay Narayan Jha and Mr. Thomson Thomas were ceased to
be members of the Committee.
3. Provide the web-link where composition of csr committee, csr policy and csr projects approved by the board are disclosed on the
7. (@)

website of the company

The web-link of Composition of CSR Committee and CSR Policy are https://www.indiashelterin and for CSR Project is https://www.
indiashelter.in/csr.

4. Provide the executive summary along with web-link(s) of Impact Assessment of CSR Projects carried out in pursuance of sub-rule (3)
of rule 8, if applicable.

The average CSR obligation of the Company does not exceeds the prescribed threshold limit of ten crore rupees or more in pursuance
of Section 135(5) of the Companies Act, 2013. Thus, the impact assessment report is not applicable to the Company.

a) Average net profit of the Company as per sub-section (5) of section 135.% 15,810.14 Lacs

b) Two percent of average net profit of the Company as per section 135(5): ¥ 316.20 Lacs

Yes

(

(

(c)  Surplus arising out of the CSR projects or programs or activities of the previous financial year %: NIL
(

(e

d) Amount required to be set off for the financial year, if any: NIL
)

Total CSR obligation for the financial year ((b)+(c)-(d)) : ¥ 316.20 Lacs

If Yes, enter the number of Capital assets created/ acquired
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Total amount on CSR Projects (both Ongoing Project and other than Ongoing Project)

Home Loans

Lo @)

Name of NGO's / Org Proposals Amount (In%)
Paralympic committee of India (PCl) Contribution for the female athletes 3,990,000
The Akshaya Patra Foundation Mid-Day Meals in Hubli and Jaipur and procurement of 8,750,000
Food Distribution Vehicle with Vessels in Bhilwara.
Impact Guru Foundation Treatments in Nagpur, Kota, and Indore with healthcare 8,817,288
services delivered through the Care on Wheel (COW),
Scootest Project initiatives & Cataract Surgeries camps
held in Delhi- NCR & Rajasthan.
Bansi Vidya Memorial Trust (Leukaemia financially supporting leukemia or blood cancer affected 8,500,000
Crusaders) children.
CSR Administrative Overheads Being the remuneration, travel and other expenses 15,81,050

incurred for undertaking, identifying and completing
the CSR Activities by the Company

Amount spent in Administrative Overheads: 15.81 Lacs

Amount spent on Impact Assessment, if applicable: NIL

Total amount spent for the Financial Year ((a)+(b)-(d)): 316.38 Lacs

CSR amount spent or unspent for the Financial Year:

Total Amount
Spent for the

Financial Year
(in)

Amount Unspent (in<)

Total Amount transferred to
Unspent CSR Account as per

section 135(6) of Section 135

Amount transferred to any fund specified under
Schedule VIl as per second proviso of Sub-Section
(5) of section 135

Amount| Date of Transfer | Name of the Fund Amount | Date of Transfer
316.38 Lacs - - - - -
Excess amount for set off, if any: NIL
SI. | Particulars Amount
No. (X In Lacs)
(i)  |Two percent of average net profit of the company as per Section 135(5) 316.20
(i) | Total amount spent for the Financial Year 316.38
(il) | Excess amount spent for the financial year [(ii)-(i)] 0.18
(iv) | Surplus arising out of the CSR projects or programmes or activities of the previous financial -

years, if any

(v) |Amount available for set off in succeeding financial years [(iii)-(iv)] .

Details of unspent CSR amount for the preceding three financial years: NIL

Sr. | Preceding | Amount Balance Amount | Amount | Amount transferred | Amount | Deficiency, if
No. |Financial | transferred | in Unspent CSR Spent | to any fund specified | remaining any
Year to Unspent Account in the under Schedule ViI to be
CSR under subsection | reporting | as per section 135(5),| spentin
Account (6) of section 135 | Financial if any succeeding
under (in%) Year (in%) | Amount = Date of financial
Section (inRs) | transfer years
135(6) (in %) (in%)
1. 2020-21 -
2. 2021-22 -
3. 2022-23 -

No

8. Whetherany capital assets have been created or acquired through Corporate Social Responsibility amount spent in the Financial Year:

____________________________________________________________________
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Furnish the details relating to such asset(s) so created or acquired through Corporate Social Responsibility amount spent in the

Financial Year:

SI. | Short particulars of the |Pincode |Date of Amount Details of entity/ Authority/ beneficiary of the
No. | property or asset(s) of the creation |of CSR registered owner
[including comple.te property amount CSR Name Registered
address and location of | or asset(s) spent Reaistration address
the property] egls .
Number, if
applicable
1 Procurement of food 311001 28 March, | 14,49,527 | CSR00000286 |The New Bapu Nagar,
distribution Vehicle with 2024 Akshaya Near Devnarayana
vessels for Bhilwara Location Patra Circle, Bhilwara — 311001
Foundation

Rajasthan.

(All the fields should be captured as appearing in the revenue record, flat no, house no, Municipal Office/Municipal Corporation/ Gram

panchayat are to be specified and also the area of the immovable property as well as boundaries)

Specify the reason(s), if the Company has failed to spend two per cent of the average net profit as per subsection (5) of section 135. -

Not applicable, as company has spent two per cent of the average net profit as per subsection (5) of section 135.

Ms. Savita Mahajan
Chairman of the CSR Committee
DIN: 06492679

-

Sd/-

Mr. Rupinder Singh
Managing Director & CEO
DIN: 09153382
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